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WHAT DOES THE COVER SHOW?

The cover zooms in on a 3D CAD (Computer Aided Design) drawing of an 
ore body as a so-called wireframe model. The drawing reveals the 
spread of the ore body in three spatial dimensions. The ore on the cover 
is from åkulla Östra in Kankberg and includes concentrations of gold, sil-
ver and tellurium that may eventually be extracted. Exploration for mine-

ral resources is not just the fi rst stage in mining operations, it is the 
starting point for all metal production. What starts as a mineral fi nd can, 
many years down the line, be an important component of tele and data 
communications infrastructure. Or of a road network, vehicles, mobile 
phones, e-readers or batteries, to mention just a few other examples.

CAD DRAWING OF ORE BODY IN 3D 
AS A SOLID MODEL 

CAD DRAWING OF ORE BODY IN 3D 
AS A WIREFRAME MODEL

PART OF THE ORE BODY

While every care has been taken in the translation of this annual report, readers are reminded that the original annual report, signed by the Board of Directors, is in Swedish. 
Th e translation is unaudited. 

2012 Annual General Meeting

Boliden’s ordinary Annual General Meeting will be held on  Th ursday 
3rd May 2012 in Skellefteå.

PARTICIPATION
Shareholders wishing to participate in the Annual General Mee-
ting must both be registered in the shareholders’ register kept by 
Euroclear Sweden AB on Th ursday, 26th April 2012 (for details of 
the re-registration process for nominee shareholders, please see 
below) and have notifi ed the company of their intention to partici-
pate, either via  Boliden’s website, www.boliden.com, by calling the 
company on +46 8 32 94 29, or by writing to the company at the fol-
lowing address: Boliden AB, Legal Aff airs, P.O. Box 44, SE-101 20 
Stockholm, Sweden. All such notifi cations must be received by the 
company no later than Th ursday, 26th April 2012.

Shareholders’ notifi cations of their intention to attend the 
Annual General Meeting shall include the shareholder’s name, 
Civic ID no. or corporate ID no., address and telephone number, 
and the number of assistants who will accompany them. Th e infor-
mation provided will be computerised and used exclusively in con-
nection with the Annual General Meeting. 

NOMINEE SHAREHOLDERS
In order to be entitled to participate in the Annual General Mee-
ting, nominee shareholders must, no later than Th ursday, 26th April 
2012, have their shares temporarily re-registered in their own names 
with Euroclear Sweden AB. All such requests for registration in the 
shareholders’ own name must be submitted to the relevant trustee 
well ahead of this date.

COMPLETE INVITATION TO ATTEND
A complete invitation to attend the Annual General Meeting, as 
well as fi nancial and other information, may be accessed via 
Boliden’s website at www.boliden.com. Printed fi nancial informa-
tion may also be ordered via the Boliden website or from Boliden 
AB, P.O. Box 44, SE-101 20 Stockholm, Sweden.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
3rd May
Interim Report, January–March 2012

19th July
Interim Report, January–June 2012

25th October
Interim Report, January–September 2012

11th February 2013
Interim Report, January–December 2012

QUESTIONS
Any questions concerning Boliden’s fi nancial information can be 
submitted to:
Boliden’s Investor Relations
Tel +46 8 610 15 00 or
e-mail: investorrelations@boliden.com

Production: Boliden AB and Intellecta Corporate. Photo: Stefan Berg et al. Printed by: Ineko in Stockholm 2012. Th is report is printed on Arctic Silk/Tom & Otto Silk paper. 
Th is paper has been certifi ed as meeting the standards of the Programme for Endorsement of Forest Certifi cation (PEFC),which means that at least 70% of wood comes from forests 
that meet or exceed PEFC’s Sustainability Benchmark and wood from controlled sources.
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BOLIDEN’S METALS

Zn Cu Pb Au Ag
SEK 7,900 M*
Boliden is the world’s 
sixth biggest producer of 
zinc from smelters and 
the eighth biggest pro-
ducer of zinc concentrate 
from mines. Boliden’s zinc 
is mainly sold to the Euro-
pean market. The zinc is 
primarily used to galva-
nise thin metal sheet and 
general goods, providing 
protection against corro-
sion. The end-users come 
primarily from the auto-
motive and construction 
industries.

SEK 19,300 M*
Boliden is a medium-sized 
producer of copper metal 
from smelters and a 
small producer of copper 
from mines, but enjoys a 
significant position in 
Europe. Boliden’s custom-
ers manufacture semi-fin-
ished goods for further 
processing, such as wire, 
tubing, sheet metal and 
finished copper products. 
Copper, which has good 
conductivity, is primarily 
used in the construction, 
electronics and transport 
industries.

SEK 1,100 M*
Boliden is a medium-sized 
producer of lead from 
smelters and mines. 
Recycled batteries make 
up 75 per cent of the raw 
materials used in 
Boliden’s lead production. 
Lead in mined concen-
trate form comes from 
Boliden’s zinc mines, 
where lead is a subsidiary 
metal. Most of the 
world’s lead production is 
used in vehicle batteries 
and back-up power sup-
plies to secure the opera-
tion of critical systems 
during power cuts. 

SEK 4,100 M*
Gold is an important 
metal in Boliden’s mines 
and smelters and the cur-
rent investments will 
increase gold production. 
The gold comes from the 
recycling of electronic 
scrap, and as a subsidiary 
metal from copper con-
centrate. Gold is used in 
the jewellery industry 
and, to a lesser degree, 
in the electronics indus-
try. The importance of 
gold as an asset class for 
financial players has 
increased. 

SEK 3,500 M*
Several of Boliden’s 
mines contain substan-
tial amounts of silver. 
Once the Garpenberg 
expansion is completed, 
the mine will be a signifi-
cant producer of silver, 
which is also recycled 
from electronic scrap. 
Silver is used in the jew-
ellery, photographic, 
electrical and electron-
ics industries. As with 
gold, the importance of 
silver as an investment 
alternative for financial 
players has increased.

Boliden also produces and sells other products, such as sulphuric acid, aluminium fluoride, sulphur dioxide and palladium concentrate.  

* A simplified estimation of the market value of Boliden’s metal production in 2011. The value is calculated on the basis of tonnage multiplied by the average price for the year.
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Important events during the year

In early 2011, Boliden decided to expand the Garpenberg zinc, silver and lead mine and to open  
the new gold mine, Kankberg, in the Boliden Area. Approximately one third of Boliden’s price risk  
the first six months of 2013 was hedged in order to ensure protection against price falls during  
the investment period. 

MAJOR EXPANSION AT GARPENBERG
An extensive expansion of the Garpenberg zinc, silver and lead mine, increasing pro-
duction from 1.4 to 2.5 million tonnes of ore per year, was taken in January. The new 
facilities will come on line in 2014 and full capacity will be reached at the end of 2015. 
The investment is expected to total SEK 3.9 billion. 

DECISION TO OPEN THE NEW GOLD MINE, 
KANKBERG
The decision to start extracting gold and tellurium from 
the Kankberg mine in the Boliden Area was taken in Feb-
ruary. The SEK 475 million investment comprises the 
mine’s infrastructure and a new leaching plant. Produc-
tion will begin in mid-2012.

INCREASED MINERAL 
RESERVES AND MIN-
ERAL RESOURCES IN 
THE BOLIDEN AREA
Successful exploration 
has yielded an increase in 
mineral reserves and min-
eral resources in the 
Boliden Area in 2011.RECYCLING CAPACITY EXPANDED AT 

RÖNNSKÄR
The new Kaldo plant that expands Rönnskär’s electronic 
scrap recycling capacity was completed at the end of 
the year. The facility will come on line during the first 
quarter of 2012 and will increase capacity to 120,000 
tonnes of electronic scrap per year, making Rönnskär 
the world’s biggest electronic scrap recycling facility. 
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Events since the end of the year
ENVIRONMENTAL PERMIT FOR THE GARPENBERG EXPANSION
On 31st January 2012, the Land and Environmental Court granted permission 
for continued and expanded operations at the Garpenberg mine.

CHANGES IN BOLIDEN’S MANAGEMENT GROUP
Mikael Staffas took over as Boliden’s new CFO in June. In October, Kerstin Kon-
radsson was appointed as the new President Business Area Smelters, succeed-
ing Svante nilsson, who has been appointed Director Group Strategic Projects. 
Kerstin took up her position on 1st February 2012. 

CONTINUED FINE-TUNING AT AITIK
The fine-tuning work on the new Aitik facilities continued. During the year, produc-
tion has gradually improved and reached 31.5 million tonnes for the whole year, in 
comparison with 27.6 million tonnes in 2010. Full capacity − 36 million tonnes of 
ore per year − will be reached in 2014.The picture shows one of the new crushers 
that caused production disruptions during the year.

METAL PRICES AND EXCHANGE RATES HEDGED
The prices of all metals were hedged for 2011, 2012 and 
the first six months of 2013 in conjunction with the deci-
sion to expand the Garpenberg mine. The price hedging 
corresponds to approximately one third of the Group’s 
price risk, including the currency risk. The hedging helps 
ensure Boliden’s financial stability during the investment 
period. 

NEW BOLIDEN WAY (NBW)
Work on Boliden’s long-term organisational and produc-
tion philosophy, nBW, continued within the Group. nBW 
has had positive effects at the Boliden Area’s Kristine-
berg mine, which was the first of the Group’s mines to 
implement the programme in 2010. One example is an 
increase in the number of rounds fired, and another 
example is an increase in operational reliability and avail-
ability. The programme will be launched at all of the 
Boliden Area’s mines by the summer of 2012. Boliden’s 
smelters have already implemented the nBW pro-
gramme.

BOLIDEn AnnuAL REPORT 2011 3
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Boliden in brief

Boliden is a metals company with a commitment 
to sustainable development. Our core competence 
is in the fields of exploration, mining, smelting and 
metals recycling. Our roots are nordic, but our 
business is global. Boliden has four mining areas 
and five smelters. Boliden’s main metals are zinc 
and copper, but lead, gold and silver production 
and other products are also very important to our 
profitability. 

Boliden’s business concept is to extract minerals 
and produce high-quality metals in a cost-effective 
and environmentally friendly way, in order to meet 
the market’s long-term demand for metals and 
create value for our shareholders. The operations 
are conducted in two Business Areas: Mines and 
Smelters. The number of employees is approxi-
mately 4,400.

BOLIDEN’S OPERATIONS

EXPLORATION
The primary focus of Boliden’s exploration work is on zinc-, cop-
per-, and precious metal-bearing ores and its purpose is to 
expand the mine portfolio in the form of new deposits, both in the 
vicinity of existing mines and in completely new areas. The explo-
ration activities form part of Business Area Mines.

MINERAL RESERVES AND MINERAL RESOURCES
Successful exploration has generated increased mineral reserves 
and mineral resources (measured and indicated) in the Boliden 
Area in 2011.
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MINES
Zinc-, copper-, lead-, gold- and silver-bearing ores are mined in 
Boliden’s four mining areas. The ore is processed to produce 
metal concentrate, the majority of which is delivered to smelters 
within the Group.

PRODUCTION MINES 

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Zinc, tonnes 333,293 297,423 307,128 293,814 283,217

Copper, tonnes 62,803 57,220 54,602 75,977 81,205

Lead, tonnes 54,166 53,041 56,669 49,585 49,477

Gold, kg 2,834 2,603 3,130 3,727 3,681

Silver, kg 241,701 211,683 214,120 230,756 231,388

Metal concentrate

INCOME AND OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit ex. revaluation of pro-
cess inventory rose by 4% as a result of 
increased production levels and higher prices. 
The weakening of the uSD dampened the 
increase.

NET DEBT AND NET DEBT/EQUITY RATIO

The net debt/equity ratio, of 29% (24%) at the 
end of 2011. The increase is attributable to 
lower cash flow, increased working capital, 
increased investment rate and higher tax paid.

RETURN ON CAPITAL

The return on both capital employed and 
shareholders’ equity was 17% in 2011.

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

1110090807
0

2,000

4,000

6,000

 Income  Operating profit  
 Operating profit ex. revalu-

ation of process inventory

SEK m SEK m

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

1110090807
0

10

20

30

40

50

 net debt   net debt/equity ratio 

SEK m %

0

5

10

15

20

25

30
Avkastning på eget kapital

Avkastning på sysselsatt kapital

1110090807

 Return on shareholders’ equity  
 Return on capital employed 

%

 Proven/Probable 
 Measured/Indicated  
 Inferred

 Production x 10

4 BOLIDEn AnnuAL REPORT 2011

BOLIDEn In BRIEF



SMELTERS
Boliden’s five smelters refine metal concentrates and other raw 
materials, such as electronic scrap, metal scrap, metal ashes 
and scrap car batteries, to both pure metals and customised 
alloys.

PRODUCTION SMELTERS

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Zinc, tonnes 462,570 443,191 434,022 456,006 460,552

Copper, tonnes 314,881 349,593 302,355 303,184 335,771

Lead, tonnes 25,865 14,235 13,013 17,013 11,429

Lead alloys, 
tonnes 43,865 42,577 38,561 42,166 41,009

Gold, kg 14,876 15,489 15,028 14,220 12,848

Silver, kg 379,749 488,285 539,564 450,280 488,147

Sulphuric acid, 
tonnes 1,230,861 1,328,904 1,123,336 1,397,002 1,597,072

Aluminium fluo-
ride, tonnes 34,833 34,611 33,161 21,951 34,812

SALES
Boliden’s metals and other products are mainly sold to industrial 
customers in Europe. Sales are conducted within Business Area 
Smelters. 

END-USERS ZINC

Boliden’s customers mainly 
comprise steelworks, which 
use zinc to give the steel 
added protection against cor-
rosion. Almost two thirds of all 
zinc used goes, via steelworks, 
to the construction industry 
including infrastructure. 

END-USERS COPPER

Wire rod and copper rod man-
ufacturers make up the major-
ity of Boliden’s customers.  
A large percentage of all cop-
per used goes, via manufac-
turers of copper components, 
to the construction industry 
and electronic products.
Source: Brook Hunt− A Wood Mackenzie company, December 2011.

Transport, 13%

Industrial  
machines, 13%

Construc-
tion, 33%Consumer products, 8%

Electrical
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& Electronics, 33%
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 • Stockholm

 Bergsöe •

 • Neuss

Tara •

Odda •

Leamington Spa • 

 • Garpenberg
 • Harjavalta

 • Kokkola
Rönnskär •

The Boliden Area •

 • Aitik

MINING AREAS
Tara – zinc and lead
Garpenberg – zinc, silver, lead, gold and copper
The Boliden Area – zinc, copper, gold, silver and lead
Aitik – copper, gold and silver

SMELTERS
Kokkola – zinc and sulphuric acid
Odda – zinc and aluminium fluoride
Rönnskär – copper, lead, zinc clinker, gold, silver and sulphuric acid
Harjavalta – copper, gold, silver, sulphuric acid and nickel smelting
Bergsöe – lead alloys

OFFICES
Stockholm – head office, the Group
Stockholm – head office, Business Area Smelters
Boliden – head office, Business Area Mines
neuss – sales office
Leamington Spa – sales office

BOLIDEN’S FACILITIES

KEY DATA: FIVE-YEAR OVERVIEW TABLE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Revenues, SEK m 33,204 30,987 27,635 36,716 40,323

Operating profit, SEK m 5,428 1,004 3,623 5,643 4,748

Operating profit, ex. revaluation of process inventory, SEK m 5,620 1,793 2,350 4,830 5,008

Free cash flow, SEK m 1,212 837 –948 3,202 –3

Earnings per share, SEK 13.37 3.42 9.14 14.47 12.39

Dividend per share, SEK 4.00 1.00 3.00 5.00 4.00

Return on capital employed, % 29 5 14 21 17

Return on shareholders’ equity, % 26 7 16 23 17

net debt/equity ratio, % 43 39 46 24 29
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A DYNAMIC MARKET 
The 1990s saw a number of population-
dense, developing countries begin 
modernising their societies and build-
ing up welfare states in much the same 
way as Europe and the USA did, 50 

years ago. This has resulted in a 
new surge in demand for 
many raw materials. The dif-
ference between then and 
now, however, is that this 
China-led development is 
proceeding much more 
quickly, and never before 
has the world seen such a 
dynamic market for base 
metals. 

China will probably 
be the driving force 
behind global demand 
for copper and zinc until 
around 2020, after 
which point the ongo-
ing demand trend will 
be driven by India and 
a number of other 
developing countries. 

This means that the pre-
conditions for continued 

strong growth look sound. 
The vigorous recovery 

seen since 2008-2009 levelled 
off during the latter half of 
2011. Metal prices fell, but still 
displayed good stability. The 
staying power of the recovery 
reflects the long-term demand 
trend that saw China continue 
to grow strongly, despite tight-
ening its economic belt. 

Demand in Europe, where 
the majority of our customers 
are located, fell towards the 
end of 2011. Over time, how-

ever, it is global supply and 
demand that deter-

mines metal prices 
and for Boliden’s 

metals, the positive factors in the global economy have offset the 
negative ones. 

BOLIDEN IN 2011
One of the most important results Boliden achieved during the year 
was in the field of safety and the work environment. The accident 
frequency in 2011 was 4.9 accidents resulting in absence from work 
per one million hours worked – the Group’s best result to date. 

The 2011 financial results show the positive effects of increased 
production and higher metal prices. On the negative side, the mines 
have reported substantially increased costs, primarily in relation to 
mine-related materials and services. These cost increases have, 
admittedly, also impacted our competitors, but we are not satisfied 
with this trend and are consequently implementing a range of meas-
ures designed to counteract cost inflation. 

In early 2011, we took the decision to almost double production 
at Garpenberg and to start up the new gold and tellurium mine, 
Kankberg. 

Garpenberg’s mineral resources are sufficient to handle a higher 
production rate, thanks to the exploration successes of recent years. 
Once the expansion work is completed and production has reached 
full capacity of 2.5 million tonnes per year, Garpenberg will be a 
major mine, internationally speaking, in terms of both zinc and sil-
ver. Increased production and a long life-span is, of course, a very 
interesting combination, not least in view of the fact that Garpen-
berg is both highly competitive and very profitable. The mine’s new 
shaft has already been drilled to the full depth of 1,200 metres, 
thereby giving us a good grasp of the rock quality along the entire 
shaft and eliminating some of the project’s most important uncer-
tainty factors. Construction on the new concentrator also began in 
early 2012. Garpenberg’s new facilities will be commissioned in 2014 
and full production capacity will be reached in 2015. 

Aitik produced 31.5 million tonnes of ore in 2011, which was 
slightly less than we had planned to produce. The production 
increase that began in 2010 has been challenging, from time to time, 
and the increased production reliability has sometimes been 
achieved at the expense of high maintenance costs – something that 
we will be addressing in 2012. Full production of 36 million tonnes 
of ore will be achieved in 2014. 

INCREASED GOLD PRODUCTION
Copper and zinc continue to be the most important metals for 
Boliden, but the importance of gold and silver is increasing. These 
metals also have a strong link with Boliden’s history. Boliden’s oper-
ations began almost 100 years ago with the gold deposits that were 
discovered on the site of the present-day town of Boliden. What 
makes gold and, to some extent, silver particularly interesting is that 
their prices often rise when copper and zinc prices fall, and the bal-

President’s statement, 2011

Over the past few years, Boliden has resolved to invest a total of SEK 12 billion in organic growth 
 measures. The Group has been working intensively on these projects in 2011 and will continue  
to do so in 2012. The metals market is currently in a dynamic phase and offers both opportunities  
and challenges in the years ahead. 
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ancing effect on Boliden’s profits that they consequently offer are a 
huge plus. The new Kankberg mine and the expansion of Rönnskär’s 
electronic scrap recycling facility are both based on increased gold 
production. The Rönnskär project will also make Boliden a world 
leader in the field of electronic scrap recycling, and in addition to 
presenting an extremely attractive investment calculation and the 
potential for continued growth in the area; it is also an advanta-
geous investment from an environmental viewpoint. The alterna-
tive to large-scale recycling is for even more of the world’s electronic 
scrap to be sent to landfill or end up in illegal processes that are also 
extremely harmful from an environmental and health point of view. 
Kankberg will, in addition to gold, produce tellurium, which is a 
semi-conductor used in solar panels – a fast-growing market. 

BOLIDEN IN THE YEARS AHEAD
The Rönnskär and Kankberg projects will enter production in 2012: 
Rönnskär will undergo fine-tuning during the first quarter, and 
production will start at the Kankberg mine in the middle of the 
year. This will take place in parallel with the ongoing production 
increases at Aitik, and the “full speed ahead” approach to the 
Garpenberg project aimed at commissioning in 2014. We also took 
the decision, in early 2012, to invest in a new silver plant at the Kok-
kola smelter. The project offers not only the potential for high prof-
itability and an increased flexibility in terms of scope for handling 
different raw materials; it will help further boost Boliden’s precious 
metal production. Kokkola’s silver concentrate production will start 
during the third quarter of 2014.

It is vital that the smelters have access to raw materials on com-
petitive terms. Global mined production is a bottleneck for the met-
als industry at the same time as there is overcapacity in the smelt-
ing industry. Boliden has its own mines but is, at the same time, 
reliant on developing close partnerships with other mining compa-
nies who can act as suppliers for the smelters. We are consequently 
working intensively to extend the partnerships with our suppliers. 

Measures aimed at improving process stability are one of our 
most important areas. In addition to the positive effects they have 
on production and costs, stable processes also improve safety and 
the environment. Boliden’s organisational and production philos-
ophy, the New Boliden Way, has an important part to play in 
achieving continuous improvements and a high degree of systemi-
sation within our operations. 

If we look to the future and to a time when our currently ongo-
ing expansion projects are completed, I’d like to stress that Boliden 
will continue to invest in process development and exploration. We 
have achieved a good return on our exploration so far: the Aitik and 
Garpenberg expansions have been enabled by our exploration suc-
cesses in recent years, and the Boliden Area’s mineral resources grew 

by almost 30 per cent in 2011. The value of these successes is, there-
fore, extremely high. 

Boliden is also keen to generate growth through the acquisition 
of mines and mine projects. When metal prices are high, however, 
the same is true of acquisition prices, and it is difficult to make 
attractive acquisitions that result in value generation for our share-
holders. The investments that Boliden has made in recent years have 
been far superior, in terms of value, to the acquisitions we have 
examined, but in the longer term, it is my hope that the organic 
growth can be complemented with acquisitions. 

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SAFETY ISSUES INCREASINGLY 
IMPORTANT
Metals are vital to modern society and we believe that demand, 
driven by the rapid growth in countries, will continue to be sound. 
Environmental, health and safety issues pose a challenge for the 
industry as a whole, and the link between these issues and a com-
pany’s future growth will become increasingly clear. From this per-
spective, Boliden’s development will become more and more a ques-
tion of leadership and skill development. It is important that we 
create a culture in which every single employee has an understand-
ing of and a genuine desire to reduce our environmental impact and 
the risk of injury. 

We can also cooperate with our business partners in the field of 
sustainability. Recent years have seen us launch a systematic pro-
gramme of work aimed at evaluating customers and suppliers with 
a view to working hand in hand with them to improve their pro-
cesses and learn from their progress. 

Boliden has improved its safety levels, its environmental perfor-
mance, its production and its profits over a number of years now. 
We are conducting large-scale, exciting projects and every single 
employee has contributed to our development. Some years ago, I 
wrote in my President’s Statement that we want to be a respected 
company within our sector. I think we have made significant pro-
gress towards that goal. 

Stockholm, February 2012

Lennart Evrell
President & CEO
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Profitable growth

Boliden has built up a competitive position in the fields of exploration, mining operations, concentration, 
smelter operations and recycling over the years. Efficient processes, financial stability and environmen-
tal and social responsibility are important cornerstones for generating growth.

MISSION
Boliden produces metals that make modern society work. Our high-
quality metals shall meet society’s demand and live up to its require-
ments, and producing and supplying metals in a responsible way 
that takes into account people, the environment and society is, 
therefore, of the utmost importance to Boliden. 

VISION
Boliden shall be one of the industry’s leading players when it comes 
to value generation for its shareholders and accepting its responsi-
bility for people, the environment and society.

STRATEGY
Boliden endeavours to maintain a leading position among medium-
sized base metals companies by creating competitive mines and 
smelters and by being the natural choice for customers and business 
partners. 

The strategy has three themes:
• Increased operational efficiency
• Organic growth
• Acquisition of producing mines and mining projects. 

The strategic focus of the Group’s mining operations is on increas-
ing productivity and expanding production. The smelters’ priority 
is to cut costs, improve process stability, and increase the ability to 
process complex raw materials. Boliden’s leading position within 
electronic scrap recycling will be further developed and strength-
ened. 

CAD drawings are used within exploration. The drawings make it 
 possible to study the spread of the ore body in three spatial dimensions. 
Jakob Fahlgren works within Boliden’s exploration organisation.
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INCREASED OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY
Efficient operations, high levels of capacity utilisation and low costs boost competitiveness and enhance Boliden’s ability to cope with peri-
ods when metal prices are low. Boliden’s efficiency enhancement work is based on a Group-wide organisation and production philosophy: 
the New Boliden Way (NBW), through which projects are implemented in the fields of production efficiency, leadership and decision-
making, quality and financial control. 

ACTIVITIES IN 2011 
•  Roll-out of improvement programmes within Mines, based 

on experience gained from the Kristineberg mine. 
•  Implementation of measures at the Harjavalta and Odda 

smelters, with the primary focus on improving production 
stability. 

•  Following up on and implementation of additional measures 
at other smelters with the aim of improving availability, con-
trol and follow-up work, and of eliminating waste.

•  The annual development programme for the Group’s manag-
ers focused on leadership. 

ACTIVITIES IN 2011 
•  Commissioning of the new Hötjärn tailings pond in the 

Boliden Area.
•  Completion of the project involving the expansion of elec-

tronic scrap recycling capacity at the Rönnskär copper 
smelter. Production is scheduled to come on line in the first 
quarter of 2012. 

•  Fine-tuning work continues at the Aitik copper mine, work-
ing towards the goal of an annual ore production figure of 
36 million tonnes in 2014. 

• Extensive exploration work.
•  Decision and project start for the expansion of the 

 Garpenberg zinc mine. 
• Decision and project start for the Kankberg gold mine. 

PRIORITIES FOR 2012
•  Mines continue roll-out of improvement programmes. 
•  For Smelters, where improvement programmes have been 

started at all units, nBW will leave the project phase and 
become part of the ongoing, day-to-day activities. 

•  The annual development programme for the Group’s man-
agers will focus on skill supply in 2012. 

PRIORITIES FOR 2012
•  Fine-tuning of the Boliden concentrator’s new ore concen-

trate terminal serving four different mines. 
•  Continued fine-tuning at Aitik in order to reach full capacity 

in 2014.
•  Production by Rönnskär’s expanded electronic scrap recy-

cling capacity begins during the first quarter.
•  Production starts at the Kankberg gold and tellurium mine 

in the Boliden Area.
• The Garpenberg expansion project continues.
• Extensive exploration work.

ORGANIC GROWTH
Boliden is currently conducting a number of expansion projects at existing units. Such investments are based on known assets and pro-
cesses, which often means lower risk levels, shorter lead times, and lower costs than in conjunction with growth through acquisitions. The 
investments in Boliden’s mining operations have a clear expansion profile, while those within the smelting operations are focused on 
improving competitiveness through increased productivity and flexibility. 

ACQUISITION OF PRODUCING MINES AND MINE PROJECTS
Boliden’s ambition is to grow not only organically, but through the acquisition of mines and mine projects. The acquisition of operating 
mines gives an immediate boost to production, while mine projects ensure long-term production capacity. Boliden works continuously 
with the evaluation of potential acquisition projects.
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Urbanisation drives demand for metals

Demand for metals is increasing as more and more of the population of emerging nations worldwide 
move to towns and cities, increasing the need for new housing and investments in infrastructure. This 
trend in China has been the single most important factor in recent years, but many other countries are 
thought to be moving into a similar developmental phase, and the trend is expected to help ensure a 
healthy demand for metals for many years to come. 

China is the world’s biggest metals consumer and accounted for 42 
per cent of both global zinc and copper consumption in 2011. 
Between 1990 and 2005, 103 million Chinese moved into cities, and 
based on this trend, a further 200 million Chinese will have moved 
from rural areas into urban areas by 2025.

The growth in demand for metals is generally strongest when 
countries per capita GNP is rising within the band between USD 
5,000 and USD 15,000, which is the band within which many of 
the world’s major emerging economies currently lie. China’s per 

capita GNP in 2011, for example, was approximately USD 8,400. 
45 per cent of the world’s population still live, however, in countries 
with a per capita GNP of less than USD 5,000. 

In mature economies, such as the EU, USA and Japan, demand 
for metals is constant or slightly falling, and consequently these 
economies are not expected to contribute to any growth in demand. 
They do, however, still account for a significant percentage of global 
metal consumption. 

ZINC CONSUMPTION BY REGION

China is by far the world’s biggest zinc con-
sumer, accounting for 42% of global zinc 
consumption in 2011.

COPPER CONSUMPTION BY REGION

China, together with the rest of Asia, 
accounted for 65% of global copper con-
sumption in 2011. 

PERCENTAGE OF THE WORLD’S POPULATION 
WHO LIVE IN GROWTH ZONES FOR METALS

Approximately 34% of the world’s popula-
tion live in countries where the GnP/capita 
is between uSD 5,000 and uSD 15,000, 
i.e. the range in which metal consumption 
steadily increases. 

METAL CONSUMPTION IN RELATION TO GNP PER CAPITA

Base metal consumption increases steadily in a country where the GnP/capita lies in the 
uSD 5,000-15,000 range. The diagram shows the relationship between zinc consumption 
and GnP per capita. 
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Almost 100 years of experience

MINES

SMELTERS

Boliden has been producing metals for almost 100 years now and over the years, the com-
pany has built up a competitive position in the fields of exploration, ore extraction, concentra-
tion, smelting and recycling operations. The following eight pages present these operations in 
greater depth, showing what characterises Boliden’s operations and describing the market 
conditions in the various sectors. The descriptions focus on zinc and copper, which are 
Boliden’s main metals. 

BOLIDEn AnnuAL REPORT 2011 11
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From exploration to metal sales

Boliden has four mining areas and five smelters. The Group’s mines supply the smelters with raw materi-
als, but the smelters also buy raw materials, in the form of both mined concentrate and electronic scrap 
and other recycled materials, from external suppliers. 

EXPLORATION
Find out more on pages 14–15

MINING
Find out more on pages 16–17

CONCENTRATION
Find out more on pages 16–17

MINES

In 2011:
•  Over 50 active pro-

jects
•  SEK 282 million (SEK 

229 m) was invested 
in exploration

•  A total of 188,000 
metres (140,000 m) 
was drilled

•  Mineral resources and 
reserves generally 
continued to increase 

In 2011, the mines 
extracted:
•  37 million (33 m) 

tonnes of ore
•  30 million (27 m) 

tonnes of waste 
rock

In 2011, the mines 
 produced:
•  523 ktonnes of zinc 

 concentrate
•  329 ktonnes of copper 

concentrate
•  76 ktonnes of lead 

 concentrate

The  concentrates also 
contain gold and silver.

Boliden’s exploration work focuses on iden-
tifying deposits that contain zinc, copper 
and precious metals. Zinc-bearing ores 
often also contain lead as a subsidiary 
metal. Exploration successes since 2003 
have resulted in an increase in mineral 
reserves and mineral resources. This has 
enabled the expansion of the Aitik and 
Garpenberg mines. 

The ore extracted in Boliden’s different 
mines contains between 3 and 8 per cent 
zinc and between 0.2 and 0.8 per cent cop-
per. Most of the mines also contain signifi-
cant amounts of lead, gold, silver and other 
by-products. 

The metal grades of the zinc and copper 
concentrates produced in Boliden’s concen-
trators are around 50 per cent and 25 per 
cent, respectively. They also contain gold 
and silver. The metal grade of the lead con-
centrate varies between 50 and 70 per cent, 
depending on the head grades. Around 70 
per cent of the zinc concentrate produced is 
supplied to our own zinc smelters and the 
remainder is sold to external ones. All of the 
copper concentrate produced is supplied to 
Boliden’s Rönnskär copper smelter. 

230 ktonnes of 
 concentrate to 
external smelters
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RAW MATERIAL 
 PROCESSING
Find out more on pages 18–19

METAL PRODUCTION
Find out more on pages 18–19

SALES
 

SMELTERS

In 2011, the smelters 
processed:
•  2,240 ktonnes of zinc, 

copper and lead con-
centrates

•  60 ktonnes of elec-
tronic scrap

•  130 ktonnes of metal 
scrap and other sec-
ondary materials

In 2011, metal sales 
broke down as 
 follows:
•  90 per cent to 

industrial custom-
ers

•  10 per cent to 
metal dealers

The zinc and copper concentrates produced 
by Boliden’s mines meets approximately 60 
per cent of the zinc smelters’ raw material 
requirements, and approximately 25 per 
cent of the copper smelters’ requirements. 
The remaining raw material requirements 
are met by external suppliers.

The zinc and copper metals produced have 
purity levels of 99.995 and 99.9975 per cent, 
respectively. 

In addition, Harjavalta smelts approxi-
mately 250 ktonnes of nickel concentrate 
annually.

Boliden’s metals and other products are 
mainly sold to industrial customers in 
Europe. Most of the zinc is supplied to steel 
companies, while the copper is supplied to 
manufacturers of wire rod, copper rods and 
copper alloys. 

The smelters’ production  
totalled:
• 461 ktonnes of zinc
• 336 ktonnes of copper
•  52 ktonnes of lead and lead 

alloys
• 13,000 kg of gold
• 488,000 kg of silver
•  1,597 ktonnes of sulphuric acid
•  77 ktonnes of sulphur  dioxide
•  35 ktonnes of aluminium 

 fluoride
•  3,300 kg of palladium 

 concentrate

From external suppliers:
•  730 ktonnes of copper 

concentrate, 
•  500 ktonnes of zinc 

 concentrate
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EXPLORATION

Exploration is vital to long-term mining 
operations and growth. A mining compa-
ny’s ability to grow relies on its mineral 
resources and mineral reserves growing at a 
rate that exceeds the rate of ore production. 
Exploration work can be divided into field 
exploration – which involves finding depos-
its in new areas – and mine-site exploration, 
which is conducted in the vicinity of exist-
ing mines. 

Exploration involves prioritising, iden-
tifying and testing areas through geological 
and geophysical surveys in order to find new 
mineral resources that can later be 
extracted. Lead times are long – it often 
takes between five and ten years from the 
initial surveys to actual mining operations 
− and numerous project ideas are required, 
because only a few will develop into produc-
ing mines. Levels of exploration activity 
often decline during periods when metal 
demand and prices fall, when mining com-
panies’ profitability also falls. This is partic-
ularly true of field exploration. 

FIELD EXPLORATION
Field exploration is conducted in order to 
find completely new deposits. The work can 
be divided into four overall phases: area 
selection, initial regional surveys, further 
local surveys, and test drilling. 

Area selection is based on fundamental 
geological information and the information 
about previous exploration activities that is 
available from the authorities and in data-
bases. This information is used to select 
areas on the basis of their geological poten-
tial, mineralisation type and environmen-
tal and other limitations. An exploration 
licence issued by national authorities is 
required before exploration work can begin. 

Once the licence is obtained, regional 
surveys begin. Large areas can be surveyed 
relatively quickly with the aid of aerial sur-
veys that measure the physical properties of 
the bedrock, such as magnetic fields, elec-
tromagnetic fields and gamma radiation. 
Soil strata are subjected to geochemical 
sampling, which looks for traces of miner-
als and metals from the surrounding bed-
rock. 

Areas of interest are then referred for 
local surveys. These surveys use a range of 

techniques to perform measurements that 
offer a considerably greater wealth of detail 
and involve analysing and interpreting large 
amounts of data. Test drilling, which is the 
final and most costly phase of exploration 
work, then begins in areas of particular 
interest, and involves extracting what are 
known as drill cores from the rock. These 
drill cores are then analysed by geologists 
and stored in drill core archives. The drill 
holes can also be subjected to geophysical 
investigation, i.e. the physical properties in 
the bedrock around the drill hole are meas-
ured. 

MINE-SITE EXPLORATION
Mine-site exploration uses the same meth-
ods as field exploration.

The purpose of mine-site exploration is 
to find new mineral deposits in the vicinity 
of existing mines or mining areas, in order 
to extend their productive lifespans. There 
are several advantages to mine-site explora-
tion, one of the biggest being that the time 
between discovery of a find and production 
can be shortened because the new deposit is 
located in the vicinity of a producing mine 
that already has a concentrator and impor-
tant infrastructure in place. The latter often 
reduces the need for capital investment too.

MINING OPERATIONS
Extensive technical and economic analyses 
and calculations are conducted in relation 
to the deposit before any decision to begin 
mining operations is taken. This work is 
done in several stages and is essential if a 
mineral resource is to be classified as a min-
eral reserve that can be mined and pro-
cessed in accordance with the company’s 
profitability requirements. 

A mineral reserve calculation, as it is known, is carried out 
every year. For details of Boliden’s mineral reserve calculations 
for 2011, see pages 90–94. 

Kristofer Lundqvist takes samples in the 
Boliden Area, where exploration successes 
resulted in increases in mineral reserves  
and mineral resources in 2011. 
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Boliden’s exploration work aims to iden-
tify ores that contain zinc, copper and pre-
cious metals and its focus is on mine-site 
exploration and field exploration in Swe-
den and Ireland. We are currently con-
ducting over 50 active exploration projects. 

The goal is to add mineral resources 
that enable mineral reserves correspond-
ing to at least ten years’ production in 
every mining area to be secured. Increased 
investments in exploration since 2003 have 
resulted in the lifespans of both Garpen-
berg and Aitik now being extended to 
approximately 20 years. The Boliden Area 
is close to achieving this goal, while Tara’s 
mineral reserves, at present, correspond to 
seven years’ production. 

Boliden also invests in field exploration 
in order to be able to open new mines in 
the longer term. Field exploration is cur-
rently being carried out in Sweden and Ire-
land.

Boliden’s exploration experience 
stretches back to the 1920s, and today’s 
exploration organisation is integrated with 
the technology and environmental staff 
functions and with the mining operations, 
helping to ensure a wide range of skills and 
efficient project development. Boliden has 
been conducting its own technology devel-
opment in-house for a number of years 
now in such areas as geophysical measur-
ing instruments. One example of this 
development work, and one that has 

meant a great deal for the operations, is the 
drill hole probe that was developed in the 
1980s and which measures electromagnetic 
fields around the drill holes. Another 
important piece of technology developed 

in-house in 2002 is the EM34 technology 
which uses electromagnetic measurement 
to detect electrical conductors (ores often 
conduct electricity) at depths of up to 
1,000 metres.

Boliden’s exploration

FROM EXPLORATION TO MINE

THE MOST IMPORTANT EXPLORATION AREAS

Exploration

Geological potential Mineral resources Mineral reserves

Number of project  
ideas: 10,000 1,000 30 6

Mining and concentration technology

Area selection and 
 prioritisation of  
project ideas

Evaluation and 
 selection of project 
and project areas

Testing and  
detailed surveys

Valuation of 
mineral resource

Concept  
study 

Profitability  
study

Final  
evaluation

Decision on 
production

1

3
4

2

1

2

5

6
7

8

9

SWEDEN
1. Norrbotten incl. Aitik – Cu, Au, Mo
2. The Boliden Area – Zn, Cu, Pb, Au, Ag
3. Dorotea – Zn, Cu, Ag
4. Along the western mountain range – Zn, Pb
5. Bergslagen incl. Garpenberg – Zn, Cu, Pb, Ag

IRELAND
6. Tara – Zn, Pb
7. Strokestown & Slievedart – Zn, Pb 
8. Tullamore – Zn, Pb
9. Limerick – Zn, Pb
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MINES

CONCENTRATION
The ore is crushed in several stages in the concentrator. Different minerals are then separated 
out from one another and from waste rock through a variety of concentration methods, of 
which flotation is the most common for base metals. 

MINING ORE 
The mining takes place in open-pit mines when the ore body is located close to the surface and in 
underground mines when the ore is located at greater depth. 

Rock crusher for crushing ore before it is trans-
ported by conveyor belt up out of the open-pit mine 
to the concentrator. 

Open-pit mine

Underground mine

Waste rock dump for storage of waste rock (rock 
that contains no valuable minerals).

Trucks haul ore and waste rock on ramps in the 
open-pit mine.

The ore is mined in horizontal slices, known as 
benches.

Shaft for transporting ore and personnel.

Mined out ore body.

Ore body

Main ramp, or drift/gallery, for transports within 
the mine.

Mine stope.

Workshop for equipment maintenance and repair.

Portal, or access ramp, to reach the ore body.

Rock crusher for crushing ore before it is trans-
ported up out of the underground mine. 
Skip station where crushed ore is loaded for trans-
port to the concentrator.

Tailings ponds
The tailings sand is deposited in large,  
dam-like structures known as tailings ponds.

Primary and secondary 
mills
Mills grind the crushed 
ore. The milling is carried 
out in two phases to pro-
duce sand with a grain size 
of up to 250 micrometres.

Flotation
The sand is carried to open 
throughput tanks, where chemi-
cals are added and air injected, 
causing different types of mineral 
to float up, forming a froth on the 
surface. non-mineral-bearing 
particles (tailings sand) collect on 
the bottom of the tank and are 
transported to tailings ponds. 

Dewatering and 
 filtering
The mineral froth is 
gathered up, dewa-
tered and filtered.

Crushed ore
Crushed ore contain-
ing zinc, copper and 
subsidiary metals.

Metal concentrate
The end result is zinc 
concentrate that 
contains approxi-
mately 50% zinc, or 
copper concentrate 
that contains 
approximately 25% 
copper. 

25% Cu
50% Zn

The concentrator processes the mined ore to pro-
duce metal concentrate (see illustration below). 
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Boliden’s mines produce ores with rela-
tively high metal grades, with the excep-
tion of Aitik where the copper grade is low. 
The mines primarily contain complex 
polymetallic ores. This means that the 
geometry of the deposits is uneven and 
that they contain several different metals 
which, in turn, demands more in terms of 
mining technique and concentration pro-
cess. Over the years, Boliden has devel-
oped and refined its mine design, extrac-
tion methods and concentration processes, 
e.g. by increasing levels of automation. 
This is an important reason for the mines’ 
high levels of productivity and cost-effec-
tiveness, from an international standpoint. 
The relative cost position of the Tara zinc 
mine is adversely affected by the fact that 
the mine contains no valuable subsidiary 
metals, with the exception of lead. 
Boliden’s mines are located in northern 
Europe, far from growth markets, making 

cost-effective production even more 
important if Boliden’s competitiveness is 
to be maintained. 

The mine design is vital if extraction 
methods and processes are to be effective. 
The design stage involves determining how 
production is to be planned, the infrastruc-
ture and logistics set-up, and the way in 
which the ore transports will be organised. 
Boliden employs a variety of different 
extraction methods in its underground 
mines, depending on the size of the ore 
body. The Aitik open-pit mine works with 
large scale extraction, in which large vol-
umes and high levels of automation ensure 
high levels of productivity, thereby com-
pensating for low metal grades. 

The grinding in Boliden’s concentrators 
is based on so-called autogenous grinding, 
in which larger chunks of ore are used to 
grind the ore down into fine sand. The 
advantages of this approach include a bet-

ter metal yield from the flotation process, 
greater energy efficiency, and lower costs, 
because unlike in traditional grinding, 
grinding balls are not needed. Boliden is a 
world-leader in this grinding technique, 
which demands a highly advanced process 
control. 

In Europe, far-reaching legislation and 
regulations with regard to the external 
environment and the work environment 
have been in force for a long time now.
Boliden has been working for many years 
to improve the work environment in its 
mines, reduce their environmental impact, 
and increase the efficiency of their energy 
consumption. All of Boliden’s mines have 
certified management systems for the envi-
ronment and the work environment (ISO 
14001 and OHSAS 18001).

The market for metal concentrates − the 
mines’ end product − is a global one. The 
bases for the mines’ income are the base 
metal prices that are set daily on the Lon-
don Metal Exchange (LME) and the pre-
cious metal prices that are set by the Lon-
don Bullion Market Association (LBMA). 
These prices are controlled by the global 
supply of and demand for base and pre-
cious metals. The increased demand for 
metals from China and other populous 
countries has resulted in increases in base 
metal prices in recent years. The metal 
price trend is also affected by the supply of 
metal concentrates from the world’s mines 

and if mines are to be willing to invest in 
future production, they need prices that 
compensate for their investments in explo-
ration, the risk associated with growth 
investments, and increased production 
costs. When metal prices fall, mines invest 
less in growth which, in turn, reduces the 
concentrate supply in the medium term. 

A number of factors affect a mine’s 
income. Concentrates with a higher pay-
able metal content and only smaller 
amounts of impurities yield higher 
income. A high percentage of valuable by-
products, such as gold and silver, also has 
a positive effect on income and competi-

tiveness. Treatment and refining charges 
(TC/RC)*, i.e. the payment received by 
the smelters for refining the raw material 
into finished metals, also have an effect. 
For a given metal price, lower TC/RC 
means that the mine’s income increases 
because TC/RC comprise a deduction 
from the metal price and hence define the 
purchase prices paid by the smelters. See 
page 108 to find out more about income 
components. 

*  Refining charges (RC) refer to the final stage in the copper 
smelters’ refining of copper, gold and silver metal. The zinc 
smelters’ processes do not include a corresponding refining 
stage and RC is consequently not a component of the zinc 
smelters’ income. 

Boliden’s mines

Market and income components

Free metals

TC/RC
Smelters’ share of 
the metal value

Mines’ share of the 
metal value
(after deductions for 
TC/RC and impurities)

Metals in 
 concentrates

HOW THE METAL VALUE IS DIVIDED BETWEEN 
MINES AND SMELTERS (not according to scale)

Payable metals
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SMELTERS

ZINC SMELTERS 
The zinc smelting process comprises five general stages. Zinc production is energy-intensive 
and energy costs account for approximately 30–35 per cent of operating costs − in compari-
son with 15–20 per cent for a copper smelter. 

Metal concentrate
Metal concentrate from 
mines usually com-
prises approximately 50 
per cent zinc. 

Solution purification
The zinc solution is 
purified in three stages 
to remove any copper, 
cobalt, nickel and cad-
mium content, after 
which it contains 
approximately 150 
grams of zinc per litre 
of solution.

Roasting
The concentrate is 
roasted in a furnace in 
order to remove all sul-
phur dioxide. The 
result is what is known 
as calcine, which com-
prises approximately 
60 per cent zinc. The 
so-called direct leach-
ing method enables the 
roasting stage to be 
eliminated. 

Electrowinning
The zinc is separated 
out of the solution 
using electrical current 
and then adheres to 
cathode plates. The 
result is zinc cathodes 
with a zinc content of 
around 99.995 per 
cent. 

Leaching 
The calcine is leached 
with sulphuric acid in 
order to precipitate out 
and filter off the iron 
content. The result is a 
zinc sulphate solution 
with small amounts  
of impurities.

Casting
The zinc cathodes are 
smelted in electrical 
furnaces and then cast 
to form zinc ingots. 
The ingots are sold as is 
or alloyed in line with 
specific customer 
requirements.

Metal concentrate 
Metal concentrate from 
mines usually com-
prises approximately 25 
per cent copper. 

Anode furnace and 
casting plant
The blister copper is 
further processed in  
an anode furnace to 
reduce the oxygen con-
tent. This increases the 
purity level to 98–99 
per cent and the copper 
is then cast to form 
anodes. 

Smelting
The smelting takes 
place in various differ-
ent types of furnaces, 
depending on the raw 
material and process 
technology. An upper 
layer of slag and a lower 
one of copper matte, 
which has a copper 
content of approxi-
mately 55 per cent, 
form in the furnace. 

Electrolytic Refining
The anodes are placed in 
tanks with steel cathode 
plates. Chemical solu-
tions and electrical cur-
rent cause the anodes to 
dissolve and the copper 
ions to migrate to the 
steel plates. The cathodes 
are then stripped from 
the steel plates and 
washed, after which they 
are ready for delivery.

Converting
The copper matte is tapped into a 
converter where iron and other 
impurities, together with sulphur, 
are separated out. The converter is 
also charged with metal scrap and 
smelted electronic scrap, known  
as black copper, using the same 
 process as for metal concentrate. 
The result is known as blister cop-
per, and contains 97–98 per cent 
copper.

Precious metals plant
Other metals, such as gold, 
silver, palladium and plati-
num, which have fallen 
down to the bottom of the 
electrolysis tanks, are 
refined. 

Cu 25%

SO2

SO2

Sulphur products plant
The process gases, primar-
ily sulphur dioxide, are 
ducted away to the sul-
phur products plant for 
the production of sulphu-
ric acid and other sulphur 
products. 

99.99%

COPPER SMELTERS 
Copper smelters have no uniform process in that they often specialise in handling 
specific raw materials and their processes are tailored in line therewith. Processes 
such as smelting and converting are, however, a common denominator. These pro-
cesses take place at extremely high temperatures and often comprise a substantial 
part of the overall refining process.

Zn 50%

SO2

Fe Cu, Co, Ni, Cd

99,995%
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SMELTERS’ GROSS PROFITS, 
EXCLUDING BY-PRODUCTS**  
(not according to scale)

**  Smelters, particularly copper smelters, also produce a 
 number of by-products, such as sulphuric acid, aluminium 
fluoride, sulphur dioxide and palladium concentrate. 

Regional metal premium

Free metals

TC/RC

Payable  
metal value

The smelters’ 
gross profit

Boliden’s smelters

Boliden’s smelters enjoy a strong market 
position in Europe. They are very much on 
the cutting edge in terms of technological 
development and have gradually increased 
both their environmental performance 
and their ability to handle several differ-
ent types of raw material. All of the smelt-
ers have certified management systems for 
quality, the environment and work envi-
ronment (ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and 
OHSAS 18001).

Kokkola is one of the world’s most pro-
ductive zinc smelters. Both Kokkola and 
Odda use the in-house developed direct 
leaching method, which enables the roast-
ing stage of the overall process to be elim-
inated. Direct leaching also enables less 
pure zinc concentrate to be processed − 
something that can often be achieved on 
advantageous market terms. 

The zinc smelters work in partnership 
with customers to develop alloys that 
improve the properties of the refined prod-

ucts and/or increase the efficiency of the 
customers’ processes. This strengthens the 
customer relationships and generates 
higher metal premiums. 

Boliden’s copper smelters in general, 
and Rönnskär in particular, can handle 
numerous different types of raw material. 
Rönnskär has two furnaces for smelting 
copper concentrate, a Kaldo furnace that 
alternates between smelting electronic 
scrap and lead concentrate, a Kaldo fur-
nace for precious metal production, and a 
fuming plant for extracting zinc from slag 
and steel mill dust. The use of Kaldo tech-
nology for recycling electronic scrap has 
made Boliden a world-leader in the field 
and Rönnskär’s ongoing expansion, which 
includes the installation of yet another 
Kaldo furnace, will make Boliden the 
world’s biggest player in this field. Harja-
valta smelts not only copper concentrate, 
but nickel on a tolling basis. Boliden also 
has a lead smelter, Bergsöe, which pro-

duces lead, using recycled batteries as its 
main raw material. 

Kokkola, Rönnskär and Bergsöe are all 
competitive in the market, but Odda, 
where an action programme has been put 
in place to improve production stability, is 
slightly weaker on this front. The location 
within Europe, far from today’s growth 
markets for metal, constitutes a slight 
long-term competitive disadvantage for 
some of the units. 

All of the copper concentrate produced 
in Boliden’s mines is delivered to 
Rönnskär, but the smelters also obtain raw 
materials from external suppliers. The abil-
ity to process several different types of raw 
material reduces, to some extent, the expo-
sure to the global copper concentrate mar-
ket, which has been characterised in recent 
years by a shortage of concentrate and 
weak treatment terms. 

The smelters sell the finished metal at the 
LME price plus a regional metal premium. 
The smelters also receive remuneration in 
the form of treatment and refining charges 
(TC/RC)* for processing the metal con-
centrate. TC/RC are paid by the mines by 
means of a deduction from the concentrate 
price. The zinc smelters’ income is also 
affected by price-sharing clauses, which 
mean that changes in the metals’ market 
prices are shared between the mines and 
the smelters. TC/RC and price sharing 
clause levels are determined by the balance 
between global mined production and the 
smelters’ demand for raw materials. 

The smelters’ income is also, in addition 
to TC/RC and price sharing terms, affected 
by the volume of free metals in production, 

i.e. the metal production that occurs over 
and above the payable metal in the raw 
material. Just as with the price sharing 
terms, it is the current metal prices that 
determine the value of free metals. 

The metal premiums are negotiated on 
an individual customer basis and are 
affected by the regional balance between 
metal supply and demand. See page 108 to 
find out more about income components.

*  Refining charges (RC) refer to the final stage in the copper smelt-
ers’ refining of copper, gold and silver metal. The zinc smelters’ 
processes do not include a corresponding refining stage and RC 
is consequently not a component of the zinc smelters’ income.

Market and income components
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How to interpret Boliden’s figures

Boliden’s operating profits are reported by Business Area Mines and Business Area Smelters. Explora-
tion operations are classified as part of Mines. Transactions between the Business Areas are settled at 
market price. This presentation provides a brief summary of Boliden’s results and profit performance at 
Business Area and Group level. The full and audited results are presented in the Directors’ Report, the 
accounts and the notes to the accounts on pages 22–88. 

BOLIDEn HåLLBARHETSREDOvISnInG 2011

MINES’ REVENUES are affected by metal prices, 
exchange rates, TC/RC, and metal price and 
exchange rate hedging. 

SMELTERS’ REVENUES are affected by metal pri-
ces and metal premiums, which are paid over and 
above the LME prices. The smelters’ sales of a num-
ber of by-products are also an important part of the 
revenues. The results of metal price and exchange 
rate hedging are also included in this figure. 

THE GROSS PROFIT is made up of metal premiums, 
treatment charges and income from free metals and 
by-products. It comprises the difference between 
what the smelters pay for the raw material and the 
sales revenues. 

THE OPERATING PROFIT is affected, in addition to 
the factors above, by metal grades and production 
volumes, the metal yield during the concentration 
process, TC/RC* levels, and the operating costs 
trend. 

THE OPERATING PROFIT comprises the gross pro-
fit minus the operating costs. The most important 
cost items for the smelters are those in connection 
with energy, personnel and external services, which 
are largely affected by maintenance of the facilities. 
The operating profit is shown both including and exclu-
ding the revaluation of the smelters’ process invento-
ries. Excluding the effect of process inventory revalua-
tion provides a better picture of the underlying trend. 

OTHER AND ELIMINATIONS includes Group staff 
functions and Group-wide functions, and the elimina-
tion of profits on intra-Group sales.

BUSINESS AREA MINES, SEK M 2011 2010

Revenues 10,279 9,580

Operating profit 3,913 4,113

Investments 2,338 2,189

Capital employed 14,272 13,501

BUSINESS AREA SMELTERS, SEK M 2011 2010

Revenues 38,471 34,390

Gross profit excl. revaluation  
of process inventory 7,160 7,158

Operating profit excl. revaluation  
of process inventory 1,051 1,134

Operating profit 790 1,946

Investments 1,674 804

Capital employed 16,213 14,225

OTHER AND ELIMINATIONS, SEK M 2011 2010

Revenues –8,427 –7,254

Operating profit other 45 –416

Of which internal profit eliminations 119 –332

Investments 33 3

Capital employed –12 –575

THE GROUP, SEK M 2011 2010

Revenues 40,323 36,716

Operating profit 4,748 5,643

Operating profit excl. revaluation  
of process inventory 5,008 4,830

Investments 4,045 2,996

Capital employed 30,473 27,151

*Treatment and refining charges. For further information on TC/RC, see page 108. 
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REVENUES ROSE by 7 per cent due to higher average prices in SEK for Boliden’s metals, 
with the exception of zinc. THE OPERATING PROFIT FELL by 5 per cent as a result of higher 
costs and lower profits on hedging activities. The volume and price effects were positive, but 
exchange rate trends had a negative effect on the profit. 

REVENUES ROSE by 12 per cent as a result of higher metal prices in SEK (with the exception 
of zinc), higher volumes and improved prices for by-products, such as sulphuric acid.

THE GROSS PROFIT for the smelters remained unchanged. Treatment charges fell, while 
metal premiums and the income from free metals and by-products increased. 

THE OPERATING PROFIT excluding the revaluation of process inventory fell by 7 per cent. 
Higher prices and volumes had a positive effect on the operating profit, while the combined 
effect of lower treatment charges, higher costs and a negative exchange rate trend meant 
that the overall result was lower.

OTHER OPERATING PROFIT AND ELIMINATIONS. Changes in internal profit eliminations 
affected the Group’s profit by SEK 452 million in comparison with the previous year. The diffe-
rence is due to the fact that a correction was made in 2010 to a previous incorrect valuation 
of inventories totalling SEK –119 million, and to the fact that unusually high stocks of internally 
supplied concentrates remained unprocessed by the smelters at the end of the previous year. 
Internal profit elimination in these stocks accounts for almost the entire remaining effect on 
this line.

OTHER CAPITAL EMPLOYED primarily comprises internal profit elimination and market 
valuation of price hedges (up until the point when these hedges’ underlying flows are reflected 
in the Income Statement). The major elimination item in 2010 relates to stock development 
and the internal profit elimination described above.

INVESTMENTS INCREASED as a result of the expansion projects at Garpenberg, Kankberg 
and Rönnskär.
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GARPENBERG 
EXPANSION 
 
The Garpenberg deposits were first worked 
back in the 15th century, making Garpenberg 
the oldest mine in Sweden that is still opera-
tional. In January 2011, a decision was taken 
to substantially expand the mine’s operations. 
The investment will total SEK 3.9 billion and 
will increase ore production from 1.4 to 2.5 
million tonnes per year. The new facilities will 
be commissioned in 2014 and full capacity will 
be achieved at the end of 2015. 
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Market trends

Demand for Boliden’s main metals, zinc and copper, is driven pri-
marily by demand from the automotive and construction indus-
tries, with the emphasis on infrastructural projects. China is cur-
rently the biggest market for base metals. Industrial activity levels 
in mature economies grew strongly during the first half of the year 
but levelled off successively thereafter. Automotive production 
increased in major producing countries, such as Germany and the 
USA, but fell in Japan. Construction investments in mature econ-
omies showed a weak developmental trend, with the exception of a 
few countries, but investment levels stabilised towards the end of 
the year at a low level in most countries. Industrial growth rates 
were high in emerging economies in 2011, but were slightly lower 
during the latter half of the year than the first. Automotive produc-
tion rose in China and other emerging economies, but the growth 
rate levelled off towards the end of the year. The growth in the con-
struction and industrial sectors’ investments in China remained 
high. 

ZINC
Global consumption of zinc metal is estimated to have totalled 
approximately 12.5 million tonnes in 2011, corresponding to an 
increase of approximately 4 per cent in comparison with 2010. Con-
sumption increased by approximately 2 per cent in mature econo-
mies and by approximately 5 per cent in emerging economies. 

Global metal production by zinc smelters in 2011 totalled approx-
imately 12.8 million tonnes, corresponding to an increase of approx-
imately 1 per cent in comparison with 2010. Production fell by 
approximately 1 per cent in mature economies, while in emerging 
economies, it rose by approximately 1 per cent. 

Global mined production of zinc metal concentrate increased 
by approximately 3 per cent in comparison with 2010. 

Global official zinc stocks at LME and the Shanghai Futures 
Exchange (SHFE) increased during the year by 17 per cent to 
approximately 1.2 million tonnes at the end of 2011, corresponding 
to approximately 35 days’ global consumption. 

COPPER
Global consumption of copper metal is estimated to have increased 
by approximately 3 per cent in comparison with 2010 to around 19.2 
million tonnes. Consumption fell by approximately 2 per cent in 
mature economies, but increased by 7 per cent in emerging econo-
mies. China’s consumption increased by 6 per cent. 

Global production of copper metal by smelters and refineries is 
estimated to have remained unchanged in comparison with 2010, 
totalling approximately 18.8 million tonnes. Production fell by 
approximately 2 per cent in mature economies but increased by 
approximately 5 per cent in developing countries, including an 11 
per cent increase in China. 

Global mined production of copper metal concentrate fell by 
approximately 3 per cent in comparison with 2010. The fall was a 
result of, among other things, the lower production figures for a few 
of the larger mines due to lower grades and strikes. Production in 
Asia is estimated to have fallen by 7 per cent, primarily as a conse-
quence of one of the world’s biggest mines being non-productive 
for an extended period of time. Production remained unchanged 
in Europe but rose in North America by approximately 14 per cent, 
by approximately 3 per cent in Australia, and by approximately 1 
per cent in Africa. 

Global official stock levels at LME, the Shanghai Futures 
Exchange (SHFE) and Comex fell during the year by just under 4 
per cent to 550,000 tonnes. Stock levels at the end of 2011 corre-
sponded to 11 days’ global copper consumption. 

SULPHURIC ACID
Sulphuric acid is a by-product of the smelting process (primarily at 
copper smelters) and is mainly used in the artificial fertiliser, pulp, 
mining and petrochemical industries. Sulphuric acid must be stored 
in special tanks and it is vital, therefore, that smelters have an out-
let for their sulphuric acid production, which presupposes a balance 
between demand for metal and sulphuric acid. 

Demand for sulphuric acid increased in northern Europe dur-
ing the year as a result of higher production in several of Boliden’s 
important customer segments, and the pricing level for 2011 as a 

PRICE AND STOCK TREND − ZINC

The price of zinc fell in 2011 but the aver-
age price was in line with 2010. Zinc 
stocks increased by 17%. 
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PRICE AND STOCK TREND − COPPER

The price of copper fell in 2011 but the aver-
age price for the year was higher than in 
2010. Copper stocks fell by 4%.

PRICE AND STOCK TREND − LEAD

The price of lead fell in 2011 but the aver-
age price for the year was higher than in 
2010. Lead stocks increased by 69%. 

 Stocks (LME and SHFE)  Price (LME)
 
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

 Stocks (LME, SHFE and Comex)  Price (LME)
 
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

 Stocks (LME)  Price (LME)
 
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream 

24 BOLIDEn AnnuAL REPORT 2011

MARKET TREnDS



whole was higher than in the previous year. The market price in 
Europe rose to an average level of just over EUR 90 per tonne, cor-
responding to an increase of just over 60 per cent in comparison 
with 2010. 

LEAD
A considerable percentage of global led consumption is met using 
recycled metal and changes in the mined production of lead conse-
quently have only a minor effect on the market balance, unlike with 
other base metals. 

Global demand for lead metal is estimated to have increased by 
approximately 3 per cent in comparison with 2010. The production 
of batteries for new vehicles has increased as a result of the global 
increase in automotive production. Deliveries of lead batteries for 
new vehicles are estimated to have increased more rapidly than those 
for the replacement market. Global metal production by smelters 
is estimated to have increased by approximately 4 per cent and 

smelter production continued to be slightly higher than metal con-
sumption levels. 

The supply of lead metal concentrate from mines tracks, to some 
extent, the mined production of zinc as lead is a subsidiary metal 
for many mines. Global mined production is estimated to have 
increased by approximately 8 per cent during the year. 

Global official stock levels increased during the year by 69 per 
cent to approximately 352,000 tonnes. Stock levels at the end of 2011 
corresponded to 13 days’ global consumption of lead. 

GOLD
The intense interest in gold as an in investment remained intact in 
2011, driven by concerns about global economic development, a 
weak US dollar, and relatively low interest rates. A gold price of USD 
1,920 per ounce was noted in September 2011 − the highest price 
ever recorded. The price of gold has risen as the metal has become 
increasingly important as an asset class among financial investors. 

GLOBAL METAL MARKET BALANCE – ZINC 

The zinc metal surplus declined in 2011 in comparison with 
2010.

GLOBAL CONCENTRATE MARKET BALANCE − ZINC

Global mined production of zinc was largely balanced by 
demand for zinc concentrate in 2011. 

GLOBAL METAL MARKET BALANCE − COPPER

Global demand for copper slightly exceeded production in 
2011, resulting in a reduced copper shortfall.

GLOBAL CONCENTRATE MARKET BALANCE – COPPER  

Global mined production of copper fell slightly short of 
demand for copper concentrate in 2011, resulting in a minor 
concentrate shortfall.
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SILVER
Silver consumption by the manufacturing and jewellery industries 
is estimated to have increased by approximately 4 per cent in 2011. 
The supply of silver from mines and recycling is estimated to have 
remained unchanged since 2010, but continued to exceed consump-
tion. The importance of silver as a financial asset class has, in com-
mon with that of gold, increased and the supply surplus is, there-
fore, estimated to have been more than balanced by financial 
players. The price of silver rose sharply in 2011. 

METAL PRICES IN USD
Boliden’s revenues are affected by the global market prices of base 
and precious metals, which are set in USD. Base metals are traded 
daily on the London Metal Exchange (LME), while the price of pre-
cious metals is set daily by the London Bullion Market Association 
(LBMA). The prices for all of Boliden’s metals rose in 2011 in com-
parison with 2010, with the biggest price rises seen for precious met-
als in general and silver in particular. 

AVERAGE PRICES IN 
USD (LME/LBMA) 2011 2010 CHANGE % 

Zinc (uSD/tonne) 2,191 2,159 1

Copper (uSD/tonne) 8,811 7,539 17

Lead (uSD/tonne) 2,398 2,148 12

Gold (uSD/troy oz.) 1,573 1,227 28

Silver (uSD/troy oz.) 35.12 20.19 74

METAL PRICES IN SEK
Converted to SEK, the average prices of copper, lead, gold and sil-
ver rose, but the increases were moderated by a weaker USD in 2011 
than in 2010. In SEK, the average price of zinc fell by 8 per cent. 

AVERAGE PRICES IN 
SEK (LME/LBMA) 2011 2010 CHANGE % 

Zinc (SEK/tonne) 14,232 15,554 –8

Copper (SEK/tonne) 57,244 54,320 5

Lead (SEK/tonne) 15,578 15,473 1

Gold (SEK/troy oz.) 10,221 8,838 16

Silver (SEK/troy oz.) 228.17 145.49 57

EXCHANGE RATES
Boliden’s revenues and costs of raw materials bought in are largely 
in USD, while other costs are primarily in SEK, EUR and NOK, 
and the USD exchange rate trend consequently has a significant 
impact on the Group’s results. The USD was, on average, weaker 
against the SEK, EUR and NOK in 2011 than in 2010. 

EXCHANGE RATES 
(AVERAGE) 2011 2010 CHANGE % 

uSD/SEK 6.50 7.20 –10 

EuR/uSD 1.39 1.32 5 

EuR/SEK 9.03 9.54 –5 

uSD/nOK 5.61 6.05 –7 

PRICE TREND FOR GOLD AND SILVER 

The price of gold rose by 12% in 2011, while 
the price of silver fell by 8%. The average silver 
price was, however, 74% higher than in 2010. 
uSD/oz uSD/oz

TREATMENT CHARGES − ZINC

Spot treatment charges for zinc remained 
low, despite reduced demand for mined 
concentrate towards the end of 2011.
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EXCHANGE RATE TRENDS

The uSD was, on average, weaker against 
the SEK and EuR in 2011 than in 2010.
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CONCENTRATE MARKET TRENDS
The balance between the supply of concentrate from the world’s 
mines and the smelters’ demand for mined concentrate determines 
the trend in treatment charges, which are the payments smelters 
receive in order to refine the concentrate into saleable metals. 

Treatment charges − zinc
Global demand for zinc metal increased in 2011. Smelters’ produc-
tion increased at the beginning of the year and this, coupled with 
what was only a weak increase in mined production, resulted in a 
shortage of concentrate. This, in turn, resulted in a fall in treatment 
charges on the spot market. The surplus of metal on the global mar-
ket resulted, during the latter half of the year, in the smelting indus-
try’s demand for concentrate falling below the amount being pro-
duced by the mining industry and in a surplus arising in China. 
Spot market treatment charges remained low, however. 

Realised contractual treatment charges were higher than spot 
market treatment charges in 2011. The annual treatment charge 
negotiations for 2011 resulted in benchmark contracts with a price 
level that was lower than in the previous year. The price sharing 
clause in place between mines and smelters resulted in realised treat-
ment charges falling during the latter half of the year when the price 
of zinc fell. Realised treatment charges in benchmark contracts fell 
by just over 15 per cent in comparison with 2010 as a whole. 

Treatment and refining charges − copper
Global demand for copper increased in 2011. Global production of 
copper metal fell short of demand due to a shortage of mined con-
centrate. The supply of mined concentrate was affected by factors 

such as lower grades and a number of strikes in several large mines. 
The shortage of concentrate led to a fall in spot market treatment 
charges to levels below those of the benchmark annual contracts for 
2011. The benchmark contract figures negotiated for 2011 were USD 
56 per tonne of concentrate in treatment charges and USc 5.6 per 
pound in refining charges, in comparison with USD 46.5 and USc 
4.65, respectively, for 2010. The benchmark level negotiated at the 
end of June saw an increase in the treatment charge and the refin-
ing charge to USD 85 and USc 8.5, respectively. 

Metal premiums
Boliden’s main metals − zinc and copper − are primarily sold to 
industrial customers in Europe. The regional balance between metal 
consumption and smelter capacity determines the level of the metal 
premiums paid by industrial customers in addition to the metal 
price. 

Zinc
The European contract premiums for zinc rose in comparison with 
2010. Spot market premiums in Europe remained stable at around 
USD 130 per tonne of metal throughout 2011. 

Copper
European contract premiums for copper rose in comparison with 
2010 to around USD 98 per tonne of metal. Spot market premiums 
in Europe were, however, lower than the contract premiums and 
lower than in 2010. 
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TREATMENT AND REFINING CHARGES − COPPER

Treatment and refining charges fell on the 
spot market as a result of the shortage of 
copper concentrate, particularly during the 
first six months of 2011. 
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SPOT METAL PREMIUMS IN EUROPE − ZINC

Spot premiums remained stable at around 
uSD 130 per tonne of metal in 2011.

METAL PREMIUMS IN EUROPE − COPPER

Spot premiums fell in 2011 as a result of reduced 
demand for copper in mature economies. 
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Financial performance

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Revenues, SEK m 40,323 36,716

Operating costs, SEK m 10,575 9,833

Depreciation, SEK m 1,937 1,802

Operating profit, SEK m 4,748 5,643

Operating profit excl. revaluation of 
process inventory, SEK m 5,008 4,830

Free cash flow, SEK m –3 3,202

Return on capital employed, % 17 21

Return on shareholders' equity, % 17 23

net debt/equity ratio, % 29 24

REVENUES
Boliden’s revenues increased by 10 per cent to SEK 40,323 million 
(SEK 36,716 m). The increase is attributable to price increases in SEK 
for all metals, with the exception of zinc. Volumes have also 
increased for several products.

OPERATING PROFIT
The operating profit totalled SEK 4,748 million (SEK 5,643 m). The 
revaluation of the smelters’ process inventory had a negative effect 
on the profit of SEK 261 million (SEK 812 m). If the revaluation is 
excluded, the operating profit improved by 4 per cent to SEK 5,008 
million (SEK 4,830 m). 

Business Area Mines’ operating profit totalled SEK 3,913 million 
(SEK 4,113 m). 

The operating profit for Business Area Smelters totalled SEK 790 
million (SEK 1,946 m). If revaluation of process inventory is excluded, 
the operating profit totalled SEK 1,051 million (SEK 1,134 m). 

OPERATING PROFIT ANALYSIS, 
SEK M 2011 2010

Operating profit 4,748 5,643

Revaluation of process inventory –261 812

Operating profit excl. revaluation 
of process inventory 5,008 4,830

Change 178

Analysis of change

volume effect 483

Prices and terms 1,571

Metal prices and terms 1,906

Realised metal price and currency 
hedging* –175

TC/RC terms –258

Metal premiums 98

Exchange rate effects –1,220

 of which translation effects –58

Costs –928

Depreciation –160

Internal profit elimination 452

Other –20

Change 178

*Operating profit for resp. period 2011 2010

Realised metal price and currency 
hedging 326 501

Higher mined volumes of copper and increased volumes from sev-
eral of the smelters had a positive effect on the operating profit. 

The combined effect of changes to prices and terms totalled SEK 
1,571 million. The average price in USD for all metals has increased 
during the year and prices have also improved for the majority of 
by-products, such as sulphuric acid. Lower TC/RC have had a neg-
ative effect on the operating profit, while metal premiums have 
increased slightly. 

The USD has weakened against the SEK and the EUR by approx-
imately 10 per cent and just over 5 per cent, respectively, during the 
year. This had a negative effect on the operating profit of SEK 1,220 
million. 

The Group’s operating costs excluding depreciation totalled SEK 
10,575 million. Excluding depreciation and including provision for 
reclamation costs, the operating costs in local currencies increased 
by approximately 10 per cent in comparison with the previous year.
The cost increases during the year were primarily in respect of exter-
nal services, energy and personnel, which collectively account for 
approximately SEK 840 million of the increase. The cost trend for 
external services is primarily due to ongoing problems with crush-
ers at Aitik and other disruptions to production and maintenance 
shutdowns during the year. The cost increases are also due, in part, 
to higher production volumes, including preparations for the Kank-
berg start-up. 

Metal price and exchange rate hedging yielded a positive effect 
on the operating profit for the year as a whole of SEK 326 million 
(SEK 501 m), but in comparison with the previous year, the effect 
on the operating profit was negative to the tune of SEK 175 million. 

The operating profit includes a positive internal profit elimina-
tion of SEK 119 million (SEK –332 m). The difference between the 
two years is due partly to the correction made in 2010 to a previ-
ously incorrectly valued inventory of SEK –119 million. The remain-
ing difference is due to a profit elimination in 2010 of high stocks 
of internally supplied concentrates that the smelters have not yet 
processed. 

Boliden’s net financial items for the year totalled SEK –188 mil-
lion (SEK –312 m). The improvement is primarily due to interest on 
cartel fines of SEK –52 million being charged to the result for 2010. 
Net financial items were also positively affected by interest on cur-
rency futures. 

The profit before tax totalled SEK 4,560 million (SEK 5,331 m). 
Reported tax totalled SEK –1,171 million (SEK –1,374 m), yield-

ing a net profit of SEK 3,389 million (SEK 3,957 m), corresponding 
to earnings per share of SEK 12.39 (SEK 14.47). 

INVESTMENTS
Investments increased to SEK 4,045 million (SEK 2,996 m). Invest-
ments increased primarily as a result of the ongoing expansion pro-
jects at Rönnskär (increased electronic scrap recycling capacity), 
Kankberg and Garpenberg. Depreciation has primarily increased 
due to the fact that the new facility at Aitik has been operational 
throughout the year, which was not the case in 2010. 

Tangible fixed assets increased from SEK 20,888 million to SEK 
22,927 m. 
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INVESTMENTS, SEK M 2011 2010

Investments − Mines 2,338 2,189

Investments − Smelters 1,674 804

Total investments 4,045 2,996

Depreciation 1,937 1,802

CASH FLOW
The cash flow from operating activities before investments totalled 
SEK 4,021 million (SEK 6,197 m) in 2011. The operating capital 
increased by SEK 1,017 million (SEK 1,475 m), primarily due to 
higher stocks. The increase in working capital, a higher rate of 
investment, and significantly more tax paid collectively contributed 
to a deterioration in the free cash flow to SEK –3 million (SEK 3,202 
m). Tax paid for the year totalled SEK 1,540 million (SEK 197 m), 
with much of the increase attributable to tax for 2010.

CASH FLOW, SEK M 2011 2010

Cash flow from operating activities 
before changes in working capital  5,039 7,672

Changes in working capital  –1,017 –1,475

Cash flow from operating activities 4,021 6,197

Investments –4,045 –2,996

Other  20 1

Free cash flow (before financing)  –3 3,202

FINANCIAL POSITION
On 31st December 2011, Boliden’s net debt totalled SEK 6,063 mil-
lion (SEK 4,584 m). Shareholders’ equity totalled SEK 21,032 mil-
lion (SEK 18,846 m), including the net market valuation of currency, 
interest and raw materials derivatives totalling SEK 120 million 
(SEK –47 m) after tax. Boliden’s capital employed increased by SEK 
3,322 million to SEK 30,473 million (SEK 27,151 m).

The negative cash flow for the year resulted in a rise in the net 
debt and the net debt/equity ratio at the end of 2011 was 29 per cent 
(24%). 

The average term of Boliden’s total authorised credit limits was 
3.3 years (4.2 yrs.) at the end of the year. The average interest level 

on the debt portfolio on 31st December was 3.29 per cent (3.29%) 
and the fixed interest term was 1.0 years (2.0 yrs.). 

At the end of the year, Boliden’s current liquidity totalled SEK 
8,734 million (SEK 10,728 m), comprising liquid assets and unuti-
lised binding credit facilities with a term in excess of one year, less 
loans and commercial papers that mature within one year. 

For further information on Boliden’s debt portfolio, see Note 20 
on page 79. 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND 
RETURN 2011 2010

Balance Sheet total, SEK m 37,615 35,128

Capital employed, SEK m 30,473 27,151

Shareholders' equity, SEK m 21,032 18,846

net debt, SEK m 6,063 4,584

Return on capital employed, % 17 21

Return on shareholders' equity, % 17 23

Equity/assets ratio, % 56 54

net debt/equity ratio, % 29 24

THE PARENT COMPANY
The Parent Company conducts no operations and has no employ-
ees. The Income Statements and Balance Sheets for the Parent 
Company are shown on page 58. 

PRINCIPLES FOR REMUNERATION TO THE PRESIDENT 
AND OTHER SENIOR EXECUTIVES
Background
Boliden applies the total remuneration level principle, i.e. fixed sal-
ary, variable remuneration, pension benefits and other benefits, with 
the aim of being able to offer senior executives a competitive total 
remuneration package as part of our ability to attract and retain the 
most highly skilled individuals. Remuneration to senior executives 
is described in Note 1 on pages 65-66.

The President’s remuneration is proposed by the Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. The President 
proposes the remuneration levels for other senior executives to the 
Remuneration Committee, which approves them and then informs 
the Board of Directors. 

REVENUES AND OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit excl. the revaluation of 
process inventory increased by 4% as a result 
of increased production and higher prices. The 
uSD had a moderating effect on the increase. 
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EARNINGS PER SHARE AND DIVIDEND 
SHARE

Earnings per share decreased by 14%.
The proposed dividend share is 32%.
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BREAKDOWN OF OPERATING COSTS

Operating costs increased in local curren-
cies by approximately 10%, primarily as a 
result of higher costs for external services, 
energy and personnel. 

Write-downs & other,
13% (14%)

External  
services,
21% (19%)

Transport,  
5% (5%)

Personnel,  
26% (28%)

Energy, 18% (17%)

Consum- 
ables,

17% (18%)

 Income  Earnings per share  Dividend share
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FREE CASH FLOW

The free cash flow fell to SEK –3 million as  
a result of a reduced operating profit, an 
increase in working capital, a higher rate  
of investment and a substantial increase  
in tax paid. 
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INVESTMENTS AND CASH FLOW BEFORE 
INVESTMENTS 

The cash flow from operating activities 
before investments fell as a result of a 
reduced operating profit and increase in 
working capital.
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Guidelines
The remuneration to senior executives shall comprise a fixed salary, 
variable remuneration, pension benefits and other benefits. The 
individual’s total remuneration shall reflect his or her performance, 
responsibility and expertise. The senior executives shall undergo an 
annual salary review.

The variable remuneration component shall be linked to the 
individual in question’s principal sphere of responsibility and shall, 
primarily, comprise one or more financial parameters. The maxi-
mum variable remuneration shall be 60 per cent of the fixed annual 
salary for the President and 40−50 per cent of the same for other 
senior executives. 10 percentage points of this shall be conditional 
upon Boliden shares being purchased for the gross sum before tax.

Senior executives shall have a defined contribution pension solu-
tion and a retirement age of 65. 

The Board does not intend to propose any changes to these 
guidelines to the 2012 Annual General Meeting. 

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS − OPERATING PROFIT
The following table contains an estimation of the effect on the oper-
ating profit, before tax, of changes in market terms for the follow-
ing year. The effect is calculated on the basis of closing day prices 
on 31st December 2011 and is based on forecast metal sales. 

The sensitivity analysis does not take into account the effects of 
metal price and currency hedging or of the effect of process inven-
tory revaluation or contracted TC/RC. The analysis does not 
include assumptions regarding such factors as cost inflation, dis-
crepancies in production trends or macroeconomic conditions. 

The starting point for calculating the effects of a 10 per cent 
change in metal prices is the so-called “cash price” on LME on 31st 
December 2011. The corresponding starting point for changes in 
the value of USD is spot rates on the same date. The effect of changes 
to treatment and refining charges is based on changes in relation to 
the average level during the fourth quarter.

 Investments  Cash flow before investments 

Change in metal 
prices, +10%

Effect on operating 
profit, SEK m

Change in  
USD, +10%

Effect on operating 
profit, SEK m

Change in  
TC/RC, +10%

Effect on operating 
profit, SEK m

Copper 440 uSD/SEK 1,020 TC/RC Copper 50

Zinc 415 EuR/uSD 335 TC Zinc 45

Lead 90 uSD/nOK 75 TC Lead –10

Gold 170

Silver 150
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Financial goals and goal fulfilment

Boliden operates in a cyclic and capital-intensive industry where long-term value generation is achieved 
through improvements in productivity, a high level of cost control, and investments in profitable new 
 production. Stable processes and financial stability are vital to sustainable growth and long-term value 
generation. Boliden has three externally communicated financial goals: return on capital employed, net 
debt/equity ratio (capital structure) and dividend. 

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED 
Boliden’s goal is a return on capital employed that exceeds 10 per 
cent over a business cycle. In order to achieve this goal, Boliden 
endeavours to: 
• increase productivity and cut costs, and;
•  increase the efficiency of both its financial and material flows, 

thereby reducing the amount of capital tied up;
•  investments are based on detailed analyses of future markets and 

take into account the specific risks associated with the invest-
ments.

The return on capital employed in 2011 totalled 17 per cent (21%). 
The reduction in the return was due to reduced profits and increases 
in capital employed resulting from major investment programmes. 

The average return during the period from 2007 to 2011 was 17 
per cent per annum. 

NET DEBT/EQUITY RATIO (CAPITAL STRUCTURE)
The goal is for the net debt/equity ratio in an economic upturn to 
be no higher than 20 per cent in order to maintain a reasonable 
financial ability to act in a recession. 

The net debt/equity ratio at the end of 2011 was 29 per cent (24%), 
with the increase due to a reduction in cash flow resulting from the 
profit performance, an increase in working capital, an increase in 
the rate of investment, and a substantial increase in the amount of 
tax paid. 

DIVIDEND
Boliden’s policy states that the dividend shall correspond to approx-
imately one third of the net profit. 

The Board of Directors proposes a dividend for 2011 of SEK 4 
(SEK 5) per share, or a total of SEK 1,094 million (SEK 1,368 m), 
corresponding to 32.3 per cent (34.6%) of the Group’s net profit for 
the year. 

The ordinary dividend payments during the period from 2007 
to 2011, including the proposed dividend for 2011, have corre-
sponded to 32.2 per cent of the aggregate net results for the period. 

A share redemption at a price corresponding to SEK 12 per share 
was carried out in 2007 in addition to the ordinary dividend pay-
ment. 

CAPITAL EMPLOYED AND RETURN
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Business Area Mines

Business Area Mines comprises the operations of the Swedish 
mines, Aitik, the Boliden Area and Garpenberg, and the Tara mine 
in Ireland. The Business Area also includes responsibility for explo-
ration, technological development, and sales of mined concentrate. 
Aitik produces copper concentrate with some gold and silver con-
tent. The other Swedish mines produce zinc, copper and lead con-
centrates, with variable gold and silver content. Tara produces zinc 
and lead concentrates. 

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Revenues, SEK m 10,279 9,580

Operating costs, SEK m 5,189 4,535

Depreciation, SEK m 1,110 954

Operating profit, SEK m 3,913 4,113

Investments, SEK m 2,338 2,189

Capital employed, SEK m 14,272 13,501

Return on capital employed, % 28 32

Average number of employees 2,189 2,070

REVENUES AND OPERATING PROFIT
The majority of Business Area Mines’ sales are made to the Group’s 
smelters, with a smaller percentage sold to external smelters. All 
sales are made on market terms. 

Revenues rose by 7 per cent to SEK 10,279 million (SEK 9,580 m), 
of which external sales totalled SEK 1,646 million (SEK 1,935 m). 
Business Area Mines’ operating profit fell to SEK 3,913 million 
(SEK 4,113 m). 

The operating profit increased in comparison with 2010 for all mines 
except Tara. Aitik’s profit increased due to substantially higher pro-
duction volumes and higher copper prices in SEK, although this 
was counteracted in part by lower grades and higher costs. The 
Boliden Area’s operating profit increased as a result of higher cop-
per production levels, which compensated for lower production of 
other metals. Garpenberg benefited from higher silver prices, while 
Tara’s profit fell due to a lower milled tonnage and higher costs. 

OPERATING PROFIT ANALYSIS 
SEK M 2011 2010

Operating profit  3,913 4,113

Change –200

Analysis of change

volume effect 231

Prices and terms* 1,272

Exchange rate effects –826

Costs –678

Depreciation –166

Other –35

Change –200

*Operating profit for resp. period 2011 2010

Realised metal price and currency 
hedging 231 401

REVENUES AND OPERATING PROFIT

All mines, with the exception of Tara, 
reported an increase in operating profit in 
2011 in comparison with 2010.

BREAKDOWN OF OPERATING COSTS

The cost of external services increased, pri-
marily as a result of measures designed to 
rectify the problems with Aitik’s crushers. 

BREAKDOWN OF REVENUE BY METAL

Precious metals’ share of revenues 
increased from 21% to 25% in 2011.

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12 000

1110090807
0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

 Revenues  Operating profit

SEK m SEK m

Gold,  
11% (10%)External  

services,
23% (21%)

Lead,  
6% (6%)

Transport,  
4% (4%)

Energy, 11% (10%) Zinc, 26% (31%)Silver, 15% (11%)

Consumables,
19% (20%)

Personnel,  
28% (30%)

Depreciation  
& other,
15% (15%)

FACTORS AFFECTING MINES’ OPERATING PROFIT
•  The geometry and metal grades of the ores, including the valuable 

subsidiary metals content.
•  Production volume and metal yield from the concentration  process.
•  LME prices and exchange rate trends (primarily the SEK/USD 

exchange rate).

•  Treatment and refining charge (TC/RC) levels: high TC/RC mean 
greater deductions from payable metals in the concentrate. 

•  Productivity and cost level: cost per tonne of ore produced and per 
tonne of ore concentrated (milled tonnage).

Copper,  
42% (42%)
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The volume effect was positive due to higher volumes of copper pro-
duced. The volumes for other metals remained unchanged or fell 
slightly.

Prices and terms had a positive effect due to higher prices in USD 
for all metals. The result of metal price and currency hedging fell, 
but lower TC/RC had a small positive effect on the operating profit, 
while a weaker USD had a negative effect. 

Operating costs excluding depreciations totalled SEK 5,189 mil-
lion and excluding depreciation and including a provision for rec-
lamation costs, operating costs in local currencies increased by 
approximately 16 per cent. The cost increase is primarily attributa-
ble to external services and is otherwise evenly spread over energy, 
personnel and consumables. The measures needed to rectify the 
crusher-related problems at Aitik accounted for a substantial part 
of the increase in external services costs, and higher levels of explo-
ration activity have also played their part in the cost increase. The 
number of employees has also increased ahead of production start-
ing at the new Kankberg gold mine in the Boliden Area. 

PRODUCTION
Milled ore tonnage increased in all mining areas in 2011 with the 
exception of Tara. These increases were particularly pronounced in 
the Boliden Area and at Aitik. 

Zinc production fell by 4 per cent, due to a lower milled ore ton-
nage at Tara, and lower grades in the Boliden Area and at Garpen-
berg. Grades at Garpenberg in 2010 were considerably higher than 
the average figure for the mineral reserve. 

Copper production increased by 7 per cent as a result of the min-
ing of copper ore at Maurliden Östra in the Boliden Area. Copper 
volumes remained unchanged at Aitik, despite higher concentra-
tion levels, as the ongoing pushback in the open-pit mine resulted 
in lower grades during the year. Lead, gold and silver production 
remained unchanged overall. Volumes of these metals fell in the 
Boliden Area due to a change in the ore mix and lower grades, while 
at Aitik, gold and silver production increased due to an improve-
ment in the gold yield and a higher silver grade. Lead production 
increased at Tara due to better yields. 

LEAD PRODUCTION

Lead production largely remained 
unchanged in 2011. At Tara, however, pro-
duction increased as a result of better 
yields from the concentration process.

ZINC PRODUCTION

The milled ore tonnage increased but produc-
tion of zinc concentrate fell by 4% as a result of 
lower grades in the Boliden Area and at 
Garpenberg.

GOLD PRODUCTION

Gold production largely remained 
unchanged in 2011. At Aitik, however, pro-
duction increased as a result of an 
improved yield.

COPPER PRODUCTION

Copper concentrate production increased 
by 7% as a result of the mining of copper 
ore at Maurliden Östra.

SILVER PRODUCTION

Silver production largely remained 
unchanged in 2011. At Aitik, however, a 
higher silver grade increased Aitik’s pro-
duction. 
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INVESTMENTS
Aitik expansion
The fine-tuning of the new facility at Aitik has continued during 
the year with the goal of achieving an ore production figure of 36 
million tonnes per annum by 2014. Crusher 165 was rebuilt at the 
beginning of 2011 to enable its connection to the new concentrator. 
The crusher came back into production in mid-June at which point 
production in the old concentrator could be shut down. Production 
during the rebuilding phase was reliant on the new crushers, whose 
availability was unsatisfactory. Production improved during the lat-
ter half of the year, although there was some disruption to produc-
tion at the end of the year. A major rebuild of one of the crushers 
will be carried out at the beginning of 2012 in order to improve pro-
ductivity. Ore production at Aitik reached 31.5 million tonnes dur-
ing the year, but the disruptions to production have resulted in 
higher than usual production costs.

Garpenberg expansion
The decision to increase production at Garpenberg was taken at the 
beginning of 2011. The new facilities will be commissioned in 2014 
and full capacity will be reached in 2015. Full operation will see ore 
production increase to 2.5 million tonnes per year from today’s pro-
duction level of 1.4 million tonnes. The investment is expected to 
total SEK 3.9 billion. 

On 31st January 2012, the Swedish Land and Environment Court 
(MMD) issued a permit to continue and expand operations up to 3 
million tonnes of ore per year at the Garpenberg mine. The permit 
includes a so-called execution order, which means that Boliden may 
commence work immediately on the expansion and without hav-
ing to wait for any appeal hearings.

Once the development work has made the ore accessible for mining, the 
work largely involves drilling, followed by charging, blasting, scaling  
and mucking. Jan Eriksson carries out charging work at Garpenberg.

34 BOLIDEn AnnuAL REPORT 2011

BuSInESS AREA MInES



THE 10 BIGGEST ZINC MINING PLAYERS

Boliden is one of the world’s ten biggest players in the zinc mining 
sector.
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Metal production 2011, ktonnes 
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THE 10 BIGGEST COPPER MINING PLAYERS

Boliden is a relatively small copper mining player. In Europe, how-
ever, with a production of just over 80,000 tonnes, Boliden is the 
third biggest copper producer. 
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Gold production at Kankberg
The decision to start producing gold and tel-
lurium at Kankberg was taken in early 2011. 
Production is scheduled to start in mid-2012 
and full capacity, including tellurium pro-
duction, is scheduled for the end of the year. 
The average annual production will be 
approximately 1,150 kg of gold and 41 tonnes 
of tellurium. The investment, which com-
prises underground facilities, infrastructure 
and a new leaching plant, totals SEK 475 
million. At Kankberg, approximately 80 per 
cent of the gold production has been hedged 
until 2017, inclusive, while the entire tellu-
rium volume until 2016, inclusive, has been 
sold at a fixed price of USD 280/kg to an 
industrial customer.

Other investments
The new tailings pond in the Boliden Area 
was commissioned during the year, enabling 
production in the mining area for many 
years to come. The new ore concentrate ter-
minal at the Boliden concentrator was also 
commissioned in 2011, thereby modernising 
and increasing the efficiency of the way in 
which the ores from the Boliden Area’s four 
different mines are handled. 

The Boliden Area’s new ore concentrate terminal 
takes deliveries from three mines. Once the 
 Kankberg gold and tellurium mine starts operations 
in mid-2012, the Boliden Area will have four 
 operational mines. 
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CASH COST IN THE MINING INDUSTRY, C1 NORMAL COSTING – ZINC

Brook Hunt’s global cash cost analysis is used to compare mines’ 
cost position. Based on this analysis, Garpenberg and Boliden have 
cash costs of uSc –63.5/lb. and uSc –89.0/lb., respectively, while 
Tara has a cash cost of uSc 65.7/lb.

CASH COST IN THE MINING INDUSTRY, C1 NORMAL COSTING – COPPER

According to Brook Hunt’s analysis, Aitik has a cash cost of uSc 
89.7/lb. See page 108 for a definition of Cash Cost.

–200

–100

0

100

200

300

400

0
%

0
%

1
%

4
%

4
%

4
%

6
%

6
%

8
%

1
0
%

1
2
%

1
3
%

1
5
%

1
6
%

1
7
%

1
9
%

2
0
%

2
2
%

2
3
%

2
6
%

2
7
%

3
0
%

3
3
%

3
3
%

3
6
%

3
7
%

3
9
%

4
3
%

4
6
%

4
7
%

4
9
%

5
6
%

5
8
%

5
9
%

7
4
%

7
5
%

7
6
%

7
9
%

8
2
%

8
5
%

8
8
%

9
6
%

9
7
%

9
8
%

9
9
%

1
0
0
%

–200

–100

0

100

200

300

400

0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

1
%

1
%

1
%

1
%

1
%

4
%

5
%

5
%

6
%

7
%

1
1
%

1
3
%

1
8
%

3
2
%

3
7
%

4
2
%

4
6
%

5
4
%

6
4
%

6
6
%

6
9
%

7
1
%

7
4
%

7
8
%

8
0
%

8
2
%

8
5
%

8
7
%

8
9
%

9
1
%

9
2
%

9
4
%

9
5
%

9
6
%

9
7
%

9
8
%

1
0
0
%

uSc/lb. uSc/lb.

So
ur

ce
s: 

Br
oo

k 
H

un
t –

 A
 W

oo
d 

M
ac

ke
nz

ie
 C

om
pa

ny
, D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
1

EXPLORATION
Boliden invested SEK 282 million (SEK 
232 m) in exploration in 2011. 

For details of mineral resource and min-
eral reserve calculations, see pages 90–94.

Tara is Europe’s biggest zinc mine and the 
 eleventh biggest in the world. 

% of global mining capacity % of global mining capacity

The diagrams below show global cash cost graphs for zinc and copper mines, with Boliden’s mines marked. The graphs are based on databases 
from the consultancy firm, Brook Hunt, and entail their estimates and assumptions. Boliden’s own cash cost data per mine may differ from Brook 
Hunt’s data due to differences in the source data.

The ore in the Aitik copper mine’s open pit is mined in horizontal 
slices, known as benches. The copper grades are low, but the high 
productivity level means that Aitik is very competitive. 
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• Tara
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KEY DATA 2011 2010

Ore production, ktonnes 2,486 2,593

Zinc production1, tonnes 163,935 167,334

Operating profit 268 383

Cash cost2, uSc/lb 72 69

Investments 372 285

Average number of 
employees 696 699

Mineral reserves3, 
ktonnes 15,700 16,000

The TARA underground mine is Europe’s biggest zinc 
mine and the world’s eleventh biggest. Tara’s products 
are zinc and lead concentrates, and the mine was 
acquired by Boliden in early 2004. Production at the 
mine began in 1977, and since then over 70 million 
tonnes of ore have been mined. In recent years, Tara 
has focused on investments to enhance productivity 
and cost cutting measures. 

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Ore production, ktonnes 1,456 1,443

Zinc production1, tonnes 81,068 86,022

Operating profit 1,314 1,124

Cash cost2, uSc/lb –56 –16

Investments 660 281

Average number of 
employees 298 277

Mineral reserves3, 
ktonnes 23,600 25,100

The deposits at GARPENBERG were first worked as 
far back as the 13th century, making Garpenberg 
Sweden’s oldest mine that is still operational. Boliden 
acquired Garpenberg in 1957 and exploration work 
has since resulted in a substantial increase in its min-
eral reserves. Complex ore that contains zinc, copper, 
lead, gold and silver is mined at Garpenberg, and it is 
this metal mix that has contributed to the mine’s 
favourable cost position. A decision to carry out a 
major expansion of operations at Garpenberg was 
taken in January 2011.

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Ore production, ktonnes 1,677 1,375

Zinc production1, tonnes 38,214 40,458

Operating profit 530 481

Cash cost2, uSc/lb –58 –18

Investments 565 298

Average number of 
employees 421 369

Mineral reserves3, 
ktonnes 12,080 11,000

THE BOLIDEN AREA is located in the mineral-rich 
Skellefte field, where more than 30 mines have been 
operated since production began in the 1920s. The 
area nowadays comprises the Renström, Kris-
tineberg and Kankberg underground mines and the 
Maurliden and Maurliden Östra open pit mines. The 
new Hötjärn tailings pond became operational in 2011 
and the extraction of gold and tellurium will commence 
at Kankberg in 2012. All of the mines produce com-
plex ore that contains zinc, copper, lead, gold and sil-
ver. Exploration successes have gradually increased 
the Boliden Area’s lifespan.

The AITIK open pit mine is Boliden’s biggest mine, and 
produces copper ore that also contains gold and sil-
ver. The copper grades are low but are compensated 
for by high levels of productivity, favourable waste 
rock conditions and gold production. The new facilities 
that will double Aitik’s yearly ore production to 36 mil-
lion tonnes, and increase copper production by 50 per 
cent by 2014, were inaugurated in 2010. The expan-
sion will generate the potential for extracting addi-
tional ore and this, coupled with positive exploration 
results, will extend Aitik’s lifespan from 2016 to 
2030.

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Ore production, ktonnes 31,541 27,596

Copper production1, 
tonnes 66,876 67,168

Operating profit 2,046 2,008

Cash cost2, uSc/lb 120 105

Investments 730 1,210

Average number of 
employees 568 553

Mineral reserves3, 
ktonnes 710,000 733,000
1) Metal content of concentrate.
2)  Refers to Boliden’s calculations of cash cost measure-

ment, C1 (see page 108 for additional information).
3) volume estimated by Boliden.

BOLIDEN’S MINING AREAS

METAL PRODUCTION1 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Change 11/10, %

Zinc, tonnes 333,293 297,423 307,128 293,814 283,217 –4

Copper, tonnes 62,803 57,220 54,602 75,977 81,205 7

Lead, tonnes 54,166 53,041 56,669 49,585 49,477 0

Gold, kg 2,834 2,603 3,130 3,727 3,681 –1

Silver, kg 241,701 211,683 214,120 230,756 231,388 0

1) Refers to metal content of concentrate.
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Business Area Smelters

Business Area Smelters comprises the Kokkola and Odda zinc smelt-
ers, the Rönnskär and Harjavalta copper smelters, and the Bergsöe 
lead smelter. The Business Area also includes the smelters’ purchases 
of metal concentrates and metal sales. The zinc smelters’ produc-
tion primarily comprises zinc metal, but also includes aluminium 
fluoride, which is manufactured at Odda, and some sulphuric acid. 
The copper smelters’ production primarily comprises copper, gold, 
silver, lead and sulphuric acid. The copper smelters also recycle metal 
and electronic scrap, and Harjavalta also smelts nickel concentrate. 
The Bergsöe lead smelter mainly produces lead from recycled car 
batteries. 

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Revenues, SEK m  38,471 34,390

Gross profit, excluding revaluation 
of process inventory, SEK m 7,160 7,158

Operating costs, SEK m 5,358 5,247

Depreciation, SEK m 823 848

Operating profit, excluding revalua-
tion of process inventory, SEK m 1,051 1,134

Operating profit, SEK m 790 1,946

Investments, SEK m 1,674 804

Capital employed, SEK m  16,213 14,225

Return on capital employed, % 5 17

Average number of employees  2,130 2,249

REVENUES AND PROFIT
Revenues increased by 12 per cent to SEK 38,471 million (SEK 34,390 
m) in comparison with 2010, with the increase attributable to higher 
metal prices in SEK and increased volumes for the majority of prod-
ucts. The gross profit, excluding the revaluation of process inven-
tory, remained unchanged. The negative effect of lower treatment 
charges was compensated for by higher metal premiums and metal 
prices, resulting in increased income from free metals. Increased 
income from by-products made a substantial positive contribution 
to the profit. The operating profit excluding the revaluation of pro-
cess inventory totalled SEK 1,051 million (SEK 1,134 m). If the inven-
tory revaluation effect of SEK -261 million (SEK 812 m) is included, 
the operating profit totalled SEK 790 million (SEK 1,946 m). 

The operating profits of the Rönnskär and Harjavalta copper 
smelters improved as a result of higher treatment charges, increased 
volumes of by-products, and higher prices for both copper and by-
products. The Bergsöe lead smelter’s operating profit fell due to 
reduced volumes and higher raw material prices, while the operat-
ing profits of the Kokkola and Odda zinc smelters fell due to a dete-
rioration in treatment charges. This was, however, compensated for 
in part by higher prices for sulphuric acid and higher metal premi-
ums. 

REVENUES AND OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profits improved at both Rönnskär 
and Harjavalta in 2011, but fell at Kokkola, 
Odda and Bergsöe.

BREAKDOWN OF OPERATING COSTS

Operating costs increased by 4% in local cur-
rencies in 2011, primarily as a result of 
higher energy and external services costs. 

BREAKDOWN OF GROSS PROFIT

By-products and free metals accounted for a 
higher percentage of the gross profit, while 
the TC/RC share fell in comparison with 
2010. 

Metal premiums,  
11% (11%)External  

services,
17% (17%)

Free metals,  
33% (32%)

Transport,  
6% (5%)

Energy,  
24% (24%)

By-products, 20% (13%)

Consum- 
ables,

15% (16%)

Personnel,  
24% (24%)

TC/RC,  
36% (44%)
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OPERATING PROFIT ANALYSIS, 
SEK M 2011 2010

Operating profit  790 1,946

Revaluation of process inventory –261 812

Operating profit excluding 
 revaluation of process inventory 1,051 1,134

Change –83

Analysis of change

volume effect 252

Prices and terms* 317

Exchange rate effects –392

Costs –271

Depreciation 6

Other 5

Change –83

*Operating profit for resp. period 2011 2010

Realised metal price and currency 
hedging 94 100

Increases in production volumes, primarily with regard to copper 
and a number of by-products, had a positive effect on the profit. 
Higher metal prices and slight improvements in metal premiums 
were, however, counteracted by lower TC/RC for zinc. The positive 
net effect of prices and terms totalled SEK 317 million in compari-
son with 2010, but this effect was counteracted by a negative 
exchange rate trend and higher costs which, collectively, resulted 

Kokkola is the world’s fifth biggest zinc smelter and has steadily 
increased its productivity in recent years. Zinc production increased 
still further in 2011 from the previous record year of 2010. 

FACTORS AFFECTING SMELTERS’ OPERATING 
PROFITS
• Volume produced and high levels of capacity utilisation.
• Stability in the production process and low costs.
•  The ability to extract a high percentage of the raw materi-

al’s metal content.
• Treatment and refining charges (TC/RC).
•  LME price and exchange rate (primarily USD) trends, which 

affect the value of free metals and the TC contracts’ price 
sharing clauses.

• Prices for by-products.
• Customer and product mix.
• Energy prices and energy efficiency.
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in a slight fall in the operating profit in com-
parison with last year. 

Operating costs excluding depreciations 
for Business Area Smelters totalled SEK 
5,363 million for the year and increased in 
local currencies by just over 5 per cent. The 
increase in costs is primarily attributable to 
costs in connection with energy and exter-
nal services which, collectively, account for 
over 3 per cent of the cost increase in com-
parison with 2010. 

PRODUCTION
The smelters’ zinc production increased by 
1 per cent in comparison with 2010. Vol-
umes remained unchanged at Kokkola but 
increased by 3 per cent at Odda. A number 
of measures have been implemented at 
Odda with the aim of increasing production 
stability, and these are gradually yielding 
results. 

Copper production increased by 11 per 
cent in 2011, particularly at Rönnskär which 
underwent a major maintenance shutdown 
in 2010. Harjavalta’s copper production also 
increased, despite disruptions to production 
during the year. 

Gold production fell at Rönnskär due to 
a lower gold grade in the input raw materi-
als, but the reverse was true for silver. Pre-
cious metal production at Harjavalta 
worked well during the year and both gold 
and silver volumes increased. 

Lead production at Rönnskär fell as a 
consequence of the prioritisation of elec-
tronic scrap processing towards the end of 
the year. The completion of the new elec-
tronic scrap facility will result in a more 
even level of lead production throughout 
the year as it will then be possible to increase 
the extent to which the old facility can be 
used for lead production. 

BREAKDOWN OF OPERATING COSTS – ZINC SMELTERS

Energy is the single biggest cost item for the zinc smelters.

BREAKDOWN OF OPERATING COSTS – COPPER SMELTERS

Personnel and external services are the biggest cost items for the 
copper smelters. 

External services, 12% (12%)

External services,  
23% (23%)

Transport, 1% (1%)

Transport, 3% (3%)

Energy, 36% (36%)

Energy, 19% (18%)

Consumables, 17% (19%)

Consumables, 16% (16%)

Personnel, 25% (26%)

Personnel, 23% (22%)

Depreciation & other, 11% (11%) Depreciation & other, 14% (15%)

The Harjavalta copper smelter’s operating profit 
increased in 2011 as a result of higher treatment and 
refining charges, increased volumes of by-products, 
and higher prices for copper and by-products. 
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ZINC PRODUCTION

Kokkola’s metal production increased mar-
ginally, while production at Odda increased 
by 3% in 2011. 

COPPER PRODUCTION

Rönnskär increased metal production by 
15%, while Harjavalta increased its produc-
tion by 3%, despite suffering disruptions to 
production in 2011. 
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The expansion of the Rönnskär copper smelter’s electronic scrap 
recycling capacity includes not only a new Kaldo plant but new 
facilities for materials processing. The picture shows the facility  
for sampling the electronic scrap delivered to the plant. 
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THE 10 BIGGEST ZINC SMELTING PLAYERS

Boliden is one of the world’s ten biggest players in the zinc smelting 
sector and is Europe’s third biggest zinc producer. 

Metal production in 2011, ktonnes

nyrstar

Korea Zinc Group

Hindustan Zinc

Xstrata AG

votorantim

Boliden

Huludao Zinc Co

Shaanxi nonferrous Metals

Glencore

Teck

THE 10 BIGGEST COPPER SMELTING PLAYERS

Boliden is a relatively small copper smelting player in global terms. 
In Europe, however, with a production of approximately 336,000 
tonnes, Boliden is the third biggest copper producer. 

Metal production in 2011, ktonnes

Codelco

Jiangxi Copper Company

Xstrata AG

Aurubis

nippon Mining and Metals

KGHM Polska Miedz

F-McM Copper & Gold

Jinchuan

Mitsubishi Materials

Sumitomo Metal Mining

Bergsöe’s lead production fell by 3 per cent 
as a result of a shortage of raw materials dur-
ing the first half of the year. 

INVESTMENTS
Increased electronic scrap capacity at 
Rönnskär
The expansion project has continued in 
2010−2011 and the facility began test runs 
in January 2012. The ramp-up of the new 
facility will be carried out in the first quar-
ter of 2012 and full capacity will be achieved 

during the second quarter, at which time 
Boliden’s electronic scrap recycling capac-
ity will have increased to 120,000 tonnes per 
year. The investment strengthens Boliden’s 
position as a world-leading player in the 
field and increases the company’s contribu-
tion to the creation of a sustainable society. 

The increase in the volume of electronic 
scrap processed at Rönnskär also reduces 
the smelter’s exposure to the copper concen-
trate market − a market that may be charac-

terised by a shortage of good quality con-
centrate for several years. 

The total amount invested is SEK 1.3 bil-
lion, and will result in increased production 
of copper, gold and silver. 

Other investments and improvement 
projects
Other investments were limited in 2011 with 
resources focused primarily on improving 
process stability. 

Sources: Brook Hunt – A Wood Mackenzie Company, December 2011 Sources: Brook Hunt – A Wood Mackenzie Company, December 2011

Odda is located on the west coast of Norway. Measures have been implemented to improve Odda’s production 
 stability and are gradually yielding results. 

Bergsöe is one of Europe’s biggest lead recyclers. Lead 
production fell by 3 per cent in 2011, however, as a 
result of a shortage of raw materials. 
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KEY DATA 2011 2010

Processing, zinc con-
centrate, tonnes 600,228 587,330

Production, zinc metal, 
tonnes 307,352 307,144

Operating profit, SEK m 246 505

Investments, SEK m 253 248

Average number of 
employees 522 544

The KOKKOLA smelter is the world’s fifth biggest zinc 
smelter and is located on the west coast of Finland. 
The smelter produces zinc and zinc alloys. The zinc 
concentrate is delivered by ship to Kokkola’s own port, 
both from Boliden’s own mines and from external sup-
pliers. Kokkola uses the in-house developed direct 
leaching method that enables it to process complex 
and less pure metal concentrates.

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Processing, zinc con-
centrate1, tonnes 282,959 276,811

Production, zinc metal, 
tonnes 153,200 148,862

Operating profit, SEK m -25 39

Investments, SEK m 87 75

Average number of 
employees 321 326

1) Including zinc clinker.

The ODDA zinc smelter is located on the west coast 
of norway and produces zinc and zinc alloys, and alu-
minium fluoride. Odda, which was founded back in 
1929, has its own ice-free port used for incoming 
deliveries of zinc concentrate and other raw materi-
als, and for outgoing shipments of finished metals. 
Much of the zinc concentrate is delivered from Tara, 
the Boliden Area and Garpenberg. Odda, like Kokkola, 
uses the direct leaching method.

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Processing, copper (pri-
mary and secondary 
materials), tonnes 826,116 699,266

Production, copper 
cathodes, tonnes 219,316 190,497

Operating profit, SEK m 470 187

Investments, SEK m 1,074 270

Average number of 
employees 768 846

The RÖNNSKÄR copper smelter is located in Skellefte-
hamn in northern Sweden. Its main products are copper, 
gold, silver, lead, and its by-products include sulphuric 
acid. Rönnskär’s Kaldo and fuming plants enable it to 
complement its copper production with the recycling of 
metals from electronic scrap and other secondary mate-
rials. Rönnskär processes Boliden’s entire internal pro-
duction of copper concentrate. The smelter’s electronic 
scrap recycling capacity is currently being expanded, 
which will make Boliden a world-leader in this field.

The HARJAVALTA copper smelter is located on the 
west coast of Finland and produces copper, gold, silver, 
and sulphuric acid as a by-product. The smelter also 
smelts nickel concentrate. The metal concentrates 
come primarily from external copper mines in South 
America and South East Asia, and from Portugal. 
 Harja valta uses the in-house developed flash smelting 
method that uses the energy in the raw material’s sul-
phur content.

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Processing, tonnes 
Copper concentrate 
nickel concentrate

456,350 
259,259

433,511 
261,931

Production, copper 
cathodes, tonnes 116,455 112,687

Operating profit, SEK m 222 154

Investments, SEK m 229 122

Average number of 
employees 382 396

The BERGSÖE lead smelter, which is located outside 
Landskrona in southern Sweden, is one of Europe’s big-
gest players in the recycling of lead. Lead is extracted 
from approximately four million scrap car batteries every 
year. Approximately 60 per cent of the smelter’s lead 
production is sold to the battery industry in Europe, with 
the remainder used in other applications.

KEY DATA 2011 2010

Production, lead alloys, 
tonnes 41,009 42,166

Operating profit, SEK m 75 82

Investments, SEK m 24 14

Average number of 
employees 76 87

BOLIDEN’S SMELTERS

METAL PRODUCTION 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Change 11/10, %

Zinc, tonnes 462,570 443,191 434,022 456,006 460,552 1

Copper, tonnes 314,881 349,593 302,355 303,184 335,771 11

Lead, tonnes 25,865 14,235 13,013 17,013 11,429 –33

Lead alloys, tonnes 43,865 42,577 38,561 42,166 41,009 –3

Gold, kg 14,876 15,489 15,028 14,220 12,848 –10

Silver, kg 379,749 488,285 539,564 450,280 488,147 8

Sulphuric acid, tonnes 1,230,861 1,328,904 1,123,336 1,397,002 1,597,072 14

Aluminium fluoride, tonnes 34,833 34,611 33,161 21,951 34,812 59
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Sustainable development

Boliden’s mines and smelters are operated in accordance with appli-
cable legislative provisions and environmental permits in every 
country in which they operate. The sustainability work is charac-
terised by a proactive approach that involves Boliden setting its own 
goals, many of which exceed those set by applicable legislation. This 
facilitates adaptation in line with market conditions, strengthens 
our relationships with important stakeholder groups, and ensures 
compliance with future legislation. For further information on 
Boliden’s sustainability work, please visit Boliden’s website at www.
boliden.com or see Boliden’s 2011 Sustainability and GRI reports. 

MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING
Boliden’s Group management has ultimate responsibility for the 
Group’s sustainability work.

Much of the work is conducted through Group-wide networks, 
in order to facilitate the dissemination of the Group’s goals and strat-
egies and of knowledge and experience between the Business Areas 
and between production units. There are individual networks for 
health, the environment, safety, HR, quality, and communication 
issues, whose managers report directly to the Group management.

Internal audits are another important component of the work 
aimed at ensuring continuous improvement. Every mine and 
smelter undergoes biennial theme-based audits. The theme in ques-
tion is chosen on the basis of identified Group-wide requirements. 
Identified areas for improvement shall be actioned and feedback 
reporting submitted within six months of completion of the audit. 
The theme for 2011 was safety in relation to the Group’s handling 
of chemicals, from acquisition to waste processing. Internal audits 
were carried out at the Rönnskär and Odda smelters and in the 
Garpenberg and Tara mines.

The New Boliden Way (NBW) is the Group’s organisational and 
operational philosophy and its goal is to improve productivity in 
every aspect of the operations and to create a culture characterised 
by continuous improvement. 

Projects and programmes aimed at spotlighting and improving 
operational and administrative processes alike are taking place at 
all levels throughout the Group. The aim is to ensure that NBW is 
well-rooted and implemented within all units by 2013. 

EMPLOYEES
The average number of Group employees in 2011 was 4,423 (4,412), 
of whom 2,130 (2,249) work in Business Area Smelters and 2,189 
(2,070) in Business Area Mines. As is the case for many other indus-
trial companies, Boliden is facing the challenge posed by a massive 
generation shift in the workforce. Approximately 25 per cent of 
Boliden’s personnel will retire during the next ten years, necessitat-
ing an extensive programme of replacement recruitment. Tools such 
as manager evaluation models and systematic replacement plan-
ning increase transparency and facilitate the identification of skill 
requirements within the Group. Substantial resources are, further-
more, being allocated to continuous skill development for all occu-
pational groups within Boliden as a whole. 

A safe work environment
A safe work environment and efforts to establish a strong safety cul-
ture are top priority issues for Boliden, and the goal for every unit 
is a zero accident rate. Attitudes and behaviour are coming to play 
an increasingly important role in accident prevention as physical 
work environment risks are eliminated through the use of safe 
machines and protective equipment, and to that end, all of Boliden’s 
production units have been certified in accordance with the OHSAS 
18001 work environment standard, and work systematically and for 
preventative purposes with risk and cause analyses.

The number of accidents leading to absence from work (LTI) for 
2011 fell to 4.9 per one million hours worked, in comparison with 
8.2 in 2010. These statistics refer to LTI among Boliden’s employ-
ees, but as of 2012, accidents suffered by contractors will also be 
included in the LTI statistics. 

Health and healthy lifestyle programmes
Employee health is not only positive for the individuals in question: 
it also has a positive effect on Boliden’s results. The Group’s system-
atic health and healthy lifestyle programmes are designed to focus 
primarily on preventative measures and rehabilitation. 

The absence due to sickness rate in 2011 was 3.7 per cent (4.0%), 
in comparison with the goal of 4.0 per cent by the end of 2013, and 
efforts to ensure all units are at or below the target level will con-
tinue until 2013. 

Equal opportunities and diversity
A workforce made up of people with a wide range of different expe-
riences and backgrounds makes the operations more innovative. A 
corporate culture that clearly states that diversity and equal oppor-
tunities for all are priority issues increases employee satisfaction in 
their day-to-day work and enhances their willingness to stay with 
the company. 

The percentage of women working within the Group in 2011 was 
16 per cent (15%). The goal is to increase the percentage of female 
employees for every year that passes. 

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
Boliden is responsible for the environmental impact along the full 
length of the value chain. Mining operations give rise to waste, dust, 
and emissions and discharges of metals to air and water, and affects 
both the landscape and its individual environments. The environ-
mental impact is minimised, wherever possible, through investments 
in and use of the best available technology and methodologies. 

ACCIDENTS AND ABSENCE DUE TO SICKNESS

The number of accidents leading to absence from work (LTI) fell 
to 4.9 per one million hours worked and the absence due to 
sickness rate fell to 3.7 per cent in 2011.
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Environmental work
Operations at all of Boliden’s production units require licenses and 
permits and are conducted in accordance both with applicable envi-
ronmental legislation and other regulations in Sweden, Finland, 
Ireland and Norway, and with EU regulations governing the han-
dling of waste, chemicals and carbon dioxide emissions, among oth-
ers. Boliden aims, by means of a systematic and forward-looking 
approach to its environmental work, to exceed legislative and reg-
ulatory requirements, and consequently also employs its own envi-
ronmental goals and guidelines. All production units have certified 
environmental management systems in accordance with the ISO 
14001 standard. 

Boliden’s environmental goals are set on the basis of the most 
operationally significant environmental factors. Group-wide goals 
have been set for the period from 2009 to 2013 with regard to emis-
sions and discharges of metals into air and water, of nitrogen into 
water, and of sulphur dioxide and carbon dioxide emissions. The 
goals have been broken down by the individual mine and smelter 
in order to facilitate follow-up work. 

Energy consumption
The production of metals is a highly energy-intensive process. Much 
of the energy Boliden uses comprises electricity and the origin of 
the electricity used is determined by the so-called national mix pro-
vided by the respective operating countries’ electricity grids. Elec-
trical energy consumption in 2011 totalled 3.7 TWh (3.7 TWh). 

All of Boliden’s production units employ energy management sys-
tems that take the form either of a discrete system or form part of 
the ISO 14001 environmental management system. Energy analy-
ses and costings are, therefore, carried out in conjunction with all 
new investments and projects. The smelters utilise waste heat from 
the processes in their production to heat their own premises. Sev-
eral of the smelters also supply waste heat to local district heating 
systems.

Carbon dioxide emission rights
Emission Trading System (ETS), the EU’s trade in carbon dioxide 
emission rights, currently comprise the Rönnskär and Bergsöe 
smelters. The two smelters have been assigned emission rights for 
the period from 2008 to 2012 comprising 78,909 tonnes of carbon 
dioxide, and once new legislation regarding the allocation of emis-
sion rights comes into force in 2013, all of Boliden’s smelters will be 
covered. The mines will be affected to varying degrees.

GOALS RESULTS IN 2011

•  Zero accidents resulting in absence from work (LTI) every 
month at all units. 

•  The group’s accident frequency was 4.9 (8.2) accidents per mil-
lion hours worked in 2011. The nine operating units had an aver-
age of nine months without any accidents resulting in absence 
from work during the year. 

•  An absence due to sickness rate that does not exceed 4.0 per 
cent by the end of 2013.

•  The absence due to sickness rate in 2011 was 3.7 per cent 
(4.0%). 

•  Discharges of metals1 to water shall be reduced by 25 per 
cent2 by the end of 2013.

•  Discharges of metals to water have fallen by 49 per cent since 
2007. 

•  Discharges of nitrogen to water shall be reduced by 20 per 
cent2 by the end of 2013.

•  Discharges of nitrogen to water have fallen by 30 per cent since 
2007.

•   Emissions of metals1 to air shall be reduced by 25 per cent2 by 
the end of 2013. 

•  Emissions of metals to air have fallen by 35 per cent since 2007.

•  Emissions of sulphur dioxide to air shall be reduced by 10 per 
cent2 by the end of 2013. 

•  Emissions of sulphur dioxide have fallen by 8 per cent since 
2007. 

•  Carbon dioxide emissions shall not increase by more than 3 per 
cent2 by the end of 2013 (taking into account planned produc-
tion increases). 

•  Carbon dioxide emissions have increased by 1 per cent since 
2007 at comparable measurement points. new emission rights 
have been added through the smelters’ implementation of ETS. 
This work will be concluded in 2012.

1) Copper, zinc, lead, nickel, cadmium, mercury and arsenic. 2) Base year: 2007

Boliden’s efforts to achieve its sustainability goals and its other endeavours to promote long-term 
sustainable development are described in the Sustainability Report, which will be published in March 
2012.
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Risk management

Market and commercial risks are primarily managed at Business 
Area level. Operational risks are managed by the operating units in 
accordance with guidelines and instructions laid down for each 
Business Area and at Group level. 

Financial risks are managed centrally within Boliden’s treasury 
function. The treasury function is responsible for identifying and 
efficiently limiting the Group’s financial risks in accordance with 
the financial policy set by the Board of Directors.

Information on financial risks is provided in Note 19 on page 77, 
while information on legal proceedings and disputes is provided in 
Note 24 on page 84.

MARKET AND COMMERCIAL RISKS
Global economic trends in general, and global industrial produc-
tion in particular, affect demand and pricing trends for zinc, cop-
per and other base metals. Boliden’s customers are primarily steel 
companies and manufacturers of semi-finished goods in Europe 
who, in turn, sell their products to the global automotive, construc-
tion and electronics industries. Activity levels in these industries 
affect demand for Boliden’s metals and, hence, the Group’s profit-
ability.

Metal prices 
Changes to metal prices and treatment and refining charge terms 
have a significant impact on Boliden’s profit performance.

Metal prices are set daily on the London Metal Exchange (LME) 
and Boliden’s policy is not to hedge metal prices and exchange rates, 
but rather to allow changes to be reflected in the result. Boliden 
does, however, implement price hedging under certain circum-
stances, e.g. in conjunction with a major investment project when 
the Group’s financial effectiveness may be reduced if a major fall in 
prices coincides with disbursements for the investment. Mining of 
a limited ore body with a short lifespan when the level of price risk 
inherent in the project is high is another such circumstance.

The smelters are, by and large, naturally hedged against metal 
price fluctuations, in that treatment and refining charges are the 
primary components of the income. Some impact does result from 
the zinc smelters’ price sharing clauses and the extraction of so-
called free metals, which are fully exposed to fluctuations in metal 
prices. For further information on Boliden’s metal price hedging, 
see Note 21 on page 80.

Treatment and refining charges
Treatment and refining charges make up a large part of the smelt-
ers’ gross profit. Treatment and refining charge terms are deter-
mined largely by the balance between supply and demand in the 
metal concentrates market. Boliden buys in substantial volumes of 
metal concentrates for its copper smelters from external suppliers, 
and is consequently exposed to fluctuations in this market.

The terms for treatment and refining charges of metal concen-
trates are negotiated annually by the major players in the mining 
and smelting industries and the results of these negotiations serve 
as benchmarks for other players. 

In addition, concentrate transactions are conducted at spot mar-
ket charges. The copper concentrate from Boliden’s mines covers 
approximately 25 per cent of the copper smelters’ requirements, 
while approximately 60 per cent of Boliden’s zinc smelter produc-

tion requirements are covered by concentrate from the Group’s own 
mines. 

Revaluation of process inventory
The process inventory is that part of the inventory that is tied up 
within the smelters’ production process. The prices of the process 
inventory – approximately 17,000 tonnes of zinc, 29,000 tonnes of 
copper, 2,200 kilos of gold, 66,200 kilos of silver and 300 tonnes of 
lead – are not price or currency hedged, and changes in the LME 
prices for these metals consequently have either a positive or a neg-
ative effect on the Group’s profits in conjunction with end of year 
inventory revaluations. In order to clarify this accounting impact 
on the Group’s profits, Boliden reports its operating profit both 
before and after revaluation of the process inventory.

Customers
Base metals may be sold to industrial clients and base metal dealers 
or delivered to the metal stocks held by LME and other international 
marketplaces. Long-term agreements with industrial customers 
increase the predictability of the terms of sale and the stability of the 
sales. Boliden receives metal premiums over and above the LME 
price in conjunction with sales to industrial customers and to metal 
dealers.

Boliden focuses on long-term partnerships with financially sta-
ble customers in order to increase the stability of sales of the Group’s 
metals. Boliden endeavours to intensify its relationships with cus-
tomers by ensuring a high standard of delivery reliability, by pro-
viding technical support, and by customising products in ways 
which increase the efficiency of the customers’ processes and 
improve the products’ ultimate characteristics. These activities, 
together with long-term sales agreements, help increase the percent-
age of sales with high metal premiums. Boliden endeavours to 
expand its customer portfolio in order to reduce the exposure that 
results from a small number of customers, segments and countries, 
through targeted sales activities.

Raw materials supply
Securing a long-term supply of raw materials is important in ensur-
ing that Boliden’s smelters can produce at a high level of capacity 
utilisation and achieve consistent quality. There is always a risk that 
suppliers of raw materials to the Group’s smelters may suffer 
unplanned operational disruptions. Approximately 25 per cent of 
the copper smelters’ raw materials requirements are covered by 
metal concentrates from mines within the Group. Approximately 
70 per cent of the zinc smelters’ requirements can be supplied from 
within the Group. Boliden endeavours to conclude long-term agree-
ments with external suppliers of metal concentrates and recycling 
materials for the copper smelters, with a view to maintaining a com-
prehensive and consistent supply.

Energy prices
Mining operations, smelting and recycling operations, and, in par-
ticular, zinc smelters, are all energy-intensive activities. Energy 
accounted for approximately 18 per cent (17%) of Boliden’s operat-
ing costs in 2011, and changes in energy costs can hence have a sig-
nificant effect on the Group’s profitability. Predicting Europe’s 
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energy markets and energy price trends in both the short- and long-
term is difficult.

Boliden endeavours to conclude long-term energy supply con-
tracts in all of the countries in which it operates. The majority of 
the Group’s energy requirements over the next 5–10 years are cov-
ered by long-term supply contracts, thereby stabilising energy sup-
plies and limiting sensitivity to short-term changes in energy prices. 
The long-term agreements are complemented on a rolling basis with 
financial electricity price hedging with terms of up to three years.

Boliden is working to ensure a long-term stable and competitive 
access to energy throughout the Nordic region through BasEl, a 
company jointly owned by a number of basic industry companies. 
Efforts in the longer term are aimed at meeting some of Boliden’s 
energy requirements through its own energy production by means 
of industrial partnerships such as the Fennovoima and Industrikraft 
Sverige nuclear power projects in Finland and Sweden, respectively.

Boliden also works with measures designed to improve energy 
efficiency in order to limit the Group’s energy requirement. In Swe-
den, Finland and Ireland, Boliden participates in national effi-
ciency-enhancing projects designed to boost industrial companies’ 
incentives to make energy savings. The Group also has an energy 
policy and all of the production units have implemented energy 
management systems. Compliance with the policy is monitored 
through internal audits.

Electricity prices are expected to rise when the EU’s new legis-
lation on the allocation of emission rights for carbon dioxide come 
into force in 2013. The allocation of emission rights is also expected 
to decline and the purchase price of emission rights to increase, and 
this could, collectively, result in substantial cost increases. Boliden 
has formed an EU Emission Trading System (ETS) project group, 
comprising both internal and external experts, in order to prepare 
for the impending legislation.

OPERATIONAL RISKS
Boliden’s production essentially comprises continuous processes 
where unplanned stoppages can impact both production and the 
financial result. These stoppages can, in some cases, be long term. 
Unplanned stoppages can, for example, occur as a result of technical 
problems, accidents or strikes. 

Boliden carries out preventative maintenance work at all of its 
production units. Smelters carry out major maintenance shutdowns 
every year, while Mines’ maintenance work is integrated into the 
day-to-day operations. Smelters and Mines have been working with 
internal benchmarking projects and knowledge exchanges between 
the production units for a number of years now.

Environmental impact
Boliden manages natural resources and substantial physical mate-
rials flows. These activities have an impact on the external environ-
ment, primarily in the form of emissions and discharges of pollut-
ants – mainly metals – to the air, soil and water. The mines’ 

operations also affect the surrounding landscape. Strict environ-
mental requirements and extensive environmental legislation apply 
in all of the countries in which Boliden operates. All of the Group’s 
mines and smelters require permits in order to operate and are reg-
ulated by the respective countries’ legislation.

In order to reduce its environmental impact, ensure compliance 
with existing regulations and facilitate adaptation to any new 
requirements, Boliden works with its own environmental goals and 
guidelines and with environmental management systems. All oper-
ating units have ISO 14001-certified environmental management 
systems.

Work environment
All mining and smelting operations require high safety standards. 
Serious accidents may not only result in personal injury or death, 
but lead to production stoppages and damage public confidence in 
the company.

In addition to its investments in machinery and equipment, 
Boliden also provides training with a view to changing attitudes, 
routines and behaviour in order to strengthen further the corporate 
culture with regard to safety at work. There were a total of 4.8 acci-
dents per one million hours worked in 2011, in comparison with 8.2 
per one million hours worked in 2010.

Skill requirements
Boliden’s operations require numerous different areas of expertise, 
including metallurgical process and production technology, geo-
technology and geology. The Group’s operations are largely con-
ducted in sparsely populated areas, making it particularly impor-
tant that we enhance our attractiveness as an employer and exercise 
good forward planning in terms of skill supply.

Approximately 25 per cent of Boliden’s employees will retire over 
the next ten years. In order to handle impending retirements and 
meet long-term recruitment needs, Boliden is working on imple-
menting a new replacement planning system with a view to facili-
tate its future skill supply. 

FINANCIAL RISKS
For further information on financial risks, see Note 19 on pages 
77–78.
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The Boliden share

The Boliden share is listed on the NASDAQ OMX Stockholm 
Exchange in the Large Cap segment. The share also has a second-
ary listing on the Toronto Stock Exchange. In addition to NASDAQ 
OMX’s index, the share is included in several international indices. 

TRADING IN THE BOLIDEN SHARE
The number of Boliden shares traded on the NASDAQ OMX 
Stockholm Exchange in 2011 fell to 823 (1,216) million. The value of 
the shares traded fell to SEK 86 billion (SEK 120 b) during the year. 
Approximately 73 per cent (67%) of the total number of shares 
traded during the year were traded on the NASDAQ OMX Stock-
holm Exchange, where the Boliden share accounted for 2.3 per cent 
(3.3%) of the total share turnover. The turnover rate in the Boliden 
share was 283 per cent (444%) and an average of 3.3 million (4.8 m) 
shares were traded per trading day on the NASDAQ OMX Stock-
holm Exchange.

Trading in so-called alternative marketplaces, Multilateral Trad-
ing Facilities (MTF), accounted for approximately 27 per cent (33%) 
of the total number of Boliden shares traded. The majority of this 
trading occurred on Chi-X, Burgundy and BATS.

At the end of 2011, the Boliden share was quoted at SEK 100.50 
(SEK 136.70) on the NASDAQ OMX Stockholm Exchange, corre-
sponding to a market capitalisation of SEK 27.5 billion (SEK 37.4 b). 

In common with other raw material companies, the variation in 
the value of the Boliden share is, on average, greater than for the 
broad stock market index. The so-called beta value of the Boliden 
share over the last five years against the OMXSPI index is 1.57. 

PRICE TREND AND DIVIDEND
The price of the Boliden share fell by 26 per cent in comparison with 
the OMX Stockholm PI and OMX Nordic 40 indices, which fell 
by 17 per cent and 19 per cent, respectively, in 2011. 

The Board of Directors intends to propose to the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting of the shareholders in the company that a dividend of 
SEK 4 (SEK 5) per share be paid for 2011. The proposed dividend 
corresponds to 32.3 per cent (34.6%) of the net earnings per share 
and a dividend yield of 4.0 per cent (3.7%), calculated on the basis 
of the Boliden share price at the end of 2011. 

The Boliden share’s total return (the sum of the dividend paid and 
the price trend) over the most recent 10-year period was 14.1 per cent 
per annum. A table of share-related key ratios over a five-year period 
is shown on page 95. 

SHARE CAPITAL
There are a total of 273,511,169 Boliden shares. Every share has a 
nominal value of SEK 2.12 and the share capital totals SEK 
578,914,338.

Boliden’s share capital comprises a class of share in which every 
share has the same voting power and grants the same entitlement to 
dividends. There are no limitations with regard to the number of 
votes that a shareholder can exercise at General Meetings of the com-
pany’s shareholders. The Boliden Articles of Association contain no 
provision restricting the right to transfer shares. Boliden has neither 
transferred any of its own shares nor issued any shares in 2011. 
Boliden is unaware of any agreement between shareholders that may 
entail restrictions on the right to transfer shares in the company. 
Boliden is not party to any significant agreement affected by any 
public buyout offer. Boliden has no shareholders who, either directly 
or indirectly, represent at least one tenth of the total number of votes 
for all shares. Boliden’s employees hold shares via profit sharing 
foundations for which voting rights cannot be directly exercised. 

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE
Boliden had 95,034 (94,203) registered shareholders on 31st Decem-
ber 2011. Approximately 43 per cent (41%) of the shares were owned 
by Swedish institutions and equity funds, approximately 40 per cent 
(42%) by foreign owners, and approximately 17 per cent (17%) by 
Swedish private persons. The five biggest single shareholders repre-
sent 16 per cent (13.2%) of the share capital. The table overleaf shows 
Boliden’s ownership structure on 31st December 2011.

 
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION ON THE WEBSITE
Boliden’s website, www.boliden.com, provides constantly updated 
information on Boliden, the performance of the Boliden share, 
metal prices and currencies, and financial reports, along with details 
of how to contact Boliden.

OWNERSHIP BY COUNTRY

Approximately 40% of the shares were in 
foreign ownership at the end of the year. 

MARKET CAPITALISATION

Boliden’s market capitalisation at the end 
of 2011 was SEK 27.5 billion. 
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BANKS WHO MONITOR BOLIDEN

ABG Sundal Collier Handelsbanken

Bank of America Merrill Lynch HSBC

Bank of Montreal Morgan Stanley

Carnegie nordea

Cheuvreux Pareto Öhman

Deutsche Bank SEB Enskilda

Erik Penser Swedbank Markets

Exane BnP Paribas uBS

DISTRIBUTION OF BOLIDEN SHARES ON 31ST DECEMBER 2011

Shareholding
Number of 

 shareholders Number of shares Holding, % Votes, %

1 – 500 71,940 11,471,240 4.2 4.2

501 – 1,000 11,656 10,048,611 3.7 3.7

1,001 – 5,000 9,218 21,116,428 7.7 7.7

5,001 – 10,000 1,073 8,169,718 3.0 3.0

10,001 – 50,000 749 15,395,779 5.6 5.6

50,001 – 100,000 123 8,899,328 3.3 3.3

100,001 – 275 198,510,065 72.6 72.6

Total 95,034 273,511,169 100.0 100.0

Source: Euroclear

THE SHARE IN BRIEF

Marketplace NASDAQ OMX STOCKHOLM

Short name BOL

ISIn code SE 0000869646

ICB code 1700

Highest price paid, 2011 SEK 143.50

Lowest price paid, 2011 SEK 65.35

Closing price, 2011 SEK 100.50

Market capitalisation,  
30th December 2011 SEK 27.5 BILLIOn

Turnover rate, 2011 283%

number of shares 273,511,169

Beta value 1.57

Source: NASDAQ OMX

BOLIDEN'S BIGGEST OWNERS ON 31ST DECEMBER 2011

Percentage of capital and votes

nordea fonder 4.14

Swedbank Robur fonder 3.43

AMF Försäkring och Fonder 3.31

AFA Försäkring 3.04

Handelsbanken fonder 2.23

SEB Investment Management 1.88

Folksam – KPA – Förenade Liv 1.77

Söderbloms Factoringtjänst AB 1.54

Andra AP-fonden 1.22

Första AP Fonden 1.11

23.67

The above table only includes owners listed by name in the Register of Shareholders maintained 
by Euroclear. Source: Euroclear

THE SHARE’S ACCUMULATED RETURN

An investment in the Boliden share at the 
end of 2001 had generated an average 
annual return of approximately 14% by the 
end of 2011.

TRADING IN DIFFERENT MARKETPLACES

The percentage of Boliden shares traded 
on the nASDAQ OMX Stockholm Exchange 
rose in 2011 from 67% to 73%. 

OWNERS BY CATEGORY

Foreign financial companies were the big-
gest shareholder category at the end of the 
year.
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Amount in SEK million Note 2011 2010

Revenues 26 40,323 36,716

Cost of goods sold 3 –34,404 –30,038

Gross profit 5,919 6,678

Selling expenses 3 –384 –408

Administrative expenses 2, 3 –540 –431

Research and development costs 3 –358 –286

Other operating income 4 113 101

Other operating expenses –2 –11

Results from participations in associated companies 11 0 0

Operating profit 1–4, 7–9, 26 4,748 5,643

Interest income and other similar items 5 71 7

Interest expenses and other similar items 6 –259 –319

Profit after financial items 4,560 5,331

Taxes 12 –1,171 –1,374

Net profit for the year 3,389 3,957

net profit for the year attributable to:

 The Parent Company's shareholders 3,387 3,955

 Minority holdings 2 2

Earnings per share, SEK 16 12.39 14.47

There are no potential shares and hence no dilution effect

Average number of shares, before and after dilution 273,511,169 273,511,169

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS – 
THE GROUP
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Amount in SEK million Note 2011 2010

Net profit for the year 3,389 3,957

Other comprehensive income

Cash flow hedging

Change in market value of derivative instruments 523 –305

Fiscal effect on derivative instruments –138 80

Transfers to the Income Statement –297 –431

Tax on transfers to the Income Statement 78 113

167 –543

Year's translation difference when converting overseas operations –32 –697

Result of hedging of net investments in overseas operations 42 942

Tax on net profit for the year from hedging instruments –11 –248

–1 –3

Other items included in comprehensive income 0 0

Total other comprehensive income 166 –546

Comprehensive income for the year 3,555 3,411

Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

 The Parent Company's shareholders 3,553 3,409

 Minority holdings 2 2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Amount in SEK million Note 31-12-2011 31-12-2010

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets 7 3,184 3,181

Tangible fixed assets 8

Buildings and land 3,711 3,714

Deferred mining costs 4,094 3,439

Machinery and other technical facilities 14,263 13,111

Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings 237 213

new construction work in progress 621 411

22,927 20,888

Other fixed assets

Participations in associated companies 11 7 6

Other shares and participations 55 27

Deferred tax receivables 12 46 35

Financial investments 0 2

Long-term receivables 120 138

228 208

Total fixed assets 26,339 24,277

Current assets

Inventories 13 7,737 7,924

Accounts receivable 14 1,014 1,167

Tax receivables 30 0

Interest-bearing receivables 3 4

Derivative instruments 22 1,257 317

Other current receivables 15 880 618

Liquid assets 25 355 821

Total current assets 11,276 10,851

TOTAL ASSETS 37,615 35,128

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS –  
THE GROUP
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Amount in SEK million Note 31-12-2011 31-12-2010

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity 16

Share capital 579 579

Other capital injected 5,944 5,944

Translation reserve –91 –90

Hedging reserve 120 –47

Profit carried forward 14,467 12,448

Shareholders' equity attributable to the Parent Company's shareholders 21,020 18,834

Minority holdings 12 12

Total shareholders' equity 21,032 18,846

Long-term liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions 20 4,957 4,353

Other interest-bearing liabilities 20 10 12

Provisions for pensions and similar undertakings 17 653 623

Deferred tax liabilities 12 3,004 2,739

Other provisions 18 1,041 892

Total long-term liabilities 9,665 8,619

Current liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions 20 801 449

Accounts payable 20 3,551 4,622

Provisions 18 123 109

Current tax liabilities 450 1,018

Derivative instruments 21 810 171

Other current liabilities 23 1,183 1,294

Total current liabilities 6,918 7,663

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 37,615 35,128

Pledged assets 24 None None

Contingent liabilities 24 702 573

Net debt, SEK m 31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Liabilities to credit institutions 5,758 4,802

Other interest-bearing liabilities 10 12

Pension liabilities 653 623

Other shares and participations1 –27

Other long-term securities holdings 0 –2

Short-term interest-bearing assets –3 –4

Short-term investments 0 –491

Cash and bank balances –355 –329

6,063 4,584

1) There is no camparison figure for 2011.

Capital employed, SEK m 31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Intangible assets 3,184 3,181

Tangible assets 22,927 20,888

Participations in associated companies 7 6

Other shares and participations1 55

Inventories 7,737 7,924

Accounts receivable 1,014 1,167

Other receivables 2,257 1,073

Provisions, other than for pensions and tax –1,164 –1,001

Accounts payable –3,551 –4,622

Other non-interest-bearing liabilities –1,993 –1,465

30,473 27,151

1) There is no comparison figure in relation to last year due to reclassification in 2011.
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CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY –  
THE GROUP

Shareholders’ equity attributable to the Parent Company’s shareholders

Amount in SEK million Note 
Share  
capital

Other  
capital 

 contributed
Translation 

reserve
Hedging 
reserve

Profit  
carried 

 forward

Total
Boliden’s 

share- 
holders

Minority 
 holdings

Total share-
holders’ 

equity

16

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 
31st Dec. 2009 579 8,076 –87 495 7,184 16,247 10 16,257

net profit for the year – – – – 3,955 3,955 2 3,957

Other comprehensive income – –, –3 –543 – –546 – –546

Comprehensive income for the year – – –3 –543 3,954 3,409 2 3,411

Minority holding in conjunction with 
acquisition – – – – – – 0

Reclassification –2,132 2,132

Dividend to Boliden AB's shareholders – – – – –821 –821 – –821

Dividend to minorities – – – – – – –1 –1

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 
31st Dec. 2010 579 5,944 –90 –47 12,448 18,834 12 18,846

net profit for the year – – – – 3,387 3,387 2 3,389

Other comprehensive income – – –1 167 – 166 166

Comprehensive income for the year – – –0 167 3,387 3,553 2 3,555

Minority holding in conjunction with 
acquisition – – – – – – 0

Dividend to Boliden AB's shareholders – – – – –1,367 –1,367 – –1,367

Dividend to minorities – – – – – – –2 –2

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 
31st Dec. 2011 579 5,944 –91 120 14,467 21,020 12 21,032

Other capital contributed
Refers to shareholders’ equity contributed by the owners. When 
shares are issued at a premium, an amount corresponding to the 
amount received in excess of the nominal value of the shares is 
reported as other capital contributed. 

Translation reserve
The current method is used to convert the Income Statements and 
Balance Sheets of overseas subsidiaries. Any exchange rate differ-
ences that apply are reported directly under other comprehensive 
income. Boliden currency hedges net investments in overseas sub-
sidiaries by adopting the opposite position in the relevant foreign 

currency. The exchange rate difference on hedging instruments is, 
after the fiscal effect, reported under other comprehensive income.

Hedging reserve
Boliden applies hedge accounting for financial derivatives acquired 
with a view to hedging part of forecast currency, metal and interest 
flows. Changes in the market value of hedging instruments are 
reported under other comprehensive income until such time as the 
underlying flows are reported in the Income Statement. 

Profit carried forward
Refers to profits earned.
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Amount in SEK million Note 2011 2010

25

Operating activities

Profit after financial items 4,560 5,331

Adjustments for items not included in the cash flow:

 Depreciation, amortisation and write-down of assets 7, 8 1,937 1,805

 Provisions 32 69

 Translation differences 50 663

Tax paid –1,540 –197

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 5,039 7,672

Cash flow from changes in working capital

Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in inventories 182 –2,820

Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in operating receivables –827 254

Increase(+)/Decrease(-) in operating liabilities –372 1,091

Cash flow from operating activities 4,021 6,197

Investment activities

Acquisition of intangible fixed assets –23 –85

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 8 –3,992 –2,911

Acquisition of financial assets –29 0

Other investment activities 20 1

Cash flow from investment activities –4 024 –2 995

Free cash flow –3 3 202

Financing activities

Dividend –1 369 –822

Loans raised 1 542 0

Amortisation of loans –638 –2 377

Cash flow from financing activities –464 –3 199

Cash flow for the year –467 3

Opening liquid assets 821 825

Exchange rate difference on liquid assets 1 –7

Closing liquid assets 25 355 821

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS  
OF CASH FLOW – THE GROUP 
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INCOME STATEMENTS

Amount in SEK million Note 2011 2010

Dividends from subsidiaries 10 3,218 825

Profit after financial items 3,218 825

Profit before tax 3,218 825

Tax on the profit for the year – –

Net profit for the year 3,218 825

The operations of Boliden AB are limited in scale and are conducted on its 
behalf by Boliden Mineral AB, which means that the profit is reported as part 
of Boliden Mineral AB. Boliden AB has no sums to report under other com-
prehensive income.

BALANCE SHEETS

Amount in SEK million Note 31-12-2011 31-12-2010

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Financial fixed assets

Participations in Group companies 10 3,911 3,911

Participations in other companies 5 5

Other long-term receivables from 
Group companies 5,521 3,672

Total fixed assets 9,438 7,588

Current receivables

Current receivables from Group 
companies 166 449

Total current assets 166 449

TOTAL ASSETS 9,605 8,037

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND 
LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity 16

Restricted equity

Share capital 579 579

Statutory reserve 5,252 5,252

5,831 5,831

Non-restricted equity 

Profit carried forward 393 932

net profit for the year 3,218 825

3,611 1,757

Total shareholders' equity 9,438 7,588

Current liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions 20 166 449

166 449

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,605 8,037

Pledged assets None None

Contingent liabilities* 24 6,697 4,989

*  The Parent Company's contingent liabilities are reported under note 24 
Contingent liabilities, and refer to guarantees issued for subsidiaries. 

CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Amount in SEK million
Share  
capital

Statutory 
reserve

Non-
restricted 
sharehold-
ers' equity

Total  
sharehold-
ers' equity

Closing balance on 
Balance Sheet,  
31st Dec. 2009 579 5,252 1,753 7,584

Dividend – – –821 –821

net profit for the year – – 825 825

Closing balance on 
Balance Sheet,  
31st Dec. 2010 579 5,252 1,757 7,588

Dividend –1,368 –1,368

net profit for the year 3,218 3,218

Closing balance on 
Balance Sheet,  
31st Dec. 2011 579 5,252 3,607 9,438

Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve includes amounts which, prior to 1st January 
2006, were transferred to the share premium reserve. The statu-
tory reserve is a restricted reserve that may not be reduced by 
means of profit dividends.

Non-restricted shareholders’ equity
The total non-restricted shareholders’ equity comprises the profit 
brought forward, together with the net profit for the year. The non-
restricted shareholders’ equity in the Parent Company is available 
for distribution to the shareholders.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

Amount in SEK million 31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Cash flow from operating activities 3,218 825

Financing activities

Loans raised 355 –

Amortisation of loans –638 –527

Dividend –1,368 –821

Loans from Group companies –1,567 523

Cash flow from financing activities – –

Cash flow for the year – –

Opening liquid assets – –

Closing liquid assets – –

THE PARENT COMPANY
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General Accounting Principles
Boliden AB (publ), Swedish corporate ID no. 556051-4142, is a limited 
liability company registered in Sweden. The company’s registered office 
is in Stockholm at the address: Klarabergsviadukten 90,  
SE-101 20 Stockholm. The Boliden share is listed on nASDAQ OMX 
Stockholm’s Large Cap list. Boliden’s shares are also traded on the 
Toronto Stock Exchange in Canada, where they have a secondary listing. 

The Company is the Boliden Group’s Parent Company, whose prin-
cipal operations involve the mining and production of metals and 
operations compatible therewith.

The Consolidated Statements have been compiled in accordance 
with Eu-approved International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpre-
tations Committee (IFRIC) that came into force on 1st January 2011. 
In addition, the Group applies the Swedish Financial Reporting Board’s 
recommendation RFR 1 Supplementary accounting regulations for 
corporate conglomerates specifying the supplements to IFRS required 
pursuant to the stipulations of the Swedish Annual Accounts Act. 

The Parent Company’s functional currency is the Swedish krona 
(SEK) and this is also the reporting currency for both the Group and 
the Parent Company. All amounts in the financial reports are stated 
in millions of Swedish kronor (SEK m) unless otherwise specified. 

Items have been valued at their acquisition value in the consolidated 
accounts, with the exception of certain financial assets and liabilities 
(derivative instruments), which have been valued at their fair value, 
and inventories in those cases where they are hedged at fair value.

The Parent Company’s accounting principles follow those of the 
Group with the exception of the mandatory regulations stipulated in 
the Swedish Financial Reporting Board’s recommendation, RFR 2, 
Accounting for legal entities. The Parent Company’s accounting prin-
ciples are specified under the heading, “The Parent Company’s 
accounting principles”. 

The most important accounting principles that have been applied 
are described below. These principles have been applied consistently 
for all years presented, unless otherwise specified. 

The Annual Report was approved for publication by the Board of 
Directors on 10th February 2012. The Balance Sheets and Income 
Statements are subject to approval by the Annual General Meeting 
on 3rd May 2012. 

New or amended standards and interpretations from IASB and 
IFRIC pronouncements that came into force during the 2011 cal-
endar year are presented below. 
–  IFRS 3, Business combinations. Transition rules with regard to 

conditional purchase prices clarified. 
–  IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures. The amendment entails 

certain easings in disclosure requirements with regard to maxi-
mum credit risk and additional disclosure requirements on the way 
in which pledged assets reduce the credit risk.

–  IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements. Clarification that the 
requirement to reconcile items in Other comprehensive income 
can be done in either the Changes in Shareholders’ Equity report 
or in the notes to the Accounts. 

–  IAS 24, Related party disclosures. Amendment to the definition of 
related parties and exceptions with regard to disclosures in publicly 
owned companies. 

–  IAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements. The 
amendment to IAS 27 that was made in 2008 caused consequen-
tial changes in IAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange 
Rates, IAS 28, Investments in Associates, and IAS 31, Interests in 
joint ventures. The complementing of IAS 27 clarifies in which cases 
these amendments shall be applied pre-emptively or retroactively. 

–  IAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation. Directed issues of 
rights to subscribe for shares after amendments to IAS 32 are 
classified as shareholders’ equity, even when the price is set in a 
currency other than the company’s functional currency. 

–  IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes. The amendment clarifies 
the import of fair value with regard to the valuation of loyalty points 
in customer loyalty programmes. 

–  IFRIC 14, IAS 19 - The Limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum 
funding requirements and their interaction. Surpluses in a pension 
plan caused by payments in advance are reported as an asset 
instead of a cost because the advance payments were made in 
order to obtain future economic benefits by reducing the future 
outflow of resources. 

–  IFRIC 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments. 
Interpretation that is applied when a loan has been renegotiated 
such that all or part of the loan is settled by means of the issue of 
its own equity instruments by the company to the lender. 
none of these new or amended standards and interpretations 

has any effect on Boliden’s financial reporting or accounting. 

The new standards and interpretations that come into force in 
the 2012 calendar year or thereafter are presented below. 
The standards and interpretations presented are those that may, 
in the opinion of the Group, have an effect in future. The Group 
intends to implement these standards when they become applicable. 
–  IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures (addendum). Additional 

quantitative and qualitative disclosures will be required in conjunc-
tion with the elimination of financial instruments from the Balance 
Sheet. This standard will apply to financial years beginning on or 
after 1st July 2011.

–  IFRS 9, Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This 
standard is part of the complete revision of the existing standard, 
IAS 39. The standard entails a reduction in the number of valuation 
categories for financial assets and means that the main categories 
for reporting are at acquisition value (accrued acquisition value) 
and fair value, via the Income Statement. The potential exists, for 
certain investments in shareholders’ equity instruments, to report 
at fair value in the Balance Sheet with the change in value reported 
directly under other comprehensive income, where no transfer to 
the result for the period occurs in conjunction with disposal. new 
rules have also been introduced for the way in which changes in a 
company’s own credit spread shall be presented when liabilities 
are reported at fair value. 

The standard will be complemented with regulations regarding write-
downs and hedge accounting in the Balance Sheet. IASB has pro-
posed the postponement of mandatory implementation until 1st 
January 2015 at the earliest. 

The Group has not evaluated the effects of the new standard, 
pending the completion of work on all parts of the standard. 
–  IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements (replaces IAS 27 and 

SIC 12). Entails the introduction of a single model for determining 
whether a controlling influence exists for all of a company’s invest-
ments. This will result in uniform regulations for consolidation. A 
controlling influence exists if the investor 1) is exposed to or is 
entitled to variable returns from the investment, 2) has the ability 
to affect the return through its power over the investee, and 3) 
there is a link between the return received and the power over the 
investee. The new standard will probably not have any significant 
effect on Boliden’s financial reporting, but a review of the Group’s 
subsidiary companies will be conducted in order to verify this. The 
standard has not yet been adopted by the Eu but is expected to 
become applicable as of 1st January 2013. 

–  IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (replaces IAS 31). Divides existing 
joint ventures into joint operations – the owners are entitled to 
assets and undertakings for liabilities in the investment – or joint 
ventures – the owners are entitled to the net assets of the invest-
ment. The new standard amends existing criteria for determining 
the accounting method where accounting has previously been 
determined by the legal structure of the arrangement and a free 
choice between the equity method and the proportional method. 
The proportional method will disappear for joint ventures, but shall 
be applied to joint operations. Boliden will review the new standard 
to determine whether it will have any effect on the Group’s associ-
ated companies. no decision on the standard has been taken within 
the Eu, but it will probably be applicable as of 1st January 2013. 

–  IFRS 12, Disclosures of Interest in Other Entities. Brings together 
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disclosure requirements regarding subsidiary companies, joint 
arrangements and associated companies in a single standard. A 
number of new disclosure requirements are included. A review of 
how the requirements will affect Boliden will be conducted in con-
junction with the review of IFRS 10 and 11. The Eu is expected to 
approve the standard during the third quarter of 2012 with a pro-
posed implementation date of 1st January 2013. 

–  IFRS 13, Fair value Measurement. The purpose of a new standard 
is to define a unified framework for the measurement of fair value. 
IFRS 13 will be applied to all standards that demand or permit 
valuation at fair value for reporting or disclosure purposes, with 
the exception of IFRS 2, IAS 17, 19, 26 and 36. The standard 
defines fair value and provides instructions on how to determine 
fair value but does not change the requirements with regard to 
which items shall be valued at fair value. Boliden’s valuation princi-
ples will probably not change on the basis of the new standard, but 
an evaluation will be carried out. The standard has not yet been 
approved by the Eu but will probably be applied pre-emptively from 
1st January 2013. 

–  IAS 19, Employee benefits (revised). The change will be imple-
mented as follows 1) the corridor method, by which actuarial prof-
its and losses can be periodised forward in time will be removed, 
2) actuarial profits/losses shall be reported under Other compre-
hensive income, and 3) returns on plan assets reported in the net 
profit shall be calculated using the interest rate used for discount-
ing the pension liability. Supplementary disclosure requirements 
will be expanded. Boliden is currently reviewing the effects in con-
junction with the application of the revised standard, including the 
abolition of the corridor method. For details of amounts reported 
in accordance with the corridor method as of 31st December 
2011, see note 17, Provisions for pensions and similar undertak-
ings. The standard will come into force for financial years beginning 
on 1st January 2013, but has not yet been adopted by the Eu. 

–  IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface 
Mine. A company shall balance the costs of stripping waste rock 
as part of an asset when it is possible to: identify part of an ore 
body where access is improved; identify future economic benefits 
gained from this access, and, assign a reliably estimated cost for 
waste rock stripping to the ore body. The first is a new requirement 
that differs from the methodology for calculating the average value 
of the relationship between ore and waste rock for an entire mine. 
The focus is shifted, instead, to dividing the mine up into different 
components. The term mine shall be interpreted to refer sepa-
rately to every individual open-pit mine. IFRIC 20 has not yet been 
adopted by the Eu but a decision is expected to be taken during the 
second quarter of 2012 and for the new standard to become appli-
cable from 1st January 2013. Boliden is already working on devel-
oping a method of applying the new interpretation and will be able 
to report in accordance with the new interpretation for all com-
parison periods when a decision is reached within the Eu.
Other amendments to standards and interpretative pronounce-

ments that come into effect on 1st January 2012 are not expected 
to have any effect on Boliden’s accounting. 

Estimates and assessments
In order to compile the Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS 
accounting principles, assessments and assumptions must be made 
that impact the reported asset and liability amounts, the income and 
expense amounts, as well as other information provided in the Finan-
cial Statements. The estimates and assessments of the Board of 
Directors and the company’s management are based on historical 
experience and forecast future trends. The actual outcome may dif-
fer from these assessments.

Valuation of inventories
Assessments of the share of internal versus external stocks are 
carried out in conjunction with the valuation of inventories. It is not 
easy, in the smelters’ production processes and in finished metals, 
to differentiate between externally purchased material and mined 
concentrate from the Group’s own operations. Assessments of the 
internally supplied percentage of process inventories and the stocks 
of finished metals are, therefore, carried out with the aid of an his-
torically-based breakdown of raw materials utilised. 

Pension undertakings
Pension provisions are dependent on the assumptions made in con-
junction with the calculations of the amounts. The assumptions refer 
to discount interest rates, future returns on plan assets, rate of 
salary increases, future increases in pensions, the number of 
remaining working years for employees, mortality rates, and other 
factors. The assumptions are made for every country in which 
Boliden has defined benefit pension plans. The most critical factors 
are the discount rate on undertakings and the anticipated return on 
plan assets. Boliden’s undertakings are shown in note 17. Boliden 
reviews the actuarial assumptions annually and amends them when 
necessary. 

Legal disputes
Boliden regularly reviews outstanding legal disputes using internal 
company legal counsel and, when necessary, with the help of exter-
nal advisors, in order to assess the need for provisions to be made. 
See note 24, Pledged assets and contingent liabilities. 

Reclamation costs
Provisions for reclamation are made on the basis of an assessment 
of future costs based on current conditions. Provisions are reviewed 
regularly by internal or external specialists and updates made when 
necessary when the estimated lifespans, costs, technical precondi-
tions, regulations or other conditions of mine or smelter assets 
change. See note 18, Other provisions. 

Valuation of fixed assets
Impairment tests for tangible and intangible assets are based on the 
company’s internal business plan and on assumptions with regard 
to future trends in metal prices and exchange rates, among other 
things. Changes in market prices of metals and currencies have a 
substantial effect on the company’s future cash flows and hence on 
the estimated write-down requirement. Assumptions with regard 
to prices trends for metals and currencies are made by the company 
management with the help of external experts. The assumptions are 
reviewed on an annual basis and adjusted when necessary. For fur-
ther information, see note 8, Tangible fixed assets. 

The depreciation periods for deferred mining costs, installations 
and equipment in mines depend on future ore extraction and the life-
span of the mine. The assessment of these aspects is, in turn, heav-
ily dependent on mineral reserves and, consequently, on future metal 
prices, among other things. Changes to conditions may entail changes 
to the rate of depreciation applied. Business Area Mines draws up 
annual production plans for the mines’ lifespans. 

Consolidated Statements
The Consolidated Statements cover the Parent Company and all 
companies over which the Parent Company through ownership, 
directly or indirectly, exercises a controlling influence. The term 
“controlling influence” refers to companies in which Boliden has the 
right to formulate financial and operational strategies. This is gener-
ally achieved by ensuring that its ownership share, and the share of 
votes, exceeds 50 per cent. The existence and effect of potential 
voting rights that can currently be utilised or converted are taken 
into account when assessing whether the Group is capable of exer-
cising a controlling influence over another company. Subsidiaries are 
included in the Consolidated Statements as of the point in time at 
which a controlling influence was attained, while companies that have 
been sold are included in the Consolidated Statements up to the time 
when the sale occurred, i.e. up to the point in time when controlling 
influence ceased to be exercised. 

The Consolidated Statements have been compiled in accordance 
with the acquisition accounting method, which means that the acqui-
sition value of a company comprises the fair value of the payment 
made (including the fair value of any assets, liabilities and own equity 
instruments issued). The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities acquired which meet the criteria for reporting in accord-
ance with IFRS 3 are reported at their fair value on the acquisition 
date. A determination of whether a holding without a controlling influ-
ence shall be reported at fair value or at the holding’s proportional 
share of the acquired company’s net assets is conducted in conjunc-
tion with every acquisition. When required, the subsidiaries’ accounts 
are adjusted to ensure that they follow the same principles applied 
by other Group companies. All internal transactions between Group 
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companies and intra-Group transactions are eliminated when the 
Consolidated Statements are compiled.

unrealised losses are also eliminated except for transactions 
where there is a clear need for a write-down. 

Associated companies
Shareholdings in associated companies, in which the Group has a 
minimum of 20 per cent and a maximum of 50 per cent of the votes, 
or otherwise has a significant influence over operational and financial 
management, are reported in accordance with the equity method. 
under the equity method, the consolidated book value of the shares 
in the associated companies corresponds to the Group’s share of 
the associated companies’ shareholders’ equity and any residual 
values from consolidated surplus values. Shares in associated com-
panies’ results are reported in the Consolidated Income Statement 
as part of the operating profit and comprise the Group’s share in the 
associated companies’ net results. Shares in profits accumulated 
after the acquisition of associated companies but not yet realised 
through dividends constitute part of the Group’s equity.

Conversion of foreign subsidiaries and other  
overseas operations
The currency in the primary economic environment in which the com-
pany conducts operations is the functional currency. The current 
method is applied in the conversion of Income Statements and Bal-
ance Sheets to the Group’s reporting currency. under the current 
method, all assets, provisions and liabilities are converted at the rate 
of exchange applying on the closing day, while all items in the Income 
Statement are converted at the average exchange rate. Any exchange 
rate differences that arise are reported under Other comprehensive 
income. Accumulated translation differences arising in connection 
with the conversion of subsidiaries’ results are reported as of 2004. 

Boliden hedges it net investments in foreign subsidiaries by taking 
an opposite position (in the form of loans or currency futures) in the 
relevant foreign currency. Any exchange rate differences on hedging 
measures are reported as part of Other comprehensive income. 

In conjunction with the sale of overseas operations whose func-
tional currency is different from the Group’s reporting currency, the 
accumulated translation differences attributable to the operations 
are realised in the Consolidated Income Statement, after deductions 
for any currency hedging activities. 

Financial instruments
The following financial instruments are recognised in the Balance 
Sheet: shares, receivables, liquid assets, liabilities and derivatives. 

Financial assets and liabilities are booked in the Balance Sheet 
when the company becomes bound by the instrument’s contractual 
terms (the economic approach). Liabilities to credit institutions are, 
however, normally not reported until the settlement date. Financial 
assets are removed from the Balance Sheet when the rights or obli-
gations entailed by the agreement are fulfilled, mature or are real-
ised, or are transferred to another counterparty. Financial liabilities 
are removed from the Balance Sheet when the agreement’s obliga-
tions are fulfilled or if highly significant aspects of the loan terms are 
renegotiated. 

Financial instruments are reported using the fair value, accumu-
lated value or acquisition value, depending on the initial categorisation 
under IAS 39. On each reporting occasion, the company performs 
an impairment test to determine whether objective indications exist 
of the need to write down a financial asset or group of financial assets. 

Valuation principles
Fair value 
Boliden has chosen not to take advantage of the ability to value finan-
cial assets or liabilities other than derivatives at fair value. The fair 
value of derivatives is based on listed bid and ask prices on the clos-
ing day and on a discounting of estimated cash flows. Market prices 
for metals are taken from the trading location of metal derivatives, 
i.e. the London Metal Exchange (LME) and the London Bullion Market 
Association (LBMA). Discount rates are based on current market 
rates per currency and time to maturity for the financial instrument. 
Year-end prices are obtained from the Riksbank.

When presenting the fair value of liabilities to credit institutions, 
the fair value is calculated as discounted agreed amortisations and 
interest payments at estimated market interest margins. 

Fair value hierarchy
Boliden has, in accordance with IFRS 7, reported on the financial 
instruments valued at fair value in the Balance Sheet on the basis of 
a three-level fair value hierarchy. Level one comprises instruments 
that are listed and traded on an active market where identical instru-
ments are traded. Level two comprises instruments that are not 
traded on an active market, but where observable market data is 
used for valuation of the instrument (either directly or indirectly). 
Level three comprises instruments where the valuation is, to a not 
inconsiderable extent, based on unobservable market data. 

The assessments have been conducted on the basis of the circum-
stances and factors obtaining with regard to the various instruments. 
Metal futures are classified as level two, in that the discounted prices 
are based on listed daily prices from the exchanges. Currency futures 
and interest swaps have also been classified as level two, with refer-
ence to the fact that the valuation is based on observable market data. 

Accrued acquisition value
Accrued acquisition value is calculated using the effective interest 
rate method. This means that any premiums or discounts, as well 
as expenses or income directly attributable to them, are distributed 
over the duration of the contract with the aid of the estimated effec-
tive interest rate. The effective interest rate is the interest rate that 
yields the instrument’s acquisition value as a result in conjunction 
with current value calculation of future cash flows. 

Acquisition value
The acquisition value is the value reported when the financial instru-
ment was acquired, which corresponds to the original value plus 
transaction costs. 

Valuation category
Boliden divides financial instruments into the following valuation cat-
egories (see note 22). 

Holdings valued at fair value 
Derivatives valued at fair value for which changes in value are reported 
in the Income Statement (net financial items). The derivatives com-
prise currency futures and are not included in hedge accounting. 

Loans and accounts receivable
This category includes financial investments, receivables (not listed 
on an active market) and liquid assets. Liquid assets are defined as, 
in addition to cash and bank balances, short-term investments with 
a maximum term of three months at the time of acquisition and which 
can easily be converted to cash. Liquid assets are only exposed to an 
insignificant risk of fluctuations in value and are reported at their 
nominal amounts. Receivables are defined as accounts receivable 
and interest-bearing short-term holdings of securities or other invest-
ments which are not classified as fixed assets and which are not 
attributable to liquid assets. Receivables are reported in the antici-
pated recoverable amount, i.e. after deductions for bad debts, which 
are assessed on an individual basis. The anticipated term of accounts 
receivable and other current receivables is short and the value is, 
therefore, reported at a nominal amount without discounting in 
accordance with the accrued acquisition value method. 

Financial assets available for sale
Assets in this category comprise shares valued at fair value with 
changes in value recognised under Other comprehensive income. If 
it is not possible to establish the fair value of such shares, they are 
reported at their acquisition value, taking into account accumulated 
write-downs. 

Derivatives used in hedge accounting
This category comprises derivatives valued at fair value and which 
form part of fair value hedging, cash flow hedging and hedging of net 
investments in overseas operations. The derivatives comprise met-
als futures, currency futures, and interest derivatives. See also the 
section entitled Classification and reporting of derivatives used for 
hedging purposes. 

Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities primarily comprise liabilities to credit institutions 
and accounts payable. The anticipated term of accounts payable is 
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short and the value is, consequently, reported at a nominal amount 
without discounting in accordance with the accrued acquisition value 
method. Liabilities to credit institutions are initially valued at amounts 
received, less any set-up fees, and are then valued at the accrued 
acquisition value. Interest expenses are periodised and reported on 
a rolling basis in the Income Statement with the exception of the part 
included in the acquisition value for tangible fixed assets. Capitalised 
set-up fees are reported directly against the loan liability to the 
extent that the loan agreement’s underlying loan guarantee has been 
utilised, and are periodised in the Income Statement (under Other 
financial expenses) over the contractual term of the loan. If a loan 
agreement is terminated or otherwise ceases to obtain at a point in 
time prior to the end of the original contractual term, capitalised 
set-up fees are taken up as income. If a current agreement is rene-
gotiated during the contractual term, any additional fees in connec-
tion with the renegotiation are periodised over the remaining con-
tractual term of the loans. 

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
Receivables, liabilities and derivatives in foreign currencies are con-
verted to Swedish kronor at the exchange rate applying on the clos-
ing date. Exchange rate differences on operating receivables and 
operating liabilities are included in the operating profit, while 
exchange rate differences on financial assets and liabilities are 
reported under financial items.

Classification and reporting of derivatives used  
for hedging purposes
(See note 19 for additional information)
Fair value hedging (binding undertakings)
Changes in the value of financial derivatives used to hedge a binding 
undertaking are reported under the operating profit together with 
changes in the value of the asset or liability that the hedging is 
designed to counter. The fair value of the financial derivatives is 
reported in the Balance Sheet as current assets and liabilities. The 
change in the value of hedged items is, at the same time, reported in 
the Balance Sheet, e.g. as inventories, and changes in the value of 
derivatives consequently effectively match the changes in value from 
hedged items in the Income Statement and Balance Sheet. 

Cash flow hedging (forecast flows)
Hedge accounting is applied to financial derivatives that refer to the 
hedging of forecast flows, which means that the effective share of 
the unrealised market values is reported under Other comprehensive 
income up to the point in time when the hedged item, such as fore-
cast metal sales, dollar income and interest expenses, is realised 
and thus reported in the Income Statement. Realised results attrib-
utable to metal and currency derivatives are reported under net 
sales while the result of interest derivatives is reported under net 
financial items. The ineffective part of cash flow hedging is reported 
under net financial items. 

Hedging of net investments
Hedge accounting is applied to the results of hedging in respect of 
net investments in overseas operations and to cash flow hedging 
under Other comprehensive income. Any ineffective component of 
these hedges is reported under net financial items. In conjunction 
with the sales of overseas operations, associated hedging results 
are reported in the Income Statement, together with the translation 
effect of the net investment. 

Offsetting financial assets against liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are used to offset each other and are 
reported in a net amount per counterparty in the Balance Sheet 
whenever a legal right of offset exists, and when the intention is to 
settle the items using a net amount, or to realise the asset and set-
tle the liability simultaneously. net reporting is applied for financial 
derivatives. 

State contributions and support
State support in the form of subsidies, grants or premiums designed 
to provide an economic benefit, or state support in the form of trans-
fers of resources to the company that may be applied to an under-
taking, occur on such a limited scale that they neither affect the 
Group’s results nor afford the Group an operational advantage. 

Revenue recognition
Sales of metal concentrates, metals and by-products are reported 
at the time of delivery to the customer in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of sale, that is to say revenue is recognised whenever 
significant rights and obligations associated with the title transfer 
to the purchaser. These sales are reported net after vAT, discounts 
and exchange rate differences when sales are made in foreign cur-
rencies. 

Preliminary invoices are issued for the Group’s metal concen-
trates at the time of delivery. Definitive invoices are issued when all 
component parameters (concentrate quantity, metal content, impu-
rity content, and the metal price for the agreed pricing period – nor-
mally the average price on the LME in the month after delivery) have 
been established. 

The Group’s metals are invoiced to the customers at the time of 
delivery. The Group eliminates the price risk in conjunction with the 
sale and purchase of metals by hedging the imbalance between quan-
tities purchased and sold on a daily basis. The smelters’ income 
comprises TC/RC, free metals, compensation for impurities in the 
raw materials, and the worth of by-products. 

Income from activities outside the sphere of the regular opera-
tions is reported as other operating income. 

Exploration, research and development
Boliden’s R&D primarily comprises exploration, that is searching for 
new deposits of base metals. Boliden is also involved, to a limited 
extent, in developing mining and smelting processes. Expenses asso-
ciated with research and development are primarily booked as costs 
when they arise. When the financial potential for the exploitation of 
a mine deposit has been confirmed, the expenses are booked as 
costs up to that date. After that date, the expenses are capitalised 
as deferred mining costs, the governing principles of which are 
described under the Tangible fixed assets heading. 

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets include patents, licenses, similar rights and 
goodwill, which are booked at their acquisition value less deprecia-
tions and any write-downs. Goodwill comprises the amount by which 
the acquisition value exceeds the fair value of the Group’s share of 
the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable net assets as well as any con-
tingent liabilities at the time of acquisition. Goodwill is reported in 
the Balance Sheet at the value given in conjunction with the acquisi-
tion, converted, where relevant, at the closing day rate, after deduc-
tion for accumulated write-downs. Calculations of the profit or loss 
on the sale of a unit include any remaining reported goodwill value 
ascribed to the operations sold. 

Goodwill has been assessed as having an indefinable useful life. 
Goodwill is allocated to the smallest possible unit or groups of units 
that generate cash where separate cash flows can be identified, and 
an impairment test is performed on the reported value at least once 
a year to determine whether there is any need of a write-down. Such 
impairment tests are, however, performed more frequently if there 
are indications that the value may have fallen during the year. 

Other intangible assets are amortised over their anticipated use-
ful lives.

Tangible fixed assets
Land, plants and equipment, and capitalised costs associated there-
with for development and pre-production measures, are booked at 
the acquisition value less depreciations and any write-downs. Inter-
est expenses attributable to financing development and completion 
of significant tangible fixed assets are included in the acquisition 
value. Repair and maintenance expenses are booked as costs, while 
substantial improvements and replacements are capitalised. Esti-
mated expenses for the dismantling and removal of an asset and the 
restoration of a site or area where the asset is located (reclamation 
costs) are capitalised. Capitalised amounts comprise estimated 
expenses, calculated at current value, which are simultaneously 
reported as provisions. 

Deferred mining costs at mines comprise the waste rock excava-
tion required to access the ore body, work relating to infrastructural 
facilities, roads, tunnels, shafts and inclined drifts, as well as service, 
electricity and air distribution facilities. Deferred mining costs aris-
ing from capacity expansion of the mining operation, the development 
of new ore bodies and the preparation of mining areas for future ore 
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production are capitalised and written off concurrently with the ore 
production. Mining costs associated with waste rock removal from 
open-pit sites are capitalised and booked as costs in the operations 
based on the average percentage of waste rock per mine. The aver-
age percentage of waste rock is calculated as the estimated number 
of tonnes of waste rock that must be mined divided by the estimated 
number of tonnes of ore that the deposit is believed to contain. When 
the percentage of waste rock for the mines remains relatively con-
stant over the useful life of the mines, the costs are normally reported 
when they arise. 

Depreciation and write-down principles for tangible fixed assets
Depreciation according to plan is based on the original acquisition 
value and the estimated economic lifespan. The company normally 
depreciates plants and equipment used in the mining operations lin-
early over whichever is the lower of their anticipated useful life and 
the useful life of the mine to which they relate. Depreciation is 
effected to the estimated residual value. Estimated residual values 
and estimated lifespans are subject to ongoing review. Smelters and 
production plants are depreciated linearly over their anticipated use-
ful lives. The following depreciation periods are applied to tangible 
fixed assets: 
Buildings 20–50 years
Land improvements 20 years
Deferred mining costs Concurrently with ore depletion
Machinery and other technical facilities
 Machinery 3–10 years
 Processing plants 10–25 years
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings 3–10 years

Boliden applies component depreciation, which means that larger 
processing facilities are broken down into component parts with dif-
ferent useful lives and thus different depreciation periods. 

When events or changes in prevailing conditions indicate that the 
book value of fixed assets exceeds the recovery value, this value is 
written down to this lower recovery rate. 

Write-downs
On each reporting occasion, an assessment is performed to deter-
mine whether there is any indication that the value of the Group’s 
assets has depreciated or been impaired. Should this be the case, 
a calculation is performed of the recovery value of the asset in ques-
tion. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units and is, together with any intangible assets with an 
indefinable useful life, subjected to annual impairment tests even if 
there are no indications of a reduction in its value. Impairment tests 
are, however, performed more frequently if indications exist of a 
decline in value. The recovery value comprises whichever is the 
higher of the value in use of the asset in the operations and the value 
that would result if the asset was sold to an independent party, fair 
value minus selling expenses. The value in use comprises the present 
value of all incoming and outgoing payments attributable to the asset 
over the period that it is expected to be used in the operations, plus 
the present value of the net sales value at the end of the asset’s use-
ful life. If the estimated recovery value is lower than the booked value, 
the latter is written down to the former. 

Write-downs are reported in the Income Statement. Any write-
downs performed are reversed if changes in the assumptions lead-
ing to the original write-down mean that the write-down is no longer 
warranted. Write-downs that have been performed are not reversed 
in such a way that the reported value exceeds the amount that would, 
following deductions for amortisation according to plan, have been 
reported if no write-down had been performed. Reversals of write-
downs performed are reported in the Income Statement. Goodwill 
write-downs are not reversed. 

Leasing
A financial leasing agreement is an agreement whereby the financial 
risks and benefits associated with a title are, in all significant 
respects, transferred from the lessor to the lessee. Leasing agree-
ments that are not classified as financial leasing agreements are 
classified as operational leasing agreements. 

Assets held in accordance with financial leasing agreements are 
reported initially as fixed assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
at the lower of the market value of the assets or the present value 

of the future lease payments. The Group’s liability in relation to the 
lessor is reported in the Balance Sheet under the heading Liabilities 
to credit institutions, broken down into current and long-term com-
ponents. 

Lease payments are broken down into interest and amortisation 
of the liability. The interest is distributed over the leasing period so 
that an amount corresponding to the fixed interest amount payable 
on the liability reported in each period is charged to each reporting 
period. The leased asset is depreciated according to the same prin-
ciples as those that apply to other assets of the same type. 

The leasing charges for operational leasing agreements are 
booked as costs on a linear basis over the leasing period. 

Inventories
The Group’s inventories primarily comprise mined concentrate, 
materials tied up in the smelters’ production processes, and finished 
metals. Inventories are valued at whichever is the lower of the acqui-
sition value in accordance with the so-called first-in-first-out principle 
and the net sale value, taking into account the risk of obsolescence. 
The acquisition value of inventories of metals from the company’s 
mines and semi-finished and finished products manufactured in-
house comprises the direct manufacturing costs plus a reasonable 
surcharge for indirect manufacturing costs. Supplies inventories 
are valued at whichever is the lower of the average acquisition value 
and the replacement value. When mined concentrate is brought in 
from external sources and definitive pricing has not yet occurred, 
the acquisition value is estimated at the closing day price. Fair value 
hedging is effected in conjunction with definitive pricing of mined 
concentrate. The change in value of hedged items in the inventory 
value is also reported in conjunction with fair value hedging. 

Taxes
The tax expense (income) for the period comprises current tax and 
deferred tax. Taxes are reported in the Income Statement under 
Other comprehensive income and in shareholders’ equity. 

Current tax is the tax calculated on the taxable result for each 
period. The year’s taxable result differs from the year’s reported 
result before tax in that it has been adjusted for non-taxable and 
non-deductible items and temporary differences. The Group’s cur-
rent tax liability is calculated in accordance with the taxation rates 
stipulated or announced on the closing day. 

Deferred tax is reported using the Balance Sheet method, under 
which deferred tax liabilities are reported in the Balance Sheet for 
all taxable temporary differences between reported and fiscal values 
of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax receivables are reported in the 
Balance Sheet in respect of deficit deductions and all deductible tem-
porary differences to the extent that it is likely that the amounts can 
be used to offset future taxable surpluses. The reported value of 
deferred tax receivables is checked at the end of each accounting 
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer likely that suffi-
cient taxable surpluses will be available for its use. Deferred tax is 
calculated in accordance with the taxation rates that are expected 
to apply to the period in which the asset is recovered or the liability 
is settled. 

Both deferred and current tax receivables and tax liabilities are 
offset when they relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority. 

Provisions
Provisions are reported when the Group has, or may be considered 
to have an obligation as a result of events that have occurred and it 
is likely that disbursements will be required in order to fulfil this obli-
gation. A further prerequisite is that it should be possible to make a 
reliable estimate of the amount to be paid. 

Provisions are made for the estimated reclamation costs that are 
expected to arise when operations are decommissioned and are 
written off over the total estimated operating period. 

When a significant effect arises due to the point in time at which 
a provision is paid, the provision is valued at the present value of the 
amount estimated to be required to fulfil the obligation. A discount 
interest rate before tax, that reflects current market evaluations of 
the time value of money and the risks associated with the provision, 
is applied in conjunction herewith. The increase that is due to time 
passing is reported as an interest expense. 

Provisions are broken down into short-term and long-term provi-
sions.
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Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a potential undertaking that derives from 
events which have occurred and whose incidence is only confirmed 
by one or more uncertain future events. A contingent liability can 
also be an existing undertaking that has not been reported in the 
Balance Sheet because it is unlikely that an outflow of resources will 
be required or because the size of the undertaking cannot be calcu-
lated. See note 24 Pledged assets and contingent liabilities. 

Employee benefits
Pension undertakings
The Group’s companies have a variety of pension systems in accord-
ance with local conditions and practices in the countries in which 
they operate. They are generally financed through payments made 
to insurance companies or through the company’s own provisions 
which are determined through periodic actuarial calculations. The 
Group’s provisions for pension undertakings are calculated in accord-
ance with IAS 19, Employee benefits. 

For pension systems where the employer is committed to pre-
mium-based solutions, the undertaking in relation to the employee 
ceases when the agreed premiums have been paid. Premiums paid 
are booked as costs on an ongoing basis. 

For other pension systems where a defined benefit pension has 
been contractually agreed, the undertaking does not cease until the 
agreed pensions have been paid out. Boliden commissions independ-
ent actuaries to calculate pension undertakings relating to the 
defined benefit pension plan arrangements in each country. These 
calculations take account of future salary increases, the discount 
rate and the return on plan assets, as well as other significant actu-
arial assumptions. 

The pension cost for the year comprises the present value of pen-
sions earned during the year, plus interest on the undertaking at the 
start of the year, less deductions for the return on each pension 
plan’s plan assets. Amortisation of actuarial profits/losses and for 
changes to plans is added to this figure. Accumulated profits and/
or losses totalling less than 10 per cent of whichever is the higher of 
the pension undertaking and the fair value of the plan assets are not 
amortised. When the accumulated profit or loss exceeds this 10 per 
cent limit, the excess amount is amortised over the average remain-
ing period of employment of each of the pension plan’s employees. 

Remuneration may be payable in the event of notice being given if 
an employee is given notice prior to the end of the normal retirement 
date or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy. The Group 
reports a liability and a cost in connection with a notice being given 
when Boliden is obligated to give the employee in question notice 
prior to the normal point in time for employment cessation, or to 
provide remuneration with a view to encouraging early retirement. 

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Transaction costs 
in conjunction with a new share issue are reported as a net amount 
after tax for deduction from the issue proceeds received. 

Buy-back of own shares
Boliden’s holdings of its own shares are reported as a reduction in 
shareholders’ equity. Transaction costs are reported directly against 
shareholders’ equity. 

Dividend
A dividend payment proposed by the Board of Directors does not 
reduce the shareholders’ equity until it has been approved by the 
Annual General Meeting. Anticipated dividends are reported in those 
cases where the Parent Company has the sole right to determine 
the size of the dividend and has ensured that the dividend does not 
exceed the subsidiary company’s dividend payment capacity. 

Information per segment
Boliden’s operations are organised into two Business Areas: Business 
Area Smelters and Business Area Mines. The Business Areas corre-
spond to Boliden’s operating segments in that 1) the Business Area 
Managers are directly responsible to the CEO, 2) the CEO controls the 
Group’s component parts via two “Business Area Boards, one for each 
Business Area, through which the financial results in relation to financial 
goals are evaluated, 3) financial goals and investment plans and overhead 
budgets for the respective Business Areas are set in the business plan 

and budget processes, 4) decisions on goals and resource allocation for 
units within the respective Business Areas is conducted within the 
respective Business Areas’ management groups, and 5) heads of oper-
ating units report not to the CEO but to the Business Area Managers. 

Business Area Mines comprises the operations of the Swedish 
mines, Aitik, the Boliden Area and Garpenberg, and the Tara mine in 
Ireland. Aitik produces copper concentrate with some gold and silver 
content. The other Swedish mines produce zinc, copper and lead 
concentrates, with variable gold and silver content. Tara produces 
zinc and lead concentrates. Business Area Mines is also responsible 
for sales of mined concentrates. 

Business Area Smelters comprises the Kokkola and Odda zinc 
smelters, the Rönnskär and Harjavalta copper smelters, and the Berg-
söe lead smelter. The Business Area is responsible for all sales of the 
smelters’ products and handles all raw material flows between the 
Group’s mines, smelters and customers. This includes responsibility 
for purchases of metal concentrates and recycling materials from 
external suppliers. The zinc smelters’ production primarily comprises 
zinc metal, but also includes aluminium fluoride, which is manufactured 
at Odda. The copper smelters’ production primarily comprises copper, 
gold, silver, lead and sulphuric acid. The copper smelters also recycle 
metal and electronic scrap and smelt nickel. The Bergsöe lead smelter 
recycles lead metal mainly from scrap car batteries. 

Transactions between the Business Areas, primarily involving 
metal concentrates, are settled on market terms. 

Group staff functions, Group-wide functions that are not assigned 
to Smelters or Mines are reported under the heading Other. The 
market valuation of financial derivatives used to manage currency 
and metal price risks are reported under Other until such time as 
their underlying flows are reflected in the Income Statement. 
Accounting principles applied in the segment accounting otherwise 
correspond to the principles applied within the Group. 

note 26 on pages 85-86 contains details of revenues per geo-
graphical market, showing the location of external customers and 
information on major customers. Assets and investments per geo-
graphical market are also reported there. 

The Parent Company’s accounting principles
The Parent Company’s annual accounts are compiled in accordance 
with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act, the Swedish Financial Report-
ing Board’s recommendation, RFR 2, Accounting for legal entities, 
and the statements issued by the Swedish Financial Reporting Board. 
RFR 2 means that the Parent Company shall, in the annual accounts 
for the legal entity, apply all Eu-approved International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statements to the extent that this 
is possible within the framework of the Swedish Annual Accounts Act 
and while taking into account the connection between reporting and 
taxation. The recommendation specifies the exceptions and additions 
to be made in relation to IFRS. The differences between the Group’s 
and the Parent Company’s accounting principles are described below. 

Reporting Group contributions
Group contributions received are reported directly as financial 
income in the Income Statement. Group contributions made are 
reported as an investment or a cost, due to the connection between 
accounting and taxation. The principle for reporting Group contribu-
tions was amended during the calendar year, but this amendment 
has had no effect on Boliden. 

Shareholders’ contributions are booked directly against non-
restricted equity by the recipient and as an increase in the item 
“Participations in Group companies” by the contributor.

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are not valued in the Parent Company in 
accordance with IAS 39. The valuation is conducted on the basis of 
the acquisition value. 

Subsidiaries
Participations in subsidiary companies are reported in the Parent 
Company in accordance with the acquisition value method. Transac-
tion expenses are reported as costs in the consolidated accounts, 
while in the Parent Company, they are reported as part of the acqui-
sition value. 

Determination of the value of subsidiary companies is effected 
when there are indications of a Decline in value. 
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All amounts are in SEK million unless otherwise stated. All notes refer to the Group unless otherwise stated.

Note 1 Employees and personnel costs

The Parent Company has no employees. The Group management is employed by Boliden Mineral AB.

Average number of employees1 2011 of whom women of whom men 2010 of whom women of whom men

Subsidiaries

Sweden 2,488 494 1,994 2,429 448 1,981

Finland 904 140 764 944 137 807

norway 321 44 277 326 47 279

Ireland 696 30 666 699 34 665

Others 14 4 10 14 3 11

Total in subsidiaries/Group 4,423 712 3,711 4,412 669 3,743
1) Refers to full-time employees.

Percentage of women at corporate management level 2011 2010

Board of Directors 27% 27%

Group Management 0% 0%

2011 2010

Salaries, other remunerations and social security 
expenses

Salaries and 
 remunerations

Social security  
expenses

Salaries and 
 remunerations

Social security  
expenses

Subsidiaries 2,382 808 2,330 780

(of which pension expenses) –453 –353

Group total 2,382 808 2,330 780

(of which pension expenses) –453 –353

2011 2010

Salaries and other remunerations broken down by 
country and between Board Members etc. and other 
employees

Board of Directors, 
 President & other  
senior executives

Other  
employees

Board of Directors, 
 President & other  
senior executives

Other  
employees

Subsidiaries in Sweden 24 1,254 25 1,161

Subsidiaries abroad

Finland 4 414 4 432

norway 2 180 3 184

Ireland 3 491 4 505

Others – 10 – 12

Group total 33 2,349 36 2,294

NOTES

Profit sharing system
A new profit-sharing system was introduced for all employees of the 
Boliden Group in 2007. A profit share is payable when the return on 
capital employed reaches 10 per cent, and the maximum profit share 
(SEK 25,000/full-time employee) is payable when the return on 
capital employed reaches 20 per cent. The annual maximum alloca-
tion must never, however, exceed one third of the dividend paid to 
shareholders. The funds cannot be disbursed to employees for 3 
years. An allocation of SEK 16,800 SEK (SEK 25,000) per full-time 
employee was made for 2011 as the return on capital employed was 
17 per cent (21%). The total amount allocated is SEK 79 million 
(SEK 114 m). The profit sharing foundation invests each year’s allo-
cation in liquid interest-bearing assets and shares in Boliden.

Remunerations paid to the Board Members and senior executives
Principles
Fees as approved by the Annual General Meeting are payable to the 
Chairman of the Board and to members of the Board. The President 
and Employee representatives receive no Directors’ fees.

Remuneration paid to the President and other senior executives 
comprises the basic salary, variable remuneration, other benefits 
and pensions. The term “senior executives” refers to those persons 
who have comprised the Group management during the year. The 
Group management comprised five persons, including the President, 
at the end of the year. All members of the Group management are 
employed in Sweden. 

The breakdown between basic salary and variable remuneration 
shall be in proportion to the executive’s responsibilities and author-
ity. The variable remuneration is maximised to 60 per cent of the 
basic salary for the President, while for other senior executives, it 
is maximised to 40–50 per cent of the basic salary. 10 percentage 
points of this is conditional on the purchase of Boliden shares for the 
gross sum before tax. 

Pension benefits and other benefits payable to the President and 
other senior executives are taken into account when determining 
fixed and variable remuneration.
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Directors’ fees, as shown above, also include remuneration for work 
on the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. 
 
Variable remuneration
The variable remuneration paid to the President in 2011 was based 
on the Group’s return on shareholders’ equity and production vol-
umes at Aitik.

For other members of the Group management, 20-60 per cent 
of the variable remuneration for 2011 was based on the Group’s 
financial goals and 40-80 per cent on their personal spheres of 
responsibility and individual goals. Other benefits refer primarily to 
company cars. 

Pensions
The President has a defined contribution pension plan to which the 
company allocates 35 per cent of the fixed monthly salary on a roll-
ing basis. The President decides for himself the level of survivor 
annuity, indemnity for medical treatment or disability, etc. compo-
nent of his insurance solution. The President’s retirement age is 65. 

All of the Group management members, with the exception of one, 
have defined contribution pension plans to which the company allo-
cates 25-35 per cent of the fixed monthly salary. The retirement age 
is 65. One member has a retirement age of 60 and a defined benefit 
pension plan yielding approximately 70 per cent of the agreed fixed 
salary between the ages of 60 and 65. 

Severance pay
The President and the company shall give six and twelve months’ 
notice of the termination of the President’s position, respectively. If 
notice is given by the company, severance pay corresponding to 
twelve months’ salary is payable, over and above the notice period 
pay. Other income shall be offset against the severance pay. no sev-
erance pay is payable in the event of notice being given by the Presi-
dent. 

Other members of the Group management have notice periods 
of between three and six months if they give notice themselves. If 
notice of termination is given by the company, the period of notice is 
between six and twelve months. In addition, severance pay corre-
sponding to between six and eighteen months’ salary shall be paya-
ble. The combined remuneration payable in the event of notice being 
given by the company does not, however, exceed 24 months’ salary 
for any one executive. Other income shall be offset against the sev-
erance pay. no severance pay is payable in the event of own notice 
being given.

Preparation and decision-making process
See the Corporate Governance Report, 2011, on pages 100–103.

Note 2 Auditors’ fees and reimbursement of expenses

2011 2010

Ernst & Young AB

Audit engagements 5 5

Auditing engagements over and above audit 
engagements 1 1

Tax consultancy 0 1

Other engagements 0 0

6 7

Note 3 Key expense items 

2011 2010

Raw material costs, incl. inventory changes 23,175 19,408

Personnel costs 3,282 3,203

Energy costs 2,190 1,982

Other external costs 5,113 4,768

Depreciation and amortisation according to 
plan 1,927 1,802

35,687 31,162

The specification of key expense items relates to the following Income 
Statement items: “Costs of goods sold”, “Selling expenses”, “Admin-
istrative expenses” and “Research and development costs”.

Depreciation and amortisation are reported 
under the following Income Statement 
items: 2011 2010

Cost of goods sold 1,912 1,788

Selling expenses 1 0

Administrative expenses 12 13

Research and development costs 1 1

1,927 1,802

Note 1, cont.

Remunerations and other benefits during the year
Specification of remunerations paid to the Board Members and senior executives.

SEK
Directors' fees/ 

Basic salary
Variable 

 remuneration
Other  

benefits
Pension  
benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Board of Directors

 Anders ullberg, Chairman of the Board 1,125,000 1,025,000

 Marie Berglund 400,000 350,000

 Staffan Bohman 450,000 400,000

 ulla Litzén 550,000 500,000

 Michael G:son Löw 400,000 350,000

 Leif Rönnbäck 475,000 425,000

 Matti Sundberg 400,000 350,000

Group Management

 Lennart Evrell, President 6,284,542 6,093,303 1,609,2731 2,196,0003 194,732 185,258 2,169,956 2,109,933

Other members of the Group management2 8,675,324 9,892,326 1,839,4641 3,127,1443 349,588 436,935 3,409,720 7,644,802

1) The amounts are attributable to 2011 but will be disbursed in 2012.

2) A total of 5 people in 2010 and 2011.

3) The amounts are attributable to 2010 but will be disbursed in 2011.
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Note 7 Intangible fixed assets

Capitalised develop-
ment expenses

Patents, licences and 
similar rights Goodwill

Total intangible fixed 
assets

ACQUISITION VALUES

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 31st December 2009

Beginning of year 69 3,328 3,397

Investments1 85 – 85

Disposals 0 – 0

Reclassifications 1 – 1

Year's translation differences –17 –244 –261

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 31st December 2010 138 3,084 3,222

Beginning of year 138 3,084 3,222

Investments1 18 5 – 23

Disposals 0 – 0

Reclassifications 1 – 1

Year's translation differences –1 –9 –10

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 31st December 2011 18 143 3,075 3,236

DEPRECIATION

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 31st December 2009

Beginning of year –38 – –38

Year's amortisation –11 – –11

Year's translation differences 8 – 8

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 31st December 2010 –41 – –41

Beginning of year –41 – –41

Year's amortisation –13 – –13

Year's translation differences 1 – 1

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 31st December 2011 –53 – –53

Closing balance, 2010 97 3,084 3,181

Closing balance, 2011 18 90 3,075 3,184

Amortisation according to plan, included in the operating profit

2011 –13 – –13

2010 –11 – –11

1) Investment in sulphuric acid plant in Kokkola

Note 4 Other operating income

2011 2010

Compensation for sludge deliveries 14 20

Rental income from industrial premises in 
Finland 21 20

Other 78 61

113 101

Note 5 Interest income and other similar items

2011 2010

Interest income on liquid assets 5 2

Cash flow hedging ineffectiveness – 3

Interest on currency futures 62 –

Other 4 2

71 7

Note 6 Interest expenses and other similar items

2011 2010

Interest on loans at accrued acquisition 
value 155 129

Interest on currency futures – 38

Interest on pension provisions 18 18

Other financial items 86 134

259 319

Deductions have been made from interest payments on loans at the 
accrued acquisition value for interest capitalisation attributable to 
the expansion of electronic scrap recycling capacity at the Rönnskär 
copper smelter and the Garpenberg expansion, totalling SEK 19 mil-
lion (SEK 61 m). Interest expenses on loans, before deductions for 
interest capitalisation, have been negatively affected due to higher 
interest rates in 2011. Boliden’s average interest rate in 2011 
totalled 3.15 per cent (2.66%), weighted against rolling debt. 

The company’s goodwill item arose primarily in conjunction with the 
acquisition of the operations from Outokumpu at the end of Decem-
ber 2003. The goodwill from the 2003 acquisition has been allo-
cated in its entirety to the Group’s Smelters segment.

Impairment tests have been carried out on the value of goodwill in 
the manner described in note 8 under Impairment testing − Intan-
gible and tangible fixed assets.
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Note 8 Tangible fixed assets

Buildings  
and land

Deferred  
mining costs

Machinery and 
other technical 

facilities

Equipment,  
tools, fixtures 

and fittings

New  
construction & 

advances on  
fixed assets

Total  
tangible fixed 

assets

ACQUISITION VALUES

Closing balance on Balance Sheet,  
31st December 2009

Beginning of year 5,626 4,535 26,581 1,499 1,726 39,967

Investments 240 531 1,881 15 244 2,911

Sales and retirements –5 0 –154 –5 – –163

Reclassifications 1,274 236 38 0 –1,548 –1

Year's translation differences –345 –142 –1,292 –105 –11 –1,896

Closing balance on Balance Sheet,  
31st December 2010 6,789 5,160 27,053 1,405 411 40,818

Beginning of year 6,789 5,160 27,053 1,405 411 40,818

Investments1 358 525 2,839 61 209 3,992

Sales and retirements –10 –12 –287 –8 – –318

Reclassifications –102 365 –268 2 2 –1

Year's translation differences –14 –8 –56 –2 –1 –82

Closing balance on Balance Sheet,  
31st December 2011 7,021 6,029 29,280 1,457 621 44,409

DEPRECIATION

Closing balance on Balance Sheet, 31st December 
2009

Beginning of year –3,043 –1,579 –13,644 –1,247 – –19,513

Year's amortisation –231 –178 –1,342 –39 – –1,791

Sales and retirements 5 0 151 4 – 161

Reclassifications – – –3 3 – 0

Year's translation differences 194 36 896 88 – 1,214

Closing balance on Balance Sheet,  
31st December 2010 –3,075 –1,721 –13,942 –1,191 – –19,929

Beginning of year –3,075 –1,721 –13,942 –1,191 – –19,929

Year's amortisation –251 –229 –1,396 –39 – –1,914

Sales and retirements 7 12 279 8 – 306

Reclassifications 0 – 0 – – 0

Year's translation differences 8 3 42 2 – 55

CLOSING BALANCE ON BALANCE SHEET,  
31ST DECEMBER 2011 –3,310 –1,935 –15,017 –1,220 – –21,483

Closing balance, 2010 3,714 3,439 13,111 213 411 20,888

Closing balance, 2011 3,711 4,094 14,263 237 621 22,927

Amortisation according to plan,  
included in the operating profit

2011 –251 –229 –1,396 –39 – –1,914

2010 –231 –178 –1,342 –39 – –1,791

1) Includes SEK 47 million (SEK 187 m) in future costs for reclamation.
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Impairment tests − Intangible and tangible fixed assets
Impairment tests are carried out yearly, or throughout the year if an 
event occurs that may result in an impairment requirement, and are 
based on the Group’s annual budget and strategic planning work. 
The planning horizon is the estimated lifespan of each mine and 10 
years for smelters. Boliden’s operations are characterised by long-
term production plans in which every mine has set production plans 
for the entire estimated lifespan of the mine in question, while a sub-
stantial part of the smelters’ concentrate supply is regulated by 
means of long-term delivery agreements. This long-term production 
planning also enables the use of long-term cash flow forecasts. Addi-
tional growth assumptions are not included in extrapolated cash flow 
forecasts beyond the planning horizon. Any residual value of fixed 
assets at the end of a mine’s lifespan is not taken into account in the 
discounted cash flow. 

The value of discounted cash flows is highly sensitive to metal prices 
TC/RC and exchange rates (see sensitivity table on page 30). The 
present value of estimated future cash flows is based on the budget 
and planning prices adopted by the Board of Directors. Planning 
prices for the first year comprise the relevant futures prices on met-
als and currency markets. The long-term planning prices used in year 
two and thereafter consist of an anticipated average price over a 
single business cycle, generally ten years. The long-term planning 
prices are based on internal and external analyses, primarily with 
regard to anticipated demand for metals and margin costs for metal 
producers. The long-term planning prices are compared with aver-
age long-term prices from different market players, such as industry 
analysts and other mining and smelting companies. The Group does 
not believe that futures prices from base metal markets are good 
indicators of long-term price trends, in that they are heavily depend-
ent on spot prices.

The long-term planning prices are currently as listed in the table 
below.

 
2011 2010

 Metal  
prices

Treatment/ 
refining charges

Exchange  
rates

 Metal  
prices

Treatment/ 
refining charges

Exchange  
rates

Copper uSD 5,500/t uSD 60/tonne/uSc 6.0/lb. uSD/SEK 7.00 uSD 5,000/t uSD 50/tonne/uSc 5.0/lb. uSD/SEK 7.58

Zinc uSD 2,100/t uSD 250 base uSD 2,100 uSD/nOK 6.42 uSD 2,000/t uSD 250 base uSD 2,000 uSD/nOK 6.42

Lead uSD 2,000/t uSD 225 base uSD 2,000 EuR/uSD 1.29 uSD 1,600/t uSD 200 base uSD 1,200 EuR/uSD 1.20

Gold uSD 1,100/oz. uSD 750/oz.

Silver uSD 20.0/oz. uSD 12.0/oz.

Interest expenses carried forward included in the residual value according to plan

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Reported value, SEK m Interest rate, % Reported value, SEK m Interest rate, %

Rönnskär's expansion, completed 2000 46 6,8 49 6,8

Odda's expansion, completed 2004 11 4,0 12 4,0

Aitik's expansion, completed 2010 235 2,5 248 2,5

Rönnskär, electronic scrap recycling, ongoing project 15 3,15 1 3,3

Garpenberg's expansion, ongoing project 5 3,15 _ _

Individual mines or mining areas with shared refining facilities, cop-
per smelters, zinc smelters, Boliden Bergsöe AB and Boliden Com-
mercial AB are classified as cash-generating units. The discounted 
real cash flows before tax for the respective cash-generating units 
are compared with the book value of capital employed. The cash flows 
are discounted with a real discount rate before tax of 10 per cent 
(10%), which corresponds to the weighted capital cost. The value in 
use of the Group’s assets is held to exceed the reported values and 
no write-down requirement is consequently deemed to exist. An 
increase in the discount rate of one percentage point did not give 
rise to any write-downs.

The Group’s goodwill is allocated in its entirety to Segment Smelt-
ers. A reduction in long-term planning prices for metals of approxi-
mately 5 per cent would result in the book values exceeding the dis-
counted cash flows for Segment Smelters. Significant effects on the 

smelters’ results are caused mainly by zinc prices. A weakening of 
the uS dollar by just over 5 per cent or more against all other cur-
rencies would, in the event of unchanged long-term planning prices 
for metals, result in the book values exceeding the value of the dis-
counted cash flows for Segment Smelters. This presupposes, how-
ever, that no compensatory movements in metal prices, TC/RC, 
prices of by-products or input goods occur, which has, from an his-
toric viewpoint, often been the case. A 10 per cent reduction for all 
metals is required with regard to TC/RC before a situation is 
reached whereby the book value falls short of the discounted cash 
flows, provided that there are no compensatory movements in metal 
prices or other terms. 

Metal prices and exchange rates had a collectively positive effect 
on the smelters’ results in comparison with the Group’s long-term 
planning prices.
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Note 9 Leasing charges

2011 2010

The Group

Assets held via operational leasing agreements

Leasing charges paid during the financial year 32 32

Contracted future leasing charges

 Maturity within one year 30 28

 Maturity later than one year, but within five years 25 40

 Maturity later than five years 1 1

Assets held via financial leasing agreements 2011 2010

Machinery and other equipment 

 Acquisition value 7 7

 Accumulated depreciation –3 –2

value, as per Balance Sheet on 31st December 4 5

Note 10 Participations in Group companies

Specification of the Parent Company’s and the Group’s holdings of participations in Group companies

31-12-2011

Subsidiary/Co. reg. no./Registered office Shares/participations Percentage share Book value

Boliden Limited, 3977366, Toronto, Canada 85,811,638 100 –

 Boliden Power Ltd, 700245, Toronto, Canada –

 Ontario Inc, 1393512, Toronto, Canada –

  Boliden Bv, 18048775, Drunen, netherlands –

   Boliden Apirsa S.L under liquidation, ESB-41518028, Aznalcóllar (Seville), Spain

Boliden Mineral AB, 556231-6850, Skellefteå 1,650,000 100 3,911

 Mineral Holding Sweden AB, 556610-2918, Skellefteå –

 Boliden Harjavalta Oy, 1591739-9, Harjavalta, Finland –

  nickel og Olivin A/S, 946255459, Ballangen, norway –

 Boliden Kokkola Oy, 0772004-3, Kokkola, Finland –

  KIP Service Oy, 2240650-3, Kokkola, Finland –

 Boliden Commercial AB, 556158-2205, Stockholm –

  Boliden Commercial uK Ltd, 5723781, Warwickshire, uK –

  Boliden Commercial Deutschland GmbH, 165903, neuss, Germany –

 Tara Mines Holding Ltd, 60135, navan, Ireland –

  Boliden Tara Mines Ltd, 33148, navan, Ireland –

   APC Properties Ltd, 361022, navan, Ireland –

   Irish Mine Development Ltd, 174811, navan, Ireland –

  Tara Prospecting Ltd, 34434, navan, Ireland –

  Tara Exploration and Development Company Ltd, E1292, navan, Ireland –

   Dowth Investment Holdings Ltd, 338698, Toronto, Canada –

  Motet Investments Ltd, E3093, navan, Ireland –

 Mineral Holding norway A/S, 986009183, Odda, norway –

  Boliden Odda AS, 911177870, Odda, norway –

   Hardanger Byggeselskap A/S, 930238821, Odda, norway –

 Boliden Bergsöe AB, 556041-8823, Landskrona –

  Boliden Bergsoe AS, A/S244629, Glostrup, Denmark –

  Boliden Bergsöe Oy, 411.259, vantaa, Finland –

 Boliden International AB, 556040-1399, Skellefteå –

 Boliden France Sarl, B 612 050 13800082, Boutervilliers, France –

 Other subsidiaries, dormant or of lesser significance –

Boliden has a 65 per cent proprietary share in Kip Service Oy, which is a service-driven cooperation company.
The parent Company, Boliden AB, has accounted for a dividend totalling SEK 3,218 million (SEK 825 m) from Boliden Mineral AB during the 
year.
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Note 11 Participation in associated companies

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Book value at beginning of year 6 1

Share in associated companies' profits for the year 0 –

Reclassification of holdings – 5

Shareholders' contribution 1 –

Book value at year-end 7 6

Co. reg. no.
Registered  

office
Number of  

participations
Percentage  

share
Value of equity  
share in Group

Indirectly owned

Aitik EcoBallast AB 556726-2299 Gällivare 500 50 0

KB Aitik EcoBallast 969731-9748 Gällivare 50 1

Industrikraft i Sverige AB 556761-5371 Stockholm 20,000 20 5

 6

Note 12 Taxes

Current tax expenses (-)/tax income (+) 2011 2010

Tax expenses for the period –991 –1,147

Adjustment of tax attributable to previous years 6 0

–985 –1,147

Deferred tax expenses (-)/tax income (+)

Deferred tax expenses in respect of temporary differences –191 –109

Deferred tax income attributable to value of tax losses carried forward capitalised during the year 12 20

Deferred tax expenses resulting from the utilisation of previously capitalised tax losses carried forward –7 –138

–186 –227

Total reported tax expenses (-)/tax income (+) –1,171 –1,374

Reconciliation of effective tax

Reported profit before tax 4,560 5,331

Tax according to current taxation rate –1,192 –1,395

Fiscal effect of non-deductible expenses –5 –6

Fiscal effect of non-taxable income 12 25

valuation of deferred tax receivables –1 2

Amended tax rate in Finland 9 –

Adjustment of tax attributable to previous years 6 –

Total reported tax expenses (-)/tax income (+) –1,171 –1,374

Tax expenses comprise 25.7 per cent (25.8%) of the Group’s pre-tax profit. The anticipated tax expense for 2011 of 26.1 per cent (26.2%) 
has been calculated given the current Group structure and applicable taxation rates in the respective countries. 
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Tax losses carried forward
Deferred tax receivables in respect of tax losses carried forward in 
norway have been taken into account in full as the company is of the 
opinion that Boliden will be able to generate sufficient taxable income 
in the future to exploit these tax losses carried forward. unutilised 
tax losses carried forward for which a deferred tax receivable has 
not been reported totalled SEK 86 million (SEK 76 m) in Canada on 
31st December 2011, of which SEK 15 million matures in 2014, SEK 
1 million in 2015 and the remaining SEK 70 million between 2026 
and 2031. 

Note 13 Inventories

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Raw materials and consumables 3,522 3,289

Goods under manufacture 3,169 3,355

Finished goods and tradable goods 1,045 1,280

7,737 7,924

Note 12, cont.

Deferred tax receivable/tax liability
The receivable reported in the Balance Sheet and the provision for deferred tax come from the following assets and liabilities.

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

The Group
Deferred  

tax receivable
Deferred  

tax liability Net
Deferred  

tax receivable
Deferred  

tax liability Net

Intangible assets 1 –4 –3 1 –3 –2

Buildings and land 64 –135 –71 13 –112 –99

Machinery and fixtures and fittings 4 –2,336 –2,332 10 –2,027 –2,017

Deferred mining costs – –217 –217 – –261 –261

Other tangible fixed assets – –7 –7 – –8 –8

Inventories 2 –467 –465 1 –501 –500

Long-term liabilities 167 –32 135 155 –28 127

Current liabilities – –44 –44 16 –1 15

Tax losses carried forward 46 – 46 41 – 41

Total 284 –3,242 –2,958 237 –2,941 –2,704

Offset within companies –238 238 – –202 202 –

Total deferred tax receivable/tax liability 46 –3,004 –2,958 35 –2,739 –2,704

Change in deferred tax in respect of temporary differences and tax losses carried forward

The Group 2011

Amount at  
the beginning  

of the year

Reported in  
the Income 
 Statement

Reported under 
Other comprehen-

sive income
Translation 
 difference

Amount at  
year-end

Intangible assets –2 –1 – – –3

Buildings and land –99 28 – – –71

Machinery and fixtures and fittings –2,017 –317 – 2 –2,332

Deferred mining costs –261 42 – 2 –217

Other tangible fixed assets –8 1 – – –7

Inventories –500 35 – – –465

Long-term liabilities 127 21 –11 –2 135

Current liabilities 15 – –59 – –44

Tax losses carried forward 41 5 – – 46

Total –2,704 –186 –70 2 –2,958

The Group, 2010

Amount at  
the beginning  

of the year

Reported in  
the Income 
 Statement

Reported under 
Other comprehen-

sive income
Translation 
 difference

Amount at  
year-end

Intangible assets –1 –1 – – –2

Buildings and land –47 –47 – –5 –99

Machinery and fixtures and fittings –2,018 –58 – 59 –2,017

Deferred mining costs –189 –98 – 26 –261

Other tangible fixed assets –11 2 – 1 –8

Inventories –368 –132 – – –500

Long-term liabilities 160 227 –248 –12 127

Current liabilities –175 –4 194 – 15

Tax losses carried forward 159 –116 – –2 41

Total –2,490 –227 –54 67 –2,704
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Note 16 Shareholders’ equity

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Share capital Number of shares Nominal value, SEK Number of shares Nominal value, SEK

Opening balance 273,511,169 578,914,338 273,511,169 578,914,338

Share cancellation – – – –

Bonus issue – – – –

CLOSING BALANCE 273,511,169 578,914,338 273,511,169 578,914,338

Note 14 Accounts receivable

On 31st December 2011, accounts receivable to a total value of SEK 
18 million (SEK 47 m) were due for payment after more than 30 days, 
corresponding to 1.7 per cent of the total accounts receivable. The 
maturity structure is shown in the following table:

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Accounts receivable, not due 867 831

Due: 0-30 days 129 289

Due: 31-60 days 7 21

Due: 61-90 days 0 10

Due: >90 days 11 16

1,014 1,167

The majority of the Group’s accounts receivable relate to European 
customers. Accounts receivable in foreign currencies have been 
valued at the closing day rate. note 26 Information per business line 
and geographical market, on page 85, shows the breakdown of rev-
enues by geographical areas. 

Accounts receivable are only written down to a minor extent and 
total bad debt loss is insignificant. Only a small percentage of 
Boliden’s customers are located in Greece, Italy, Spain and Portugal 
(1.6 per cent). The risk management of these customers is handled 
by means of a requirement for payment in advance.

For information on the management of credit risks, see the sec-
tion entitled Credit risks in accounts receivable that forms part of 
note 19 Financial risk management, on page 77.

Note 15 Other current receivables 

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Other prepaid expenses and accrued 
income 151 102

vAT recoverable 567 397

Other current receivables 162 119

880 618

The Articles of Association for Boliden AB state that the share cap-
ital shall comprise a minimum of SEK 150,000,000 and a maximum 
of SEK 600,000,000. The nominal value is SEK 2.12 per share. The 
share capital comprises a single class of share.

The Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders held 
on 3rd May 2011 resolved to pay a dividend of SEK 5 (SEK 3) per 
share, equivalent to a total payment of SEK 1,367,555,845.

Shareholders' equity, SEK m 31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Share capital 579 579

Other reserves 5,986 5,819

Profit carried forward, including profit for 
the year 14,467 12,448

Total shareholders' equity 21,032 18,846

Shareholders' equity per share, SEK 76.90 68.90

Boliden’s Board of Directors will propose to the Annual General Meet-
ing that a dividend of SEK 4 (SEK 5) per share be paid, equivalent to 
a total of SEK 1,094,045. Boliden’s dividend policy stipulates that 
approximately one third of the net profit after tax shall be disbursed 
in the form of dividends. 

Earnings per share 2011 2010

Profit for the year, SEK m 3,389 3,957

There are no potential shares and hence no 
dilution effect

Number of shares

Opening number of shares 273,511,169 273,511,169

Buy-back of own shares – –

Closing number of shares 273,511,169 273,511,169

Average number of shares, before and 
after dilution 273,511,169 273,511,169

Number of own shares held

Opening number of own shares held – –

Cancellation of own shares – –

Closing number of own shares held – –

Earnings per share, SEK 12.39 14.47

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the period 
by the average number of shares.

no instruments exist that could give rise to a dilution effect, and 
the calculation is, therefore, the same for earnings per share before 
and after dilution.

Boliden monitors its capital structure with the aid of the net debt/
equity ratio, among other things. The net debt/equity ratio is calcu-
lated as the net of interest-bearing provisions and liabilities minus 
financial assets including liquid assets divided by shareholders’ 
equity.
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Boliden has defined benefit pension plans in Sweden, Ireland and 
norway that may or may not be placed in funds. Pension agreements 
outside Sweden are adapted in line with local conditions and are a 
function of the number of years worked and the final salary. They are 
generally coordinated with national pension schemes. Boliden has 
established defined contribution pension plans in Sweden, Ireland 
and norway.

Sweden
Pension undertakings are covered by the Swedish PRI/FPG system 
and by insurance companies. The majority of the pension undertak-
ings for salaried employees in Sweden are secured through insur-
ances with Alecta. Alecta has been unable to supply sufficient infor-
mation for 2011 for the ITP plan (supplementary pensions for 
salaried employees) to be reported as a defined benefit plan, and it 
is consequently reported in accordance with uFR 6 as a defined con-
tribution plan. A surplus in Alecta can be allocated to the policyhold-
ers and/or those insured. At the end of the year, Alecta’s collective 
consolidation level was 113 per cent (145%). The collective consoli-
dation level comprises the market value of Alecta’s assets as a per-
centage of the insurance undertakings calculated in accordance with 
Alecta’s actuarial calculation assumptions, which do not correspond 
with those of IAS 19.

A defined benefit pension plan for underground workers in Sweden 
was replaced, on 1st January 2010, by a defined contribution pen-
sion plan for all employees affiliated to the IF Metall trade union. The 
agreement for the new pension plan includes transitional rules 
whereby a one-off payment is calculated on the basis of age and the 
number of months worked underground. The one-off payment will 
be paid to the chosen pension solution on the retirement date, but 
no earlier than the age of 60. Existing undertakings for underground 
workers were replaced in 2010 by an undertaking to make a one-off 
payment in accordance with the transitional rules laid down in the 
agreement. 

Norway
The pension undertaking is secured by means of a combination of 
defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans. Boliden has 
three defined benefit pension plans, one of which (AFP) is a collective 
agreement occupational pension that is partially financed by the 
State. AFP was re-established in a new format in 2010 in conjunc-
tion with the reduced pension undertaking within AFP, and as a 
result, the Group’s pension undertaking per annum was also reduced. 

Ireland
The pension undertaking is primarily secured by the transfer of funds 
to four defined benefit pension plans and one defined contribution 
plan. The defined benefit plans include undertakings for all personnel, 
while the defined contribution plan is a complementary solution for 
personnel paid an hourly wage. unrealised actuarial results are 
reported in accordance with IAS 19 and the corridor method. 

Events and undertakings during the year
The present value of the pension undertakings is close to the level 
last year, while the market value of the Group’s combined plan assets 
has fallen by 3.5 per cent due to exchange rate effects, primarily in 
respect of the EuR/SEK exchange rate. 

The Irish Pensions Board has not, as yet, approved the so-called 
paragraph 50 application submitted in 2010. The pension undertak-
ing reported as of 31st December 2011 comprises pension under-
takings before the implementation of the reduction in pension under-
takings in Ireland agreed by the employers, Board of Directors and 
pension plan members. 

Costs, undertakings and other factors in pension plans are cal-
culated by means of the Projected unit Credit Method, using the 
assumptions shown in the table below.

The discount rate is established for every geographical market 
with reference to the market return on company bonds on the clos-
ing day. In Sweden, where there is no functioning marketing for such 
bonds, the market return on housing bonds has been used and a 
premium for a longer term added, based on the duration of the pen-
sion undertakings.

The Group’s reported pension liability totals SEK 653 million (SEK 
623 m), which sum includes endowment insurance totalling SEK 62 
million (SEK 65 m) in respect of defined premium plans in Sweden. 
Defined benefit plans in norway are reported as a long-term receiv-
able of SEK 10 million (SEK 20 m). 

Note 17 Provisions for pensions and similar undertakings

Sweden Ireland Norway

Significant actuarial assumptions (weighted averages) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Discount rate, % 3.75 4.25 5.0 5.4 3.3 3.6

Assumed return on plan assets, % – – 6.5 7.2 4.8 5.0

Future pay increases, % 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 4.0 4.0

Future pension increases, % 2.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 3.75 2.5

Assumption concerning remaining working years for 
employees 16.1 16.0 15.0 15.0 2.5 2.0

Sweden Ireland Norway Total

Reconciliation of value according to the Balance Sheet, 
as per 31st Dec. 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Book value at beginning of year 350 334 208 225 –20 26 538 585

Reported in the Income Statement 49 42 50 71 24 –32 123 81

Payments –37 –25 –63 –59 –15 –15 –115 –99

Translation difference – – 35 –30 0 1 35 –29

Book value at year-end1 362 350 230 208 –10 –20 581 538
1) undertakings in Sweden include undertakings in accordance with PRI/FPG of 126 (106) SEK m and undertakings for underground workers of 232 (240) SEK m, and other undertakings totalling 4 (4) SEK m. 
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Sweden Ireland Norway Total

Specifications of provisions for pensions,  
as per 31st Dec. 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Present value of undertakings placed in funds – – 1,703 1,732 305 316 2,009 2,048

Present value of undertakings not placed in funds 513 477 – – 15 19 528 496

Market value of plan assets – – –1,135 –1,177 –262 –272 –1,398 –1,449

unrealised actuarial profits and losses –151 –127 –338 –347 –68 –83 –557 –557

362 350 230 208 –10 –20 581 538

Sweden Ireland Norway Total

Specification of costs 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Benefits earned over the period 25 30 18 34 1 5 43 69

Interest on undertaking 18 17 94 95 11 13 123 125

Anticipated return on plan assets – – –84 –79 –12 –14 –96 –93

Actuarial profits/losses 7 –5 23 21 25 27 55 43

Settlements/Reductions – – – – –1 –63 –1 –63

Total cost of defined benefit plans 49 42 50 71 24 –32 123 81

Cost of defined contribution plans 354 353

477 434

Actual return on plan assets – – –45 115 12 16 –33 131

The plan assets primarily comprise shares  
and interest-bearing securities 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Shares and participations – – 847 915 94 44 941 959

Interest-bearing securities, etc. – – 288 262 168 228 457 490

– – 1,135 1,177 262 272 1,398 1,449

Reconciliation of pension undertaking 2011 2010

Current value of undertakings at the beginning of the year 2,544 2,558

Costs in respect of service during current period 43 63

Interest expense 122 120

Fees from plan participants 18 15

Disbursements made –132 –101

Actuarial profits and losses –45 227

Reductions and settlements –3 –85

Exchange rate fluctuations –11 –253

Current value of undertakings at the end of the year 2,537 2,544

Reconciliation of plan assets 2011 2010

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 1,449 1,495

Anticipated return on plan assets 96 87

Fees from the employer 71 65

Fees from plan participants 18 15

Disbursements made –90 –71

Actuarial profits and losses –139 36

Exchange rate fluctuations –8 –178

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,398 1,449

5-year overview 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Present value of undertakings placed in funds 2,009 2,048 2,015 2,080 1,881

Present value of undertakings not placed in funds 528 496 543 485 415

Market value of plan assets –1,398 –1,449 –1,495 –1,253 –1,677

unrealised actuarial profits and losses –557 –557 –478 –806 –113

Book value at year-end 581 538 585 506 506
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Reclamation costs
Provisions for reclamation costs are made on the basis of an assess-
ment of future costs based on current technology and other condi-
tions. The value of fixed assets has increased by the corresponding 
amount. Provision has been made for the current value of estimated 
undertakings in accordance with IAS 37 and IFRIC 1. Gradual recla-
mation is preferable, although most of the reclamation work is done 
after a decision to decommission. In historical terms, Boliden has 
succeeded in extending the useful life of its mining assets compared 
with the original plans. Reclamation provisions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis.

Note 18 Other provisions

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Reclamation costs 1,110 928

Other 54 73

1,164 1,001

Of which:

Long-term 1,041 892

Short-term 123 109

1,164 1,001

The Group, 2011 Reclamation costs The copper cartel Other Total

Book value at beginning of year 928 0 73 1,001

Additions to existing provisions 162 – 0 162

Reversal of existing provisions –5 – –8 –13

Payments –38 – –11 –49

Discount effect for the period 20 – – 20

Translation difference 43 – – 43

Book value at year-end 1,110 0 54 1,164

Anticipated date of outflow of resources:

2012 120 – 3 123

2013 149 – 0 149

2014 and 2015 148 – 0 148

2016 and later 693 – 51 744

1,110 0 54 1,164

The Group, 2010 Reclamation costs The copper cartel Other Total

Book value at beginning of year 677 338 67 1,082

Additions to existing provisions 331 – 11 342

Reversal of existing provisions –19 – 0 –19

Payments –46 –338 –7 –391

Translation difference –15 – 2 –13

Book value at year-end 928 0 73 1,001

Anticipated date of outflow of resources:

2011 96 – 13 109

2012 137 – 1 138

2013 and 2014 82 – 1 83

2015 and later 613 – 58 671

928 0 73 1,001
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Note 19 Financial risk management

Boliden is exposed to a number of financial risks. Changes in metal 
prices, treatment charges, exchange rates and interest rates affect 
the Group’s profits and cash flows. Boliden is also exposed to refi-
nancing and liquidity risks as well as credit and counterparty risks. 

Boliden’s operating risks are described in the Directors’ Report 
under the Risk Management heading on page 46. Events after the 
end of the closing day are reported in note 28.

Boliden has a centralised treasury function whose duties involve 
managing financial risks, with the exception of credit risks with 
regard to accounts receivable. The treasury function is tasked with 
supporting the management and operating units at Parent Company 
and Group level. This results in good internal risk control and in finan-
cial and administrative economies of scale. The treasury function is 
also responsible for identifying and efficiently limiting the Group’s 
financial risks in line with the finance policy adopted by the Board of 
Directors. This is done by means of, among other things, the quar-
terly and annual reporting by the Group companies of their future 
metal production exposure, exchange rate and interest rate expo-
sure. The Group’s total sensitivity to these factors is calculated on 
the basis of these exposures. The effects of different market sce-
narios can be quantified on the basis of sensitivity to market changes 
and act as source data for managing financial risks. An assessment 
of the hedged part of the Group’s total exposure to metal production, 
exchange rates and interest exposure, is calculated on the basis of 
forecast exposure, and reported to the management, the Board and 
the market. The units also report liquidity and profit forecasts on an 
ongoing basis, thereby generating the preconditions for efficient 
control and liquidity management. The treasury function carries out 
ongoing calculations in order to ensure that Boliden complies with 
the requirements of loan agreements and has a loan structure that 
corresponds with the financial policy.

Exchange rate and metal price risks
Through its operations, Boliden is exposed to both exchange rate risks 
and metal price risks, in that changes in exchange rates and metal 
prices affect the Group’s profits and cash flow. The pricing terms for 
Boliden’s products are principally determined on financial markets 
such as the London Metal Exchange (LME), the London Bullion Market 
(LBMA), and the currency and money market. The Group’s exchange 
rate and metal price exposure covers transaction exposure and trans-
lation exposure. See accounting principles for further information.

Transaction exposure
Boliden’s transaction exposure comprises both binding undertakings 
and forecast cash flows. 

Exposure to binding undertakings
This exposure arises when Boliden undertakes to participate in a 
transaction at a fixed value and which is not compensated for by a 
simultaneous opposite transaction of a corresponding size and 
nature. 

The Group buys metals in the form of raw materials which it pro-
cesses into refined metals, and where the acquisition value of the 
raw materials as well as the exchange rates may differ from the final 
sales value. Such differences arise as a result of variations in size, 
purchasing date, processing and selling. Furthermore, some cus-
tomers receive fixed prices in different currencies that are some-
times set well in advance of delivery. Boliden’s policy stipulates that 
these risks must always be hedged in full, with the exception of the 
smelters’ process inventory – see below for details. The Group uses 
futures contracts to ensure that the sale price and exchange rate 
correspond to those applicable in conjunction with the purchase of 
the input raw material or in conjunction with the signing of a sales 
agreement at a fixed price. This risk management ensures that 
exchange rate and metal price fluctuations do not impact the profit 
in conjunction with raw material purchases. Hedge accounting is 
applied to the futures contracts, thereby hedging the fair value in 
the Income Statement. 

The Group’s smelters keep process inventory for which the price 
risk, expressed in volume of metal, is maintained at a constant level. 
Boliden’s policy is not to hedge this price exposure and changes in 
the market prices of these metals and exchange rates consequently 

impact the Group’s profits in conjunction with the valuation of the 
process inventory. The exposure to price changes in any stock vol-
umes above or below the constant level is, however, always hedged, 
as described above. See also Risk Management, Revaluation of pro-
cess inventory on page 46 in the Directors’ Report.

Exposure to forecast cash flows
Forecast exposure arises from the fact that a substantial percent-
age of the Group’s future income – primarily that relating to extracted 
metals and to treatment and refining charges – is affected by fluc-
tuations in metal prices and exchange rates. 

Boliden does, however, continuously calculate the way in which 
market changes in the currency market or metal markets affect the 
Group’s future financial position. Boliden’s policy is not to metal price 
hedge and currency hedge the Group’s future income in conjunction 
with a normal commercial climate, but Boliden can use financial 
derivative instruments in order to limit the risks in certain scenarios. 
There may be special justification, in conjunction with major invest-
ments or investments in mines with short lifespans, for limiting 
financial risks through the use of derivatives. The Group can use 
futures and option agreements to hedge against metal price and/
or exchange rate fluctuations in relation to income from forecast 
metal sales. Hedge accounting is applied to the derivatives as cash 
flow hedging under Other comprehensive income. note 21 contains 
a sensitivity analysis showing the way in which Other comprehensive 
income is affected by a change in value in financial derivatives (cash 
flow hedging). Page 30 of the Directors’ Report contains a sensitiv-
ity analysis of the Group’s forecast exposure.

Translation exposure
When net investments in foreign operations are converted into 
Swedish kronor, a translation difference arises in conjunction with 
exchange rate fluctuations, and this has an impact on the Group’s 
other comprehensive income. The effect of this exposure is elimi-
nated by utilising external borrowing in combination with currency 
futures contracts, in accordance with Boliden’s financial policy. Dur-
ing 2011, other comprehensive income has been affected to the 
tune of SEK 42 million (SEK 942 m) by hedging in currency futures 
contracts and borrowing in foreign currencies. 

Interest rate risk
Fluctuations in the market interest rates affect the Group’s profits 
and cash flows. The speed with which a change in interest rates 
impacts on the Group’s net financial items depends on the fixed inter-
est term of the loans. On 31st December 2011, the Group’s loan 
portfolio had an average fixed interest term of 1.0 years (2.0 yrs.). 
Boliden concluded interest swaps and the majority of the debt will 
consequently have a fixed interest rate until June 2013. Boliden’s 
finance policy allows for an average fixed interest term of up to 3 
years. On an annual basis, a fall of one percentage point in the mar-
ket interest rate entails an effect on the profit of SEK 19 million 
(SEK 6 m) before tax, calculated on the basis of loan liability and out-
standing interest swaps on 31st December 2011. At the turn of the 
year, the net market value of the interest swaps totalled SEK –27 
million (SEK –51 m). A positive change of one percentage point in the 
market interest rate increases the net market value of interest 
swaps and other comprehensive income, before tax, by SEK 47 mil-
lion (SEK 82 m), as of 31st December 2011. 

Refinancing and liquidity risk
The term “refinancing and liquidity risk” refers to the risk that Boliden 
will be unable to extend existing loans or meet its payment undertak-
ings due to insufficient liquidity. Boliden limits its refinancing risk by 
ensuring that its gross loan liability has a good spread in terms of 
counterparties, financing sources and lengths. Boliden works 
actively to ensure satisfactory current liquidity by making appropri-
ate use of unutilised credit facilities with operationally adjusted loan 
durations. The average term of total borrowing facilities is 3.3 years 
(4.2 yrs.) which is in accordance with established Group policy. The 
refinancing requirement is reviewed regularly by Boliden’s centralised 
treasury function. The refinancing requirement is dependent, first 
and foremost, on market trends and investment plans. The loan 
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agreements carry loan covenants which oblige Boliden to comply 
with certain defined key ratio conditions in order to avoid early repay-
ment. A deterioration in the global economic climate may entail 
increased risks in respect of profit performance and financial posi-
tion, including the risk of Boliden coming into conflict with loan terms 
and conditions. Boliden has complied with all loan covenants in 2011.

On 31st December 2011, Boliden’s loan duration totalled 3.3 
years (4.2 yrs.) and its payment capacity  was SEK 8,734 million (SEK 
10,728 m) in liquid assets and unutilised binding credit facilities with 
a term in excess of one year, less deductions for commercial papers 
issued and loans that mature within the space of one year. 

Boliden has established a cash pool structure that enables it to 
maintain a central overview of liquidity flows and ensure efficient 
management of the Group’s overall liquidity. Any surplus liquidity is 
used to amortise external liabilities, as long as Boliden is a net 
 borrower.

Credit and counterparty risk 
The term “credit and counterparty risk” refers to the risk that a 
counterparty in a transaction may fail to fulfil their obligation, thus 
causing the Group to incur a loss. In order to limit credit and coun-
terparty risk, only highly creditworthy counterparties are accepted, 
and wherever possible, the commitment per counterparty is limited. 
These restrictions are laid down in Boliden’s financial policy in the 
form of lowest acceptable credit ratings and maximum investment 
of liquid assets per counterparty. 

The maximum credit exposure on the closing day, 31st December 
2011, was SEK 2,684 million (SEK 2,341 m), comprising accounts 
receivable, interest receivables, derivative instruments and liquid 
assets. See note 22. 

Credit risks in financial operations
Boliden’s financial exposure to counterparty risk mainly occurs when 
trading in derivative instruments. In order to limit this exposure, 
Boliden enters into new financial derivative agreements with coun-
terparties that have the highest possible credit rating. The deriva-
tives are, furthermore, spread over numerous counterparties. The 

risk management section of the treasury function continuously mon-
itors exposure to counterparty risks. The creditworthiness and 
counterparty spread of these derivatives is deemed to have been 
good in 2011. On 31st December 2011, the total counterparty expo-
sure in derivative instruments corresponded to a net market value 
of SEK 447 million (SEK 146 m) (net assets with banks and brokers). 

Boliden’s financial policy mandates that Boliden only invests its 
liquid assets, as per Boliden’s definition of cash assets and short-
term investments, with issuers who have an A credit rating or better 
with Standard & Poor’s. 

Credit risks in accounts receivable
The risk of the Group’s customers failing to fulfil their obligations 
constitutes a credit risk. Credit risks are managed through an estab-
lished credit rating process, active credit monitoring, short credit 
periods and daily routines for monitoring payments. The requisite 
provisions for bad debts are also monitored continuously. The single 
biggest account receivable corresponds to approximately one tenth 
of the Group’s total accounts receivable on 31st December 2011. 
The concentration of accounts receivable is otherwise low and the 
credit periods are short. The quality of the accounts receivable is 
deemed to be very good. Write-downs of outstanding accounts 
receivable on 31st December 2011 have only been affected in very 
limited amounts and have also, historically speaking, been insignifi-
cant. See also note 14 Accounts receivable, on page 73. 

Risk management and insurance
The objective of the Risk Management function at Boliden is to min-
imise the total cost of the Group’s damage and injury risks. This is 
achieved both by continuously enhancing the damage and injury pre-
vention and control work conducted within the operations, and by 
introducing and developing Group-wide insurance solutions.

Note 19, cont.
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Loan portfolio
Boliden has syndicated credit facilities totalling EuR 410 million and 
SEK 5,800 million. EuR 41 million of the EuR 410 million facility 
expires in 2012, with the remaining EuR 369 million expiring in 2013. 
The SEK 5,800 million facility expires in 2015. The utilised component 
of the credit facilities totalled SEK 2,680 million (SEK 1,434 m) on 
31st December 2011. Boliden also has unutilised Swedish Export 
Credits Guarantee Board (EKn) credit facilities totalling SEK 2,000 
million, which expire in 2017. In 2011, Boliden obtained a credit facil-
ity for up to EuR 85 million from the European Investment Bank (EIB). 
The facility, which is available in different currencies, has a 10 year 
duration and is linked to the expansion of Boliden’s electronic scrap 
recycling facility at the Rönnskär plant. Boliden plans to draw on the 
loan as of 2012. Boliden also has a number of directed bonds issued 
to Swedish and nordic institutions which, on 31st December 2011, 
totalled SEK 2,918 million (SEK 2,928 m) and which fall due for pay-
ment between 2012 and 2018. Boliden’s commercial papers pro-
gramme has a framework amount of SEK 2,500 million and on 31st 
December 2011, SEK 166 million (SEK 499 m) remained outstanding. 

The average term of borrowing facilities on 31st December 2011 
was 3.3 years (4.2 yrs.) and the debt portfolio’s average interest 
rate was 3.29 per cent (3.29%). Boliden has concluded interest 
swaps corresponding to 67 per cent (87%) of the current loan liabil-
ity. The hedged part of the debt has an average interest rate of 3.51 
per cent (3.50%), based on current loan terms. The interest swaps 
entered into extend the fixed interest terms of outstanding loans 
which totalled 1.0 years (2.0 yrs.) on 31st December 2011. The 
above maturity analysis includes interest flows from interest swaps. 
Boliden’s payment capacity, in the form of liquid assets, unutilised 
overdraft facilities with a term in excess of one year, less deductions 
for commercial papers issued and short-term borrowing, totalled 
SEK 8,734 million (SEK 10,728 m) on 31st December 2011. 

The maturity structure for the financial liabilities (including inter-
est payments) above includes the undiscounted cash flows that 
derive from the Group’s liabilities, based on the contracted remain-
ing durations. Interest maturity (including interest swaps) has been 
calculated on the basis of the applicable closing interest rates.

Note 20 Financial liabilities and maturity structure

31-12-2011 Financial liabilities Maturity structure2

SEK m Currency Interest1, %
Nominal 
amounts 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017+

Syndicated credit facility EuR 2.87 626 18 635

Syndicated credit facility SEK 2.84 2,048 52 2,083

Debenture loan EuR 3.80 1,653 63 63 47 719 477 579

Debenture loan SEK 3.61 1,265 678 417 25 9 230

Commercial paper3 SEK 2.93 166 174 ,

Financial leasing, other 4.00 10 10

Accounts payable 3,551 3,551

Total, Boliden 9,319 4,546 3,198 72 728 707 579

31-12-2010 Financial liabilities Maturity structure2

SEK m Currency Interest1, %
Nominal 
amounts 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016+

Syndicated credit facility EuR 2.83 834 24 24 844 0 0 0

Syndicated credit facility SEK 3.16 591 110 19 608 0 0 0

Debenture loan SEK 3.61 1,265 46 677 416 9 9 232

Debenture loan EuR 3.75 1,663 60 60 60 280 271 1,278

Commercial paper3 SEK 1.61 449 456

Financial leasing, other 4.00 12 12

Accounts payable 4,622 4,622

Total, Boliden 9,436 5,330 779 1,928 289 280 1,509
1) Weighted interest including interest swaps. 2) The duration analysis includes gross flows of loans and interest, including flows from any derivatives. 3) Outstanding commercial papers are reported, by law, 
under the Group’s Parent Company, Boliden AB.
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Currency derivatives in respect of the hedging of forecast 
 exposure − Cash flow hedging
A summary of Boliden’s outstanding currency hedging for currency 
exposure in uSD/SEK, EuR/uSD and uSD/nOK is shown in the table 
below. Hedging that refers to forecast exposure between 2016 and 

2017 matures in 2015, but the intention is to extend them. Boliden’s 
other currency risks in respect of forecast exposure are, essentially, 
unhedged. note 19 contains details of the Group’s transaction expo-
sure.

Note 21 Financial derivative instruments

Boliden uses financial derivative instruments to manage currency rate risks, raw material price risks and interest rate risks arising within 
its operations. 

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Outstanding financial derivative instruments, SEK m Nominal amount
Fair value  

before netting Nominal amount
Fair value  

before netting

Transaction exposure (binding undertakings)

Currency futures –4,506 79 –3,031 –17

Raw materials derivatives 1,030 74 950 152

Transaction exposure (forecast cash flows)

Currency futures –5,742 –314 281 –12

Raw materials derivatives –9,258 515 – –

Interest derivatives –3,869 –27 –4,182 –51

Translation exposure

Currency futures –4,189 120 –4,455 74

Total 447 146

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Maturity structure, derivative instru-
ments, nominal amounts, SEK m 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Currency futures –11,177 –1,590 –385 –1,285 –7,155 –50

Raw materials derivatives –3,849 –2,561 –426 –1,392 558 392

Interest derivatives –3,869 –4,182

Hedge accounting, SEK m 2011 2010

Hedging of fair value

– Change in value of hedge instruments in respect of binding undertakings –1,530 –953

– Change in value of hedged item 1,530 953

Ineffectiveness of fair value hedging – –

Ineffectiveness of cash flow hedging – 11

Ineffectiveness of hedging of net investments in overseas operations – –

Total ineffectiveness 0 11

The effect of cash flow hedging with regard to Transaction exposure on the result for 2011 totals SEK 297 million (SEK 431 m), of which 
SEK 325 million (SEK 501 m) refers to exchange rate and metal price hedging, SEK 0 million (SEK 11 m) to electricity derivatives, and SEK 
–28 million (SEK –81 m) to interest swaps.

Currencies 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

USD/SEK

Hedged volume (uSD m) 531 293 56 72 70 43

Forward rate, uSD/SEK 6.79 6.76 6.83 6.78 6.77 6.77

Market value, SEK m –92 –71 –13 –23 –23 –14

EUR/USD

Hedged volume (uSD m) 197 91

Forward rate, EuR/uSD 1.35 1.35

Market value, SEK m –57 –23

USD/NOK

Hedged volume (uSD m) 39 18

Forward rate, uSD/nOK 5.95 6.03

Market value, SEK m –5 –2

Total market value, SEK m –154 –96 –13 –23 –23 –14

 
There were no outstanding exchange rate hedges on the closing day, 31st December 2010, in respect of forecast exposure. 
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Metals 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Zinc

Hedged volume (tonnes) 125,400 62,250

Forward rate, uSD/tonne 2,230 2,125

Market value, SEK m 315 92

Copper

Hedged volume (tonnes) 27,600 14,100

Forward rate, uSD/tonne 9,080 8,746

Market value, SEK m 279 109

Lead

Hedged volume (tonnes) 23,100 11,400

Forward rate, uSD/tonne 2,324 2,219

Market value, SEK m 43 9

Silver

Hedged volume (000 troy oz.) 2,940 1,524

Forward rate, uSD/troy oz. 28.45 27.12

Market value, SEK m 5 –12

Gold

Hedged volume (troy oz.) 72,420 58,200 38,400 48,600 47,000 29,000

Forward rate, uSD/troy oz. 1,376 1,387 1,455 1,491 1,487 1,490

Market value, SEK m –102 –81 –38 –40 –40 –24

540 117 –38 –40 –40 –24

There were no outstanding raw material derivatives in respect of forecast exposure on the closing day, 31st December 2010. 

Raw materials derivatives in respect of forecast exposure − 
Cash flow hedging
The table below provides a summary of Boliden’s outstanding price 
hedges for zinc, copper, lead, silver and gold on 31st December 
2011. Hedging that refers to forecast exposure between 2016 and 

2017 matures in 2015, but the intention is to extend them. Boliden’s 
other metal price risks in respect of forecast exposure are, in every 
significant respect, unhedged. note 19 contains details of the 
Group’s transaction exposure.

Sensitivity analysis − Other comprehensive income
The following table contains an estimation of the effect on other 
comprehensive income, before tax, of changes in the value of finan-
cial instruments, based on outstanding derivatives and on closing 
day prices on 31st December 2011 (31st December 2010). Financial 
instruments are entered into in order to reduce the risk to which 
the Group is exposed (see note 19 Transaction exposure). Changes 

in the value of financial instruments with regard to binding undertak-
ings and translation exposure have either a very limited or no effect 
on the profit or other comprehensive income. The table below hence 
solely includes the effects of changes in value of financial derivatives 
intended to counter the Group’s forecast exposure. The analysis for 
2010 is representative of the position on the closing day, but not for 
the 2010 period as a whole, in that the majority of hedges matured. 

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Change in metal prices or exchange rates, +10%
Effect on other comprehensive  

income, SEK m
Effect on other comprehensive  

income, SEK m

Zinc –242 –

Copper –217 –

Lead –49 –

Silver –87 –

Gold –331 –

uSD/SEK –543 28
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31-12-2011
Holdings valued 

at fair value

Loan receiva-
bles and 

accounts 
receivable

Financial  
assets  

available for 
sale

Derivatives 
used in hedge 

accounting

Other  
financial 
 liabilities

Total  
reported  

value
Fair  

value

Valuation category Level 2 Level 2

ASSETS

Financial fixed assets

Other shares and participations 55 55 55

Financial investments

Current assets

Current receivables

Accounts receivable 1,014 1,014 1,014

Interest-bearing receivables 3 3 3

Derivative instruments 53 1,204 1,257 1,257

Liquid assets

Cash and bank balances 355 355 355

Total financial assets 53 1,372 55 1,204 2,684 2,684

LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions 4,957 4,957 4,957

Other interest-bearing liabilities 10 10 10

Current liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions 801 801 801

Accounts payable 3,551 3,551 3,551

Derivative instruments 22 788 810 810

Total financial liabilities 22 – – 788 9,319 10,129 10,129

Boliden’s entire holding of financial instruments reported at fair value 
in the Balance Sheet is classified as level two in the Fair value hier-
archy (see Accounting Principles). The fair value of liabilities to credit 
institutions is calculated as discounted contractually agreed amor-
tisations and interest payments at estimated market interest mar-
gins. The interest covenants of existing loan agreements were, on 
31st December 2011, adjudged to be on a par with credit market 

interest margins and the fair value therefore corresponds, in every 
significant respect, with the reported value. 

The accounts receivables’ and accounts payables’ reported value 
is held to be the same as the fair value due to the short maturity 
date, to the fact that provision has been made for bad accounts 
receivable, and to the fact that any penalty interest is debited.

Note 22 Financial assets and liabilities by valuation category
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31-12-2010
Holdings valued 

at fair value

Loan receiva-
bles and 

accounts 
receivable

Financial  
assets  

available for 
sale

Derivatives 
used in hedge 

accounting

Other  
financial 
 liabilities

Total  
reported  

value
Fair  

value

Valuation category Level 2 Level 2

ASSETS

Financial fixed assets

Other shares and participations 27 32 32

Financial investments 2 2 2

Current assets

Current receivables

Accounts receivable 1,167 1,167 1,167

Interest-bearing receivables 4 4 4

Derivative instruments 4 313 317 317

Liquid assets

Cash and bank balances 821 821 821

Total financial assets 4 1,994 27 313 0 2,343 2,343

LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions 4,353 4,353 4,353

Other interest-bearing liabilities 12 12 12

Current liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions 449 449 449

Accounts payable 4,622 4,622 4,622

Derivative instruments 14 157 171 171

Total financial liabilities 14 – – 157 9,436 9,607 9,607

nOTES
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Note 23 Other current liabilities

31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Accrued salaries and social security 
expenses 322 301

Accrued interest expenses 81 83

Other accrued costs and prepaid income 671 686

Other operating liabilities 109 224

1,183 1,294

Note 24 Pledged assets and contingent liabilities

Group
Parent 

 Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

Pledged assets

For own liabilities and provisions none none none none

Contingent liabilities

Parent Company sureties – – 6,499 4,790

Other sureties and guarantees 652 525 198 199

Pension liabilities 3 2 – –

Agreed residual values according to 
leasing contracts 47 46 – –

702 573 6,697 4,989

The Parent Company sureties refer to guarantees issued for sub-
sidiary companies. SEK 6,696 million (SEK 4,989 m) refer to Parent 
Company sureties for external financial borrowing. Parent Company 
sureties in the above table have been booked in the amount utilised. 
Guarantees in respect of unutilised credits total SEK 11,882 million 
(SEK 12,408 m). 

In addition to the above specifications under the heading of con-
tingent liabilities and in the financial information provided, the pos-
sibility exists that the Group may incur environmentally related con-
tingent liabilities or contingent liabilities attributable to legal 
proceedings and claims which cannot currently be calculated, 
although they may in future entail costs or investments.

Legal proceedings
Overview
Boliden conducts extensive domestic and international operations 
and is occasionally involved in disputes and legal proceedings arising 
in the course of these operations. These disputes and legal proceed-
ings are not expected, either individually or collectively, to have any 
significant negative impact on Boliden’s operating profits, profitabil-
ity or financial position, over and above that detailed below.

Disputes
Disputes arising from the dam breach accident in Spain
In April 1998, a dam breach occurred in a tailings pond at the Los 
Frailes mine in Spain, which was then owned by Boliden’s subsidiary, 
Boliden Apirsa S.L. (”Apirsa”).

Following the dam breach, criminal proceedings were initiated 
against Apirsa and its representatives. In December 2000, the pros-
ecutor withdrew the proceedings. The ruling was appealed but finally 
ratified in november 2001. The criminal proceedings determined 
that the accident was caused by design and construction errors in 
the dam, not by Apirsa’s operations at the mine.

notwithstanding the outcome of the criminal proceedings, the 
Spanish Ministry of the Environment declared Apirsa liable to pay an 
amount corresponding to approximately EuR 45 million in clean-up 
costs, damages and fines. This resulted, in January 2005, in Apirsa 

initiating so-called insolvency proceedings in order to ensure a coor-
dinated and orderly closure of the company. Within the framework 
of the insolvency proceedings, the receivers in bankruptcy have 
requested that Apirsa’s parent company, Boliden Bv, together with 
Boliden Mineral AB and Boliden AB, shall be held liable for Apirsa’s 
shortfall. 

As a result of the dam breach, the local government (the Junta 
de Andalucia) sued Apirsa, Boliden Bv and Boliden AB in a civil court 
for damages totalling approximately EuR 89 million. The suit was 
dismissed on formal legal grounds. The ruling was appealed, but the 
appeal was rejected by a higher court in the autumn of 2003. Since 
the dismissal of the suit in the civil court, the local government in 
Andalusia has initiated administrative proceedings against Apirsa, 
Boliden Bv and Boliden AB in respect of the same claim. In these 
proceedings, the Junta de Andalucia has itself enjoined the three 
companies to pay the amount claimed. Apirsa, Boliden Bv and 
Boliden AB appealed the decision to the Administrative Court. In 
november 2007, the Court declared the order issued by the Junta 
de Andalucia invalid. The local government appealed the decision to 
the Supreme Administrative Court which, in november and Decem-
ber 2011, ruled that the local government’s rulings against and 
demands on all three of the Boliden companies affected were invalid 
on formal grounds. The rulings are final and cannot be appealed. The 
local government’s demands are not admissible and the local govern-
ment has now requested a ruling by the Supreme Administrative 
Court on the correct body in which the matter may be heard. 

During 2002, following the determination in the criminal proceed-
ings that the dam breach was caused by design and construction 
errors, Apirsa initiated proceedings in civil court against the com-
panies responsible for the dam’s design and construction and against 
their insurance companies. The court rejected Apirsa’s case in 
november 2006 and in September 2009. Apirsa appealed on tech-
nical grounds to the Supreme Court which, in January 2012, rejected 
Apirsa’s case. The ruling is final and cannot be appealed. 

Based on the legal advice and opinions given by the company’s 
Spanish legal counsel, Boliden’s overall view is that the company will 
not suffer any substantial financial damage as a result of the legal 
proceedings described. The company has made no provisions pend-
ing a final ruling.

Securities for reclamation costs
In 2008, the Environmental Court Division of the umeå District Court 
ruled that Boliden Mineral AB shall provide a total of SEK 660 million 
as security for reclamation costs that may result from the Aitik 
operations. In a separate ruling, the Environmental Court approved 
the provision of security in the form of a parent company guarantee 
issued by Boliden AB. The Swedish Environmental Protection Agency 
does not regard security in the form of a parent company guarantee 
as acceptable and has appealed this aspect of the Environmental 
Court ruling to the Supreme Land and Environmental Court (MMÖD). 
The ruling, issued in January 2012, resulted in the MMÖD overturn-
ing the lower court’s approval of the parent company guarantee and 
some other form of security will, therefore, have to be provided. 

nOTES
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Note 26 Information per business line and geographical market

For additional information, please refer to “General accounting principles” for segment reporting on page 64.

Segment – Business Areas

31-12-2011 Mines Smelters Other Eliminations The Group

External revenues 1,646 38,347 4 – 39,998

Effect on profit of metal price and currency hedging 231 94 – – 326

Internal revenues 8,401 29 –27 –8,404 –

Net turnover 10,279 38,471 –23 –8,404 40,323

Results from participations in associated companies – – 0 – 0

Operating profit 3,913 790 –76 121 4,748

net financial items –188

Profit after net financial items 4,560

Taxes –1,171

Net profit for the year 3,389

Intangible fixed assets 88 3,095 – – 3,184

Tangible fixed assets 14,753 8,078 95 – 22,927

Equity shares and other financial fixed assets 1 33 28 – 62

Inventories 474 7,571 – –309 7,737

Other receivables 838 1,850 1,466 –882 3,271

Assets in capital employed 16,154 20,627 1,589 –1,191 37,181

Provisions, other than for pensions and tax 619 434 111 – 1,164

Other liabilities 1,265 3,982 1,180 –882 5,544

Liabilities in capital employed 1,884 4,416 1,291 –882 6,709

Total capital employed 14,272 16,213 298 –309 30,473

Depreciation incl. net disposals 1,110 823 3 1,937

Depreciation excl. net disposals 1,108 819 – – 1,927

Investments and other fixed assets 2,338 1,674 33 – 4,045

Significant expenses as yet unpaid – – – – –

Note 25  Supplementary information to the Statements 
of Cash Flow

The Statements of Cash Flow are drawn up in accordance with the 
indirect method.

Interest paid 2011 2010

Interest received 1 2

Interest paid

Interest on external loans –176 –149

Interest on currency futures 84 –41

–92 –190

Liquid assets, as per 31st Dec.

The following items are included in liquid assets:

Cash and bank balances 355 329

Short-term investments 0 491

355 821

The short-term investments included in liquid assets comprise 
investments with a term of three months or less at the point of acqui-
sition and which can be easily converted into liquid assets. Liquid 
assets are only exposed to an insignificant risk of value fluctuation.

nOTES
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31-12-2010 Mines Smelters Other Eliminations The Group

External revenues 1,935 34,266 4 – 36,206

Effect on profit of metal price and currency hedging 401 100 10 – 510

Internal revenues 7,243 25 –27 –7,241 0

Net turnover 9,580 34,390 –13 –7,241 36,716

Results from participations in associated companies – – – – –

Holding with non-controlling interest – 2 – – 2

Operating profit 4,113 1,946 –94 –322 5,643

net financial items –312

Profit after net financial items 5,331

Taxes –1,374

Net profit for the year 3,957

Intangible fixed assets 89 3,092 – – 3,181

Tangible fixed assets 13,540 7,273 75 – 20,888

Equity shares 1 0 5 – 6

Inventories 438 7,915 – –430 7,924

Other receivables 1,166 1,727 485 –1,137 2,240

Assets in capital employed 15,235 20,007 565 –1,567 34,239

Provisions, other than for pensions and tax 476 382 143 – 1,001

Other liabilities 1,257 5,401 566 –1,137 6,087

Liabilities in capital employed 1,733 5,783 710 –1,137 7,088

Total capital employed 13,501 14,225 –145 –430 27,151

Depreciation, incl. net disposals 954 850 1 – 1,805

Depreciation, excl. net disposals 954 848 0 – 1,802

Investments and other fixed assets 2,189 804 3 – 2,996

Significant expenses as yet unpaid – – – – –

Boliden has two customers within Segment Smelters who account 
for 18 per cent (24%) and 11 per cent (11%), respectively, of Boliden’s 
external income. Other customers each represent less that 8 per 
cent (10%) of Boliden’s total external income. Boliden’s metals are 
sold primarily to industrial customers, but are also sold to base metal 
dealers and international metal stocks, such as the LME. 

Geographical areas
Sales figures are based on the country in which the customer is 
located. Assets and investments are reported in the location of the 
asset.

Revenues 2011 2010

Sweden 7,623 9,088

Rest of the nordic region 4,831 4,033

Germany 13,113 11,147

uK 7,314 6,131

Rest of Europe 7,049 6,257

north America 0 4

Other markets 393 56

40,323 36,716

Assets in capital employed 31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Sweden 29,737 27,053

Finland 3,410 3,213

norway 1,622 1,664

Ireland 2,390 2,295

Other countries 22 14

37,181 34,239

Investments in tangible and intangible 
assets 31-12-2011 31-12-2010

Sweden 3,096 2,190

Finland 459 444

norway 87 75

Ireland 372 285

Other countries 1 2

4,015 2,996

Sales of metals, sales of concentrates and other sales accounted 
for SEK 35,063 million (SEK 31,996 m), SEK 2,114 million 
(SEK 1,934 m) and SEK 3,055 million (SEK 2,786 m), respectively, 
of Boliden’s revenues of SEK 40,323 million (SEK 36,716 m) in 2011. 

Note 26, cont. 
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Note 27 Affiliates

Relationships
The Parent Company’s directly owned subsidiaries are reported in 
note 10 Participations in Group companies on page 70, and in note 
11 Participations in Associated companies on page 71. Information 
regarding Members of the Board and Group management, and the 
remuneration paid to the same, is presented in note 1 Employees 
and personnel costs on pages 65–66, and in the Corporate Govern-
ance Report on pages 100–103.

Transactions
no Member of the Board or senior executive at the company par-
ticipates or has participated, directly or indirectly, in any business 
transactions occurring during the current or previous financial year 
between themselves and the company which are or were unusual in 
nature with regard to their terms. nor has the Group granted loans, 
issued guarantees or provided sureties to any of the Members of 
the Board or senior executives of the company.

Note 28 Events after 31 December 2011

Environmental permit granted for the Garpenberg expansion
On 31st January 2012, the Swedish Land and Environmental Court 
(MMD) granted a permit for the continued and expanded operation 
up to a limit of 3 Mtonnes of ore per year at the Garpenberg mine. 
The permit includes a so-called execution order, which means that 
Boliden may begin work immediately on the expansion, without await-
ing the hearing of any appeals. The permit is associated with condi-
tions that are reasonable and which, to a large extent, correspond 
to those proposed by Boliden. If the MMD ruling is not appealed, it 
will gain legal force on 21st February 2012. 

Ruling on Aitik’s financial sureties
The Supreme Land and Environmental Court (MMÖD) has examined 
the question of whether a parent company guarantee issued by 
Boliden AB is acceptable as surety for Boliden Mineral AB’s obliga-
tion to carry out reclamation work at the Aitik mine. 

The ruling issued by the MMÖD in January 2012 overturned the 
lower court’s acceptance of the parent company guarantee and 
Boliden must consequently provide an alternative surety. 

Disputes arising from the dam accident in Spain
For events occurring after 31st December 2011 in respect of the 
above dispute, see note 24 on page 84. 
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The Board’s proposed allocation of profits for 2011 and state-
ment in accordance with the Swedish Companies Act, 18:4 

Boliden has a dividend policy whereby approximately one third of the 
profit after tax is to be distributed. The Board of Directors proposes 
that the Annual General Meeting approve payment of a dividend of SEK 
4 (SEK 5) per share, or a total of SEK 1,094 million (SEK 1,368 m), 
corresponding to 32.3 per cent of the profit after tax for 2011. The 
Parent Company’s non-restricted shareholders’ equity totals SEK 
3,607 million and the Group’s total shareholders’ equity is SEK 21,032 
million. The non-restricted shareholders’ equity in the Parent Company 
and the Group will total SEK 2,513 million and SEK 19,938 million, 
respectively, after payment of the proposed dividend to the sharehold-
ers. The Board has taken the cyclic nature of the industry and the risks 
associated with the operations into account in its dividend proposal. 

The Annual Accounts have been prepared in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles in Sweden and that the Consoli-
dated Accounts have been prepared in accordance with Eu-approved 
International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS.

The Annual Accounts and the Consolidated Accounts give a true 
and fair view of the Parent Company’s and the Group’s financial posi-
tion and results of operations.

The Directors’ Report for the Group and the Parent Company give 
a true and fair overview of the Group’s and the Parent Company’s 
operations, position and results and describes the material risks 
and uncertainties faced by the Parent Company and the companies 
that make up the Group.

  Stockholm, 10th February 2012

  Anders Ullberg
  Chairman

 Marie Berglund Staffan Bohman Lennart Evrell
 Member of the Board Member of the Board President and CEO

 Michael G:son Löw  Ulla Litzén Leif Rönnbäck 
 Member of the Board Member of the Board Member of the Board

 Matti Sundberg Marie Holmberg Bo Karlsson
 Member of the Board Employee Representative Employee Representative

 Hans-Göran Ölvebo
 Employee Representative

  Our Audit Report was submitted on 13 February 2012

  Ernst & Young AB

  Lars Träff
  Authorised Public Accountant
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To the annual meeting of the shareholders of Boliden AB (publ), cor-
porate identity number 556051-4142

REPORT ON THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS  
AND CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
We have audited the annual accounts and consolidated accounts of 
Boliden AB for the year 2011. The annual accounts and consolidated 
accounts of the company are included in the printed version of this 
document on pages 22–88.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Managing 
Director for the annual accounts and consolidated accounts
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsible 
for the preparation and fair presentation, of the annual accounts in 
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and, of the consolidated 
accounts in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards, as adopted by the EU, and for such internal control as the 
Board of Directors and the Managing Director determine is neces-
sary to enable the preparation of annual accounts and consolidated 
accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual accounts 
and consolidated accounts based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and 
generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
annual accounts and consolidated accounts are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the annual accounts and con-
solidated accounts. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstate-
ment of the annual accounts and consolidated accounts, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the company’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the annual accounts and consolidated accounts 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the cir-
cumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Direc-
tors and the Managing Director, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the annual accounts and consolidated accounts.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinions
In our opinion, the annual accounts have been prepared in accord-
ance with the Annual Accounts Act and present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the parent company as of 31 Decem-
ber 2011 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act, and 
the consolidated accounts have been prepared in accordance with 

the Annual Accounts Act and present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the group as of 31 December 2011 and of their 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as 
adopted by the EU, and the Annual Accounts Act. The statutory 
administration report is consistent with the other parts of the annual 
accounts and consolidated accounts.

We therefore recommend that the annual meeting of shareholders 
adopt the income statement and balance sheet for the parent com-
pany and the group.

 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND  
REGULATORY  REQUIREMENTS
In addition to our audit of the annual accounts and consolidated 
accounts, we have examined the proposed appropriations of the 
company’s profit or loss and the administration of the Board of Direc-
tors and the Managing Director of Boliden AB for the year 2011. 

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and  
the Managing Director
The Board of Directors is responsible for the proposal for appro-
priations of the company’s profit or loss, and the Board of Directors 
and the Managing Director are responsible for administration under 
the Companies Act.

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion with reasonable assurance 
on the proposed appropriations of the company’s profit or loss and 
on the administration based on our audit. We conducted the audit 
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden.

As a basis for our opinion on the Board of Directors’ proposed 
appropriations of the company’s profit or loss, we examined the 
Board of Directors’ reasoned statement and a selection of supporting 
evidence in order to be able to assess whether the proposal is in 
accordance with the Companies Act. 

As a basis for our opinion concerning discharge from liability, in 
addition to our audit of the annual accounts and consolidated 
accounts, we examined significant decisions, actions taken and cir-
cumstances of the company in order to determine whether any mem-
ber of the Board of Directors or the Managing Director is liable to 
the company. We also examined whether any member of the Board 
of Directors or the Managing Director has, in any other way, acted 
in contravention of the Companies Act, the Annual Accounts Act or 
the Articles of Association. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinions
We recommend to the annual meeting of shareholders that the profit 
be appropriated in accordance with the proposal in the statutory 
administration report and that the members of the Board of Direc-
tors and the Managing Director be discharged from liability for the 
financial year.

AUDITOR’S REPORT

Stockholm, 13 February 2012

Ernst & Young AB

Lars Träff
Authorised Public Accountant
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Mineral reserves and mineral resources

Successful exploration results in mineral resources and mineral reserves being augmented faster than 
they are depleted by mined production, creating the preconditions for long-term growth. Exploration 
work is conducted both in the vicinity of existing mines, in order to increase their lifespan, and in new 
areas in order to expand the mine portfolio with new deposits. Mineral resources and reserves are 
affected not only by exploration, but by factors such as assumed metal prices and mining costs. 

POSITIVE TREND IN RECENT YEARS
Boliden’s increased investments in exploration since 2003 have 
resulted in net increases, particularly at Garpenberg and Aitik, but 
the Boliden Area has also seen good development in these areas in 
recent years. Tara has almost managed to retain its mineral reserve, 
but net mineral resources have fallen.

MINERAL RESERVE AND MINERAL RESOURCE CALCULA-
TIONS, 2011
Boliden compiles a calculation of its mineral reserves and mineral 
resources every year. Boliden’s calculations and compilations are 
conducted in accordance with the recommendations of the Swed-
ish industry organisation for mining and metal companies, SveMin, 
which are also in accordance with international regulations. See 
below for further information on how the calculations have been 
performed and the identity of the individuals responsible for them. 

Boliden’s mineral reserves and mineral resources generally con-
tinued to develop positively in 2011. Increased resources have con-
tributed to the positive result. The trend was mainly due to success-
ful exploration, but higher metal prices have also contributed. 

Aitik
Aitik’s mineral resources increased by 46 million tonnes in 2011, 
while its mineral reserves decreased by 23 million tonnes. 31.5 mil-
lion tonnes of ore were, however, also mined during that period and 
the difference is due to the fact that the higher prices enabled addi-
tional tonnage to be added to the mineral reserve. The increase in 
mineral resources is due to drilling work during the year. This drill-
ing work was largely carried out in Aitik Östra, which is located, at 
its closest point, 300 m to the north east of Aitik’s open-pit mine. 
Drilling work is continuing in this area. Production will, at the cur-
rently planned rates, continue until 2030. 

Garpenberg
Garpenberg’s mineral resources increased by 1.8 million tonnes, 
while its mineral reserve decreased by 1.5 million tonnes − a figure 
that largely corresponds to the amount mined. Drilling towards the 
Kaspersbo mineralisation has yielded very good results. Investiga-
tions are still in progress and will be evaluated during 2012. Work 
on expanding the mine’s production capacity is proceeding and, if 
the expansion is included, production will, at currently planned 
rates, continue until 2031. 

THE BOLIDEN AREA 

Mineral resources increased by 4.6 million tonnes, or 28%, 
during 2011.

AITIK

Mineral resources increased by 46 million tonnes in 2011.
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The Boliden Area
The mineral reserve in the Boliden Area increased by 1.1 million 
tonnes, or 10 per cent, while the mineral resources increased by 4.6 
million tonnes, or 28 per cent. The increases are primarily attribut-
able to exploration successes at Renström and Kristineberg. Pro-
duction will, at currently planned rates, continue until 2021. 

Tara
Exploration in and around the mine enabled mineral resources to 
be added and upgraded to mineral reserves. These additions were, 
however, unable to compensate for the amount of ore mined dur-
ing the year and overall, both the mineral reserve and the mineral 
resources at Tara decreased. Production will, at currently planned 
rates, continue until 2020. 

ABOUT THE CLASSIFICATION
Mining companies divide their mineral resources into different cat-
egories, depending on how much is known about the deposit. Tech-
nical analyses that enable an assessment to be made of whether the 
resource will become profitable are required before a mineral 
resource can be upgraded to a mineral reserve.

A mineral resource is a concentration of minerals in the bedrock 
that are present in a form, quality and quantity that means there is 
a reasonable possibility of it becoming commercially extractable. 
Mineral reserves are those parts of a measured or indicated mineral 
resource that can be mined and processed in accordance with the 
company’s profitability requirements, taking into account factors 
such as waste rock dilution, ore losses, pillar offset and process 
yields. 

Mineral resources are divided into three categories, while min-
eral reserves are divided into two. 

Boliden’s compilation of its calculations presents mineral 
resources and mineral reserves separately, i.e. mineral resources are 
shown over and above the mineral reserves (see tables on pages 
93–94). 

Inferred mineral resource
An inferred mineral resource is a mineral resource that has been 
identified through drilling, sampling and geoscientific interpreta-
tions, but where the information is so sparse that the geology and 
grade continuity of the deposit cannot be confirmed and where the 
basic technical data consists of reasonable assumptions. This means 
that continued investigations will not, with any degree of certainty, 
enable the entire inferred mineral resource, or parts of it, to be 
moved to a higher category.

Indicated mineral resource
An indicated mineral resource is a mineral resource that has been 
identified through drilling and sampling with an information den-
sity that is too sparse to confirm continuity, but which, together 
with geoscientific interpretations, nevertheless provides a reason-
able idea of the deposit’s geology and grade continuity. Collectively, 
the information and interpretations are sufficient to enable techni-
cal and economic calculations to be performed to assess the pro-
ject’s profitability.

Measured mineral resource
A measured mineral resource is a mineral resource where the infor-
mation obtained from drilling and sampling confirms the depos-
it’s geology and/or grade continuity. The basic technical data is such 
that mining plans can be drawn up. These plans then form the basis 
for technical and economic analyses of the project’s profitability in 
the next stage of the process.

Probable mineral reserve
A probable mineral reserve is those parts of a measured or indicated 
mineral resource where mining-engineering and profitability stud-
ies show that it is technically and economically feasible to mine and 
process the deposit in line with the company’s demands on profit-
ability.

GARPENBERG

Mineral resources increased by 1.8 million tonnes in 2011.

TARA

Both mineral resources and mineral reserves in 2011.
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Proven mineral reserve
A proven mineral reserve is those parts of a measured mineral 
resource where mining-engineering and profitability studies show 
that it is technically and economically feasible to mine and process 
the deposit in line with the company’s demands on profitability.

BASIS FOR THE CALCULATIONS
Boliden holds the required environmental permits and exploitation 
concessions for all of the mines currently in operation. The mineral 
resources are protected by exploitation concessions or exploration 
permits. 

The calculations are based on the following underlying factors: 

Cut-off grades
The lowest grade to be mined is calculated separately for each 
deposit on the basis of its characteristics, that is to say the direct 
costs for mining, ore haulage, milling, concentrate haulage and 
administration. The costs are compared with the value of the prod-
uct, taking into account the relevant payment terms for processing 
by the smelters.

Metal prices
Planning prices are, in the main, utilised when calculating mineral 
reserves, and are an expression of the anticipated average prices for 
metals and currencies over the forthcoming business cycle. Boliden’s 
current planning prices are shown in the table below.

PLANNING PRICES
PRICES/

EXCHANGE RATES

CHANGE IN 
 COMPARISON 

WITH 2010

Copper uSD 5,500/tonne +500

Zinc uSD 2,100/tonne +100

Lead uSD 2,000/tonne +400

Gold uSD 1,100/tr. oz. +350

Silver uSD 20/tr. oz. +8

Molybdenum 12 uSD/tonne 0

Tellurium 280 uSD/kg +40

uSD/SEK 7.00 –0.58

EuR/SEK 9.00 –0.10

Density
A formula based on head grades is utilised for large polymetallic 
ores, which make up the majority of Boliden’s mineral resources 
and mineral reserves. In other cases, density measurements are made 
for the various ore types.

Waste rock dilution
Mining usually incurs some waste rock dilution that varies depend-
ing on the mining method used, the ore’s geometry, and other geo-
logical factors. Estimated waste rock dilution is taken into account 
in all mineral reserve calculations.

Ore losses
Depending on the mining method used, the ore’s geometry, and 
other technical factors, some ore may have to be left unextracted, 
known as pillar offset. Based on the information available when the 
calculations were made, all the mineral reserve calculations have 
taken these factors into account.

Minimum ore width
The minimum horizontal ore width is determined by the mining 
method and equipment used in the respective mines. This means 
that grades of ore zones narrower than the minimum ore width are 
recalculated to give an average for the full width.

REGULATIONS, CODES AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Boliden’s mineral reserves and mineral resources have been calcu-
lated and compiled in accordance with recommendations by the 
Swedish industry organisation for mining and metal companies, 
SveMin, which are also in accordance with the Australasian Insti-
tute of Mining and Metallurgy’s JORC code. This is comparable 
with, and equivalent to, the ”CIM Standards on Mineral Resources 
and Mineral Reserves, Definitions and Guidelines” adopted by 
CIM on 20th August 2000 and which constitute that part of the 
Ontario Securities Commission (OSC) rules and regulations, 
National Instrument 43–101, that regulate how mineral reserves and 
mineral resources should be reported. 

The mineral resources and mineral reserves have been compiled 
under the supervision of Gunnar Agmalm, who is registered as a 
”Qualified Person” by SveMin. Gunnar Agmalm is a member of 
AUSIMM and has more than 20 years’ experience in the mining 
and minerals industry. 

Calculations for Tara have been carried out under the supervi-
sion of John Ashton, Chief Mine Geologist, Boliden Tara Mines 
Ltd. John Ashton is a ”Qualified Person” and a member of the Insti-
tute of Materials, Minerals and Mining and of the Institute of Geol-
ogists Ireland, and has more than 25 years’ experience of the min-
ing and minerals industry.

EXPLORATION COSTS AND NUMBER OF METRES DRILLED

Boliden is continuing to invest in exploration. A total of SEK 
282 million was invested in 2011, when a total of 188,403 
metres were drilled. 
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Mineral reserves on 31st december 2011

Quantity, 
ktonnes, 

2011

Quantity, 
ktonnes, 

2010

2011

Au (g/t) Ag (g/t) Cu (%) Zn (%) PB (%) Mo (g/t) Te (g/t)

The Boliden Area

Polymetallic 
 mineralisations
Kristineberg Proven 1,020 1,340 1.2 24 1.3 1.9 0.1

Probable 3,800 2,800 0.5 41 0.4 6.8 0.4

Renström Proven 140 170 3.3 150 0.7 8.0 1.6

Probable 2,180 1,590 2.1 152 0.9 5.6 1.3

Maurliden Proven 1,300 1,300 1.3 51 0.2 3.6 0.4

Probable

Maurliden Östra Proven

Probable 520 1,060 0.5 14 1.0 0.2

Total Proven 2,480 2,820 1.4 45 0.7 3.2 0.3

Polymetallic 
 mineralisations Probable 6,500 5,400 1.0 76 0.6 5.9 0.6

Gold mineralisations
Kankberg Proven 500 120 3.1 9 159

Probable 2,600 2,660 3.7 14 166

Aitik Proven 486,000 504,000 0.15 1.6 0.25 28

Probable 224,000 229,000 0.13 1.6 0.24 31

Garpenberg Proven 17,400 18,800 0.3 119 0.06 5.6 2.2

Probable 6,200 6,300 0.2 216 0.04 3.6 1.4

Tara Proven 3,300 3,500 7.8 1.9

Probable 12,400 12,500 6.9 1.8
Figures may be rounded up or down.
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Mineral resources on 31st december 2011

Quantity, 
ktonnes, 

2011

Quantity, 
ktonnes, 

2010

2011

Au (g/t) Ag (g/t) Cu (%) Zn (%) PB (%) Mo (g/t) Te (g/t)

The Boliden Area

Polymetallic 
 mineralisations
Kristineberg Measured 50 50

Indicated 3,760 1,660 0.7 31 0.7 5.0 0.3

Inferred 2,600 2,300 0.5 29 0.5 3.0 0.2

Petiknäs n Measured 310 310 8.1 73 1.8 3.1 0.3

Indicated 1,200 1,200 2.7 52 0.6 1.8 0.3

Inferred 720 720 3.3 33 0.5 1.2 0.2

Renström Measured 10 10 2.8 135 1.2 6.8 1.1

Indicated 2,170 1,510 2.2 95 0.6 6.1 0.9

Inferred 3,960 1,890 2.4 158 0.4 7.5 1.6

Maurliden Measured 1,050 1,050 1.3 40 0.4 3.3 0.2

Indicated 360 360 0.9 45 0.7 2.9 0.2

Inferred

Maurliden Östra Measured

Indicated 360 410 0.4 11 0.4 0.2

Inferred

Total Measured 1,400 1,400 2.5 47 0.7 3.3 0.2

Polymetallic 
 mineralisations Indicated 7,900 5,100 1.4 52 0.6 4.5 0.4

Inferred 7,300 4,900 1.8 100 0.5 5.3 1.0

Gold mineralisations
Kankberg Measured 38 59 0.5 2 80

Indicated 200 610 2.8 9 82

Inferred 140 120 4.4 6 78

Älgträsk Measured

Indicated 2,930 2,930 2.6 3

Inferred 1,270 1,270 1.8 3

Total Measured 40 60 0.5 2

Gold mineralisations Indicated 3,100 3,500 2.6 3

Inferred 1,400 1,400 2.0 3

Aitik Measured 704,000 708,000 0.12 1.0 0.19 24

Indicated 966,000 845,000 0.11 1.0 0.18 24

Inferred 94,000 164,000 0.10 0.9 0.16 24

Garpenberg Measured 2,900 2,600 0.3 101 0.07 3.8 1.7

Indicated 14,300 9,900 0.4 153 0.06 4.7 2.1

Inferred 23,800 26,800 0.6 132 0.07 4.5 2.3

Tara Measured 300 300 6.0 1.7

Indicated 4,200 4,600 6.5 2.1

Inferred 6,000 7,000 6.9 1.7

Figures may be rounded up or down.
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Five-year overview – The Group

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND RESULT (SEK M) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Revenues 33,204 30,987 27,635 36,716 40,323
Operating profit before depreciation 6,805 2,426 5,186 7,445 6,674
Operating profit 5,428 1,004 3,623 5,643 4,748
Operating profit excluding revaluation of process inventory 5,620 1,793 2,350 4,830 5,008
Profit after financial items 5,196 723 3,377 5,331 4,560
Taxes –1,409 212 –876 –1,374 –1,171
net profit 3,787 935 2,501 3,957 3,389

INCOME AND PROFIT PER BUSINESS AREA (SEK M)
Revenues – Mines 7,567 5,178 6,509 9,580 10,279
Revenues – Smelters 34,704 31,256 26,765 34,390 38,471
Revenues – Other and eliminations –9,067 –5,447 –5,639 –7,254 –8,427
Operating profit – Mines 3,135 734 2,159 4,113 3,913
Operating profit – Smelters 2,297 372 1,724 1,946 790
Operating profit – Other and eliminations –4 –102 –260 –416 45

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW (SEK M)
Cash flow from operating activities 3,730 5,470 3,974 6,197 4,021
Cash flow from investment activities –2,518 –4,633 –4,922 –2,995 –4,024
Free cash flow1 1,212 837 –948 3,202 –3
Cash flow from financial activities –3,532 –514 571 –3,199 –464
Cash flow for the year –2,320 323 –377 3 –467

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION (SEK M)
Balance Sheet total 27,231 30,252 33,258 35,128 37,615
Capital employed 20,145 24,733 26,229 27,151 30,473
Return on capital employed, % 29 5 14 21 17
Shareholders’ equity 12,932 16,131 16,257 18,846 21,032
Return on shareholders’ equity, % 26 7 16 23 17
Equity/assets ratio, % 47 53 49 54 56
net debt 5,524 6,305 7,402 4,584 6,063
net debt/equity ratio, % 43 39 46 24 29

DATA PER SHARE (SEK)
Earnings for the period
 Before dilution 13.37 3.42 9.14 14.47 12.39
 After dilution 13.37 3.42 9.14 14.47 12.39
Cash flow from operating activities
 Before dilution 13.17 20.00 14.53 22.66 14.70
 After dilution 13.17 20.00 14.53 22.66 14.70
Shareholders’ equity
 Before dilution 47.28 58.98 59.44 68.90 76.90
 After dilution 47.28 58.98 59.44 68.90 76.90
Dividend2 4.00 1.00 3.00 5.00 4.00
Share price, 31/12 81.25 17.80 92.10 136.70 100.50
Highest price paid 165.00 86.00 95.30 137.70 143.50
Lowest price paid 79.00 14.60 16.10 79.50 65.35
P/E ratio3 6.07 5.20 10.07 9.45 8.11
Change in share price during the year, % –50 –78 417 48 –26
Dividend yield4, % 4.9 5.6 3.3 3.7 4.0
Total yield5, % –48 –73 423 52 –23

NUMBER OF SHARES
no. shares, 31/12 273,511,169 273,511,169 273,511,169 273,511,169 273,511,169
Average no. shares 283,276,511 273,511,169 273,511,169 273,511,169 273,511,169
no. own shares held, 31/12 15,946,000 – – – –

1) Refers to cash flow before financial activities.
2) Proposed dividend.
3) Share price at the end of the year divided by the earnings per share for the period before dilution.
4) Proposed dividend per share for the year in SEK divided by the share price at the end of the year.
5) Change in share price during the year plus dividend paid divided by the share price at the beginning of the year.
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Five-year overview – Mines

TARA 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Milled ore, ktonnes 2,658 2,411 2,508 2,593 2,486
Head grades
Zn (%) 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.0 7.0
Pb (%) 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4
Concentrate production
Zn (t) 350,511 319,762 344,328 315,855 307,410
Pb (t) 42,036 39,944 41,020 34,459 33,679
Concentrate grade
Zn (%) 54.5 54.7 53.9 53.0 53.3
Pb (%) 60.9 56.7 57.5 53.7 58.8
Metal content
Zn (t) 190,916 175,006 185,558 167,334 163,935
Pb (T) 25,618 22,631 23,567 18,515 19,787
Financial performance
Revenues 3,129 1,357 1,671 1,831 1,757
Operating profit before depreciation (SEK m) 1,989 154 303 619 503
Operating profit (SEK m) 1,796 –40 76 383 268
Investments (SEK m) 277 305 338 285 372
Cash cost uSc/lb Zn (normal costing C1) 65 79 64 69 72
Proven and probable mineral reserves
Ktonnes 17,800 17,100 17,000 16,000 15,700
Zn (%) 7.7 7.4 7.2 7.1 7.1
Pb (%) 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8

GARPENBERG 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Milled ore, ktonnes 1,255 1,365 1,394 1,443 1,456
Head grades
Zn (%) 6.3 6.9 7.3 6.6 6.2
Cu (%) 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Pb (%) 2.5 2.6 2.8 2.5 2.4
Au (g/tonne) 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.3
Ag (g/tonne) 125 130 139 133 133
Concentrate production
Zn (t) 132,125 157,962 167,369 160,185 147,501
Cu (t) 3,086 2,853 2,697 2,834 2,199
Pb (t) 35,849 41,311 44,012 40,717 39,105
Precious metals (t) 40 52 61 146 66
Concentrate grade
Zn (%) 54.1 53.1 53.8 53.7 55.0
Cu (%) 22.1 20.4 18.3 18.3 19.1
Pb (%) 70.1 69.0 71.3 72.0 72.5
Metal content
Zn (t) 71,464 83,938 90,079 86,022 81,068
Cu (t) 682 581 493 517 419
Pb (t) 25,139 28,514 31,371 29,310 28,330
Au (kg) 244 243 214 234 246
Ag (kg) 117,798 130,287 139,141 140,138 140,121
Financial performance
Revenues 1,710 1,163 1,490 1,902 2,155
Operating profit before depreciation (SEK m) 1,195 598 945 1,293 1,506
Operating profit (SEK m) 1,095 466 793 1,124 1,314
Investments (SEK m) 323 344 157 281 660
Cash cost uSc/lb Zn (normal costing C1) 6 19 3 –16 –56
Proven and probable mineral reserves
Ktonnes 20,800 26,000 25,800 25,100 23,600
Zn (%) 5.2 5.1 5.4 5.3 5.1
Ag (g/t) 116 134 142 145 144
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THE BOLIDEN AREA 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Milled ore, ktonnes 1,848 1,355 1,192 1,375 1,677
Head grades
Zn (%) 4.8 4.0 3.7 3.7 2.9
Cu (%) 0.8 1.0 1.0 0.8 1.0
Pb (%) 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.3
Au (g/tonne) 1.6 1.5 2.0 1.6 1.2
Ag (g/tonne) 66 61 65 55 41
Concentrate production
Zn (t) 131,395 70,327 57,565 73,983 68,622
Cu (t) 41,885 32,441 28,481 31,430 59,668
Pb (t) 10,804 4,547 4,056 4,242 3,264
Precious metals (t) 385 289 399 529 568
Gold doré bullion (kg) 1,466 171 280 – –
Concentrate grade
Zn (%) 54.0 54.7 54.7 54.7 55.7
Cu (%) 27.8 29.0 28.4 26.4 23.3
Pb (%) 31.6 41.7 42.7 41.5 41.7
Metal content
Zn (t) 70,913 38,479 31,491 40,458 38,214
Cu (t) 11,633 9,413 8,090 8,291 13,910
Pb (t) 3,409 1,896 1,731 1,760 1,360
Au (kg) 1,412 1,141 1,568 1,285 989
Ag (kg) 79,753 47,671 48,186 52,806 45,318
Financial performance
Revenues 1,928 1,013 1,109 1,448 1,587
Operating profit before depreciation (SEK m) 976 222 405 588 659
Operating profit (SEK m) 849 115 303 481 530
Investments (SEK m) 144 237 264 298 565
Cash cost uSc/lb Zn (normal costing C1) 30 29 –6 –18 –58
Proven and probable mineral reserves
Polymetallic ores, ktonnes 7,020 7,350 6,950 8,220 8,980
Zn (%) 3.6 4.3 4.3 5.3 5.2
Cu (%) 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.6 0.6
Gold ores, ktonnes 1,610 2,780 3,100
Au (g/t) 4.9 4.1 3.6
Te (g/t) 186 165

AITIK 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Milled ore, ktonnes 18,178 17,813 18,791 27,596 31,541
Head grades
Cu (%) 0.32 0.30 0.27 0.27 0.24
Au (g/tonne) 0.14 0.14 0.13 0.16 0.14
Ag (g/tonne) 3.67 2.81 1.99 2.07 2.15
Concentrate production
Cu (t) 185,302 173,624 170,808 262,551 267,488
Concentrate grade
Cu (%) 27.2 27.2 26.9 25.58 25.00
Metal content
Cu (t) 50,487 47,225 46,019 67,168 66,876
Au (kg) 1,178 1,218 1,348 2,208 2,447
Ag (kg) 42,301 32,087 24,701 36,468 45,040
Financial performance
Revenues 2,305 1,949 1,997 3,996 4,549
Operating profit before depreciation (SEK m) 1,388 1,049 1,134 2,442 2,583
Operating profit (SEK m) 1,217 876 949 2,008 2,046
Investments (SEK m) 760 2,994 3,674 1,210 730
Cash cost usc/lb Cu (normal costing C1) 129 124 86 105 120
Proven and probable mineral reserves
Ktonnes 610,000 633,000 747,000 733,000 710,000
Cu (%) 0.29 0.27 0.25 0.25 0.25
Au (g/t) 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1
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Five-year overview – Smelters

KOKKOLA 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Smelting material, tonnes

Zinc concentrate 581,229 576,239 571,003 587,330 600,228

Production, tonnes

Zinc 305,543 297,722 295,049 307,144 307,352

Mercury 45 33 6 9 5

Financial performance

Operating profit before depreciation (SEK m) 1,434 632 558 685 417

Operating profit (SEK m) 1,273 469 362 505 246

Investments (SEK m) 236 162 99 248 253

ODDA 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Smelting material, tonnes

Zinc concentrate (incl. zinc clinker) 291,745 269,820 245,263 276,811 282,959

Production, tonnes

Zinc 157,027 145,469 138,973 148,862 153,200

 of which reprocessed zinc 1,629 1,198 1,315 1,087 568

Cadmium 269 178 249 300 309

Aluminium fluoride 34,833 34,611 33,161 21,951 34,812

Financial performance

Operating profit before depreciation (SEK m) 576 360 161 184 123

Operating profit (SEK m) 439 210 6 39 –25

Investments (SEK m) 168 146 22 75 87

RÖNNSKÄR 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Smelting material, tonnes

Copper, tonnes

Primary 598,240 611,202 564,749 544,242 651,052

Secondary 159,792 172,950 154,099 155,024 175,064

Total 758,032 784,152 718,848 699,266 826,116

Lead, tonnes

Primary 38,011 17,893 13,861 16,294 11,401

Secondary 2,077 4,541 7,050 6,281 5,131

Total 40,088 22,434 20,912 22,575 16,532

Production

Cathode copper (t) 213,894 227,774 205,759 190,497 219,316

Lead (t) 25,865 14,235 13,013 17,013 11,429

Zinc clinker (t) 36,418 40,803 38,535 36,950 35,857

Gold (kg) 12,086 13,425 13,282 12,450 10,600

Silver (kg) 346,574 429,637 481,223 385,684 415,066

Sulphuric acid (t) 543,524 556,863 514,736 501,873 570,869

Liquid sulphur dioxide (t) 50,493 53,030 35,857 42,876 42,129

Palladium concentrate (kg) 3,028 3,453 2,982 2,474 2,466

Financial performance

Operating profit before depreciation (SEK m) 846 637 338 441 715

Operating profit (SEK m) 615 395 83 187 470

Investments (SEK m) 228 192 199 270 1,074
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HARJAVALTA 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Smelting material, tonnes

Copper concentrate 450,870 529,466 399,653 433,511 456,350

nickel concentrate 261,648 273,352 211,231 261,931 259,259

Production, tonnes

Cathode copper 100,987 121,819 96,596 112,687 116,455

Gold (kg) 2,790 2,064 1,747 1,770 2,248

Silver (kg) 33,175 58,648 58,341 64,596 73,081

Sulphuric acid (t) 557,395 659,095 500,842 573,096 599,596

Liquid sulphur dioxide (t) 41,779 36,934 33,003 26,682 35,355

Palladium concentrate (kg) 461 214 265 718 836

Financial performance

Operating profit before depreciation (SEK m) 289 212 203 318 373

Operating profit before depreciation excl. PIR1 289 339 62 318 373

Operating profit (SEK m) 149 64 24 154 222

Operating profit excl. PIR1 149 191 –117 154 222

Investments (SEK m) 366 225 148 122 229

BERGSÖE 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Production, tonnes

Lead alloys 43,865 42,577 38,561 42,166 41,009

Tin alloys 701 516 428 497 11

Financial performance

Operating profit before depreciation (SEK m) 344 142 106 99 95

Operating profit (SEK m) 330 127 91 82 75

Investments (SEK m) 10 12 12 14 24

1) Process Inventory Revaluation.
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Corporate Governance Report

Boliden is a Swedish limited company listed on the nASDAQ OMX Stockholm Stock Exchange, with a sec-
ondary listing on the Toronto Stock Exchange. Boliden’s corporate governance is based on the Swedish 
Companies Act and the Swedish Annual Accounts Act, the regulations of the nASDAQ OMX Stockholm 
Stock Exchange, the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance, the Articles of Association and other rele-
vant regulations. 

GOVERNANCE OF THE BOLIDEN GROUP
The shareholders exercise their right of decision at the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting (and at any Extraordinary General Meeting), which 
is the company’s supreme decision-making body. The Board of 
Directors and the Chairman of the Board are appointed by the 
Annual General Meeting and the President is appointed by the 
Board of Directors. The company’s accounting and the administra-
tion of the company by the Board of Directors and the President are 
reviewed by auditors appointed by the Annual General Meeting. 
The Annual General Meeting also appoints members to a Nomina-
tion Committee which drafts proposals that are put to the Annual 
General Meeting with regard to, among other things, elections of 
and the fees payable to the Board of Directors and auditors.

Over and above its compliance with legislative provisions, reg-
ulations and the Code, Boliden also applies internal governance 
instruments, such as the Group’s organisational and operational 
philosophy, the New Boliden Way (NBW), and policies in such 
areas as financial reporting and control, the environment, energy, 
health and safety, and communication.

SHAREHOLDERS
Boliden has a share capital of SEK 578,914,338 divided between 
273,511,169 shares and the same number of votes. There were a total 
of 95,034 shareholders at the end of 2011, and the individually larg-
est owners were Nordea fonder, Swedbank Robur fonder, AMF 
Försäkring, AFA Försäkring and Handelsbanken fonder. Approx-
imately 40 per cent of the total number of shares was held by for-
eign owners. 

For further information on the shareholder structure within 
Boliden, see pages 48–49 of the Annual Report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The duties of the Annual General Meeting include the election of 
Members of the Board and the Chairman of the Board and the 
Nomination Committee, the adoption of the Income Statement 
and Balance Sheet, resolutions on appropriation of profits and dis-
charge from liability for the Members of the Board and the Presi-
dent of the company, the determination of fees payable to the Mem-
bers of the Board and to the auditors and the principles governing 
conditions of employment and remuneration for the President and 
senior executives and, where relevant, the amending of Articles of 
Association and the election of auditors.

The 2011 Annual General Meeting was held on 3rd May in Aitik. 
79,533,115 shares were represented at the Meeting by 610 sharehold-
ers, either in person or through their proxies. The shares represented 
comprised 29 per cent of the total number of shares in Boliden. The 
Meeting resolved to re-elect Board Members Marie Berglund, 
 Staffan Bohman, Lennart Evrell, Michael G:son Löw, Ulla Litzén, 
Leif Rönnbäck, Matti Sundberg and Anders Ullberg. Anders 
 Ullberg was re-elected as the Chairman of the Board.

The Meeting further resolved:
•  to pay a dividend of SEK 5 per share, in accordance with the pro-

posal by the Board of Directors; 
•  that the following persons shall be appointed as members of the 

Nomination Committee: Jan Andersson (Swedbank Robur 

fonder), Thomas Ehlin (Nordeas Fonder), Lars-Erik Forsgårdh, 
Anders Oscarsson (AMF), Caroline af Ugglas (Skandia Liv) and 
Anders Ullberg (Chairman of the Board);

•  that the Directors’ fees payable shall comprise payments of SEK 
1,000,000 to the Chairman of the Board and of SEK 400,000 to 
Members who are not Boliden employees, that the fees payable 
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and to each of the two 
members of the Audit Committee shall be SEK 150,000 and SEK 
75,000, respectively, and that the fees payable to each of the 
Remuneration Committee’s two members shall be SEK 50,000; 

•  that auditors’ fees shall be payable in accordance with the 
approved invoices received;

•  that remuneration payable to the members of the Group man-
agement shall comprise a fixed salary, any variable remuneration, 
other benefits and pensions. The variable remuneration shall be 
maximised at 60 per cent of the fixed salary for the President and 
maximised at 50 per cent of the fixed salary for other senior exec-
utives and shall be based on results in relation to targets set. 10 
per cent of the variable remuneration shall be used to acquire 
shares in the company. The variable remuneration shall not com-
prise pensionable income; 

•  to amend the company’s Articles of Association in line with the 
provisions of the Swedish Companies Act that came into force 
on 1st January 2011 such that, inter alia, Notices convening Gen-
eral Meetings shall be issued by means of advertisements in the 
Official Swedish Gazette and on the company’s website, together 
with a notice in the Svenska Dagbladet daily newspaper that the 
Notice has been issued, and that Notices convening Extraordi-
nary General Meetings shall be issued no later than three weeks 
before any such Meeting; 

•  to publish the Minutes of the 2011 Annual General Meeting on 
Boliden’s website. 

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Annual General Meeting passes resolutions on the principles 
governing the appointment and duties of the Nomination Com-
mittee. The Nomination Committee shall, in accordance with the 
Instructions for the Nomination Committee adopted by the 2011 
Annual General Meeting, comprise a minimum of six and a max-
imum of seven members. Six members shall be elected at the Annual 
General Meeting, of whom four shall represent the biggest share-
holders and one the smaller shareholders, and one of whom shall be 
the Chairman of the Board. The Nomination Committee appoints 
its own Chairman and works in the best interests of all sharehold-
ers. The Nomination Committee may, in order better to reflect the 
shareholder structure in the event of changes in ownership, offer 
places on the Committee to other larger shareholders. 

Composition of the Nomination Committee
In October, the Chairman of the Board convened the members 
elected by the Meeting, at which time Jan Andersson (Swedbank 
Robur fonder), was appointed Chairman. Anders Algotsson also 
joined the Nomination Committee as a representative of AFA 
Försäkring. 
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Duties of the Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee is tasked with drafting proposals for 
resolution by Boliden’s Annual General Meeting. The proposals 
relate to, among other things, the number and the election of Mem-
bers of the Board, the Chairman of the Board, fees payable to the 
Board and its committees, and fees payable to the company’s audi-
tors and to the process and the criteria that shall govern the appoint-
ment of the members of the Nomination Committee ahead of next 
Annual General Meeting. 

The Nomination Committee has met a total of four times in 2011 
and 2012 and has also had telephone contact and held one meeting 
with the Members of the Board. Information on the way in which 
shareholders can submit proposals to the Nomination Committee 
have been published on Boliden’s website. 

The focus of the Nomination Committee’s work is on ensuring 
that the company’s Board of Directors comprises Members who, 
collectively, possess the knowledge and experience that corresponds 
to the requirements made of the company’s most senior governing 
body by the shareholders. This is why the Chairman of the Board 
presents the Nomination Committee with the evaluation conducted 
of the work of the Board and the individual Members during the 
past year as part of the process of drafting proposals for Board Mem-
bers. The Company President also presents Boliden’s operations and 
future orientation. The Nomination Committee is also afforded the 
opportunity to meet the Members of the Board. 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Boliden’s Board of Directors shall, under the provisions of the Arti-
cles of Association, comprise a minimum of three and a maximum of 
ten Members, without Deputy Members, elected by the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting. The company’s employees have a statutory entitlement 
to appoint three Members and three Deputy Members to the Board.

The composition of the Board 
The Board of Directors has comprised eight Members elected by 
the Annual General Meeting and three Members appointed by the 
trade union organisations since the 2011 Annual General Meeting. 
The Board Meetings are attended both by the ordinary Members 
and by the union Members’ three Deputy Members. The Senior 
Vice President of Legal Affairs is the Board’s Secretary.

Boliden’s Senior Vice President for the Group Treasury and Finance 
also usually attends the meetings on behalf of the Group manage-
ment. Other members of the Group management and other execu-
tives also attend and present reports on individual issues as required.

The Board Members elected by the Annual General Meeting are 
all to be regarded as independent in relation to major shareholders, 
and all, with the exception of the President, to be regarded as inde-
pendent in relation to the company and the Group management.

The Members of the Board are presented on pages 104–105 and on 
Boliden’s website. For more detailed information on attendance at 
Meetings and independence, among other things, see the table below. 

The responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Chairman
The Board of Directors is appointed by Boliden’s owners to bear 
ultimate responsibility for the organisation and management of the 
company’s affairs. The Board adopts a Formal Work Plan every year 
at the Board Meeting following the election, held after the Annual 
General Meeting. The Formal Work Plan regulates the work and 
the responsibilities of the Board in greater detail, together with the 
special duties with which the Chairman of the Board is tasked. The 
Chairman of the Board guides the work of the Board and monitors 
Boliden’s operations through an ongoing dialogue with the Presi-
dent. The Board receives information on Boliden’s economic and 
financial position through monthly reports and at Board Meetings. 
Prior to every Board Meeting, the Chairman and the President 
review the issues to be discussed at the Meeting. The source data for 
the Board’s discussion of the issues is sent to the Members approx-
imately one week before each Board Meeting. The division of labour 
between the Board of Directors and the President is clarified in the 
written “Instructions to the President” adopted by the Board at the 
Board meeting following election. In 2011, the Board has, as in pre-
vious years, established an Audit Committee and a Remuneration 
Committee.

The Board of Directors’ work in 2011
The Board of Directors held seven ordinary Board meetings in 2011. 
A number of the Board Meetings are regularly held at the compa-
ny’s operating units in order to give the Members an increased 
insight into the operations. In 2011, the Board visited Aitik and 
Bergsöe. 

Board of Directors as of 
the 2011 Annual General 
Meeting Elected

Pre-
sent, 
2011

Committee 
work

Present, 
2011

Director’s 
fee, SEK

Fee, Audit 
Commit-
tee, SEK

Fee, 
 Remuneration 

Committee, 
SEK

Independent 
of the 

 company and 
the company 
management

Independ-
ent of 
major 
share-

holders

Anders ullberg, Chairman 2005 7 of 7

Audit 
 Committee, 
 Remuneration 
 Committee

5 of 5
 
2 of 2 1,000,000 75,000 50,000 Yes Yes

Marie Berglund 2003 7 of 7   400,000   Yes Yes

Staffan Bohman 2007 7 of 7
Remuneration 
Committee 2 of 2 400,000  50,000 Yes Yes

Lennart Evrell, President 2008 7 of 7      no Yes

ulla Litzén 2005 7 of 7
Audit 
 Committee 5 of 5 400,000 150,000  Yes Yes

Michael G:son Löw 2010 7 of 7   400,000   Yes Yes

Leif Rönnbäck 2005 7 of 7
Audit 
 Committee 5 of 5 400,000 75,000  Yes Yes

Matti Sundberg 2005 7 of 7   400,000   Yes Yes

Hans-Göran Ölvebo (ER) 2001 7 of 7        

Bo Karlsson (ER) 2001 7 of 7        

Marie Holmberg (ER) 2008 7 of 7        

Mikael Andersson (ER) 2008 3 of 3        

Roland Antonsson (ER) 2009 6 of 7        

Osmo Hoisionaho (ER) 2010 6 of 7        

Marie Lundberg (ER) 2011 4 of 4

THE 2011 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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At the beginning of every year, the Board sets a number of themes 
that it particularly wishes to address during the year. Some of the 
issues during the year, in addition to the operational review con-
ducted at every Board Meeting were:
•  January: a SEK 3.9 billion investment in the expansion of the 

Garpenberg mine from 1.4 to 2.5 Mtonnes of ore per year. 
•  February: Year-end Report, Audit Report, investment in the 

Kankberg gold and tellurium mine, other current investment 
issues, remuneration issues, the Annual Report and matters to be 
discussed at the Annual General Meeting. Boliden’s auditors pre-
sented reports detailing their observations from the audit of the 
company at the Board Meeting. The Board had, at this time, the 
opportunity to meet the auditors without the presence of the 
Group management. 

•  May: Q1 Interim Report, follow-up on the Aitik expansion, emis-
sions rights issues, comparisons with competitors, structural 
changes in the industry and long-term borrowing. 

•  July: Q2 Interim Report, Auditors’ report, energy issues, global 
metals market trends, pricing and economic climate analyses.

•  October: Q3 Interim Report, exploration, risks and risk manage-
ment, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and evaluation of 
the Board.

•  December: Strategy, budget and business plan, New Boliden Way 
follow-up work, management supply pools and managerial devel-
opment.

Evaluation of the Board’s work
The Chairman ensures that the Board and its work are evaluated 
annually and that the results of the evaluation are conveyed to the 
Nomination Committee. The evaluation is carried out by the Board 
itself under the guidance of the Chairman or, at regular intervals, 
with the help of an independent consultant. The 2011 evaluation 
was a self-evaluation during which the Members answered a num-
ber of questions in writing on a range of different subjects and held 
one-on-one discussions with the Chairman of the Board, followed 
by a joint discussion, during which the Board discussed the conclu-
sions drawn from the evaluation.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee meets before the publication of every finan-
cial report, and as necessary. The Committee prepares a number of 
issues for consideration by the Board and thereby supports the 
Board in its endeavours to fulfil its responsibilities within the areas 
of auditing and internal control and with assuring the quality of 
Boliden’s financial reporting. This requires, among other things, 
that the company has a satisfactory organisation and appropriate 

processes to this end. Boliden has an internal control function 
whose work involves mapping risk areas and following up on work 
in identified areas. The Committee also works with the procure-
ment of services from the company’s auditors over and above the 
actual auditing services and, when so tasked by the Nomination 
Committee, with the procurement of auditing services. 

The Audit Committee works on the basis of a set of “Instructions 
for the Audit Committee” adopted every year by the Board of Direc-
tors and reports back to the Board on the results of its work. Spe-
cial attention was paid in 2011 to industry-related accounting issues 
and changes to IFRS, and to following up on internal controls. The 
Audit Committee comprises Ulla Litzén (Chairwoman), Leif Rönn-
bäck and Anders Ullberg, and met five times in 2011. The Commit-
tee members have specialist competence, experience of and interest 
in financial and accounting issues. 

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee submits proposals for resolution by 
the Board regarding salary and other terms of employment for the 
President and follows up on and evaluates programmes for variable 
remuneration for the management. The Committee also approves 
proposals regarding salaries and other terms of employment for the 
Group management, as proposed by the President. The Remuner-
ation Committee is, furthermore, tasked with submitting propos-
als regarding remuneration principles etc. for the President and 
Group management, which proposals are then submitted by the 
Board to the Annual General Meeting for resolution. The applica-
tion of the guidelines and applicable remuneration structures and 
levels within the company is also followed up by the Committee 
and the results of this evaluation are published on the company’s 
website.

The Remuneration Committee works on the basis of a set of 
“Instructions for the Remuneration Committee” adopted every year 
by the Board of Directors and reports back to the Board on the 
results of its work. The Committee has held two meetings during 
the year and had telephone contact on a number of occasions. The 
Remuneration Committee comprises Anders Ullberg (Chairman), 
and Staffan Bohman. 

See Note 1 on pages 65–66 for an account of the remuneration 
paid to the Group management. 

BUSINESS MANAGEMENT
Management by the Board goes through a chain of command from 
the President to the operating units. Boliden works on the basis of 
the company’s organisational and operational philosophy, NBW, 
which is updated annually. Boliden has an organisation in which 

SHAREHOLDERS
Approximately 95,000 shareholders. Exercise 
control via the Annual General Meeting and, 
where relevant, Extraordinary General Meetings.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Comprises between six and seven members. 
Submits proposals to the Annual General Mee-
ting with regard to Board Members, etc. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Consists of eight Members elected by the Annual 
General Meeting and three Members and three Dep-
uties appointed by the trade union organisations.

Audit Committee (three members)

Remuneration Committee (two members)

PRESIDENT/CEO AND  
GROUP MANAGEMENT

The President leads the operations with the support of 
the other four members of the Group management. 

INTERNAL CONTROL FUNCTION
Reports to the Head of the Treasury and Finance 
function and presents reports on issues relating to 
internal control at the Audit Committee’s meetings.

BOLIDEN’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

AUDITORS
Elected by the Annual General Meeting. Review 
the accounts, bookkeeping and the administra-
tion by the Board of Directors and the President.
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responsibilities and authority are delegated within clear frame-
works. These frameworks are defined by an annual budget which is 
broken down by unit, a strategic plan, and Boliden’s steering doc-
uments. The steering documents, which are available on Boliden’s 
intranet, include the Financial Policy, the Communications Policy, 
the Environmental Policy and the Health and Safety Policy. 

GROUP MANAGEMENT
Boliden’s Group management comprises the President, the heads 
of the Group’s two Business Areas, the Senior Vice President for the 
Group Treasury and Finance, and the Senior Vice President for 
Human Resources and Sustainable Development. The Group man-
agement team meets once a month to monitor operations and dis-
cuss issues that concern the Group as a whole, and to generate pro-
posals for strategic plans, business plans and budgets that the 
President will submit to the Board of Directors for a decision. 

The company’s 150 or so senior managers and specialists meet 
annually at management meetings with a view to establishing a con-
sensus, and where they also have the opportunity for discussions 
aimed at establishing widespread support for the measures proposed. 

See page 106 for a presentation of the Group management team. 

AUDITORS
The accounting firm of Ernst & Young AB was elected at the 2009 
Annual General Meeting to serve as the company’s auditors until 
the conclusion of the 2013 Annual General Meeting. Authorised 
Public Accountant Lars Träff is the senior auditor. 

Lars Träff’s audit engagements, in addition to Boliden, include 
Avanza, Lantmännen, Posten, Scania, ÅF and Investment AB 
Öresund.

Remuneration is paid to the company’s auditors in accordance 
with invoices received as agreed. See Note 2 on page 66 for infor-
mation on remuneration disbursed in 2011.

INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The purpose of internal control with regard to financial reporting 
is to provide reasonable assurance with regard to the reliability of 
the external financial reporting and to ensure that the reports are 
produced in accordance with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples, applicable legislation and statutes, and with other require-
ments imposed on listed companies. 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for ensuring 
that an efficient internal control system exists within the Boliden 
Group. The President is responsible for the existence of a process 
and organisation that ensure internal control and the quality of the 
internal and external financial reporting.

Internal control function
Boliden has an internal control function responsible for implement-
ing processes and frameworks that secure internal control and 
ensure the quality of the financial reporting. 

The internal control function reports to the Head of the Treas-
ury and Finance function and presents reports on issues relating to 
internal control at the Audit Committee’s meetings.

Control environment
The control environment within Boliden is characterised by the fact 
that the Group has relatively few but large operating units that have 
carried out their operations for many years, using well-established 
processes and control activities.

A structure of steering documents in the form of binding poli-
cies and guidelines for the organisation’s delegated responsibilities 
has been established to ensure a collective attitude and methodol-
ogy within the Group.

The starting point is the New Boliden Way, together with asso-
ciated steering documents which include the Code of Conduct, deci-
sion-making and authorisation instructions, and a financial man-
ual covering financial policy, accounting and reporting instructions.

Local management systems with more detailed instructions and 
descriptions of important processes have also been set up.

Work continued at both Business Area and Group level in 2011 
on charting the financial transaction flows, identifying risks and 
documenting control activities in a uniform and standardised way. 

Risk analysis
The operating units conduct ongoing risk analyses with regard to 
financial reporting. All units shall, within the framework of this 
work, which began in 2008, map and evaluate risks in the various 
accounting and reporting processes. 

Control activities
Various types of control activities are carried out within the Group 
and within every different aspect of the accounting and reporting 
process on an ongoing basis. The control activities are carried out 
in order to manage known risks and to detect and rectify any errors 
and discrepancies in the financial reporting. 

Documentation of significant control activities within the 
accounting and reporting process continued in 2011, and testing of 
all of these control activities, including general IT controls, was con-
ducted during the summer. 

Information and communication
Information on policies, guidelines and manuals is available on 
Boliden’s intranet. Information on updates and changes to report-
ing and accounting principles is issued via the intranet and at the 
regular treasury and controller meetings.

External information is provided and communication con-
ducted in accordance with the Group’s Communications Policy. 
All information must be communicated in a discerning, open and 
transparent manner.

The structure and quality of the information on the intranet has 
been improved further still in 2011, increasing accessibility and the 
ability to find the right information quickly. Group-wide steering 
documents are updated and communicated on a continuous basis.

Follow-ups
Systems, processes and controls within the Group are followed up, 
improved and developed continuously. 

Areas where scope for improvement is identified in conjunction 
with audits are documented, analysed and actioned.

AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT
To the annual meeting of the shareholders of Boliden AB, corpo-
rate identity number 556051-4142

It is the board of directors who is responsible for the corporate 
governance statement for the year 2011 on pages 100–105 and that it 
has been prepared in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act. 

We have read the corporate governance statement and based on 
that reading and our knowledge of the company and the group we 
believe that we have a sufficient basis for our opinions. This means 
that our statutory examination of the corporate governance state-
ment is different and substantially less in scope than an audit con-
ducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and 
generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden. 

In our opinion, the corporate governance statement has been pre-
pared and its statutory content is consistent with the annual accounts 
and the consolidated accounts.

Stockholm, 13th February 2012

Ernst & Young AB

Lars Träff
Authorised Public Accountant
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Au
Anders Ullberg 
Chairman of the Board since 
2005. M.Sc. Business Adminis-
tration and Economics.
Born: 1946 
Directorships: Chairman of the 
Boards of BE Group, Eneqvist 
Consulting, Natur&Kultur and 
Studsvik. Member of the Boards 
of Atlas Copco, Beijer Alma, 
Sapa, Valedo Partners and Åkers. 
Chairman of the Swedish Finan-
cial Reporting Board. Member 
of the Swedish Corporate Gover-
nance Board. 
Shareholding: 45,000

Mg
Michael G:son Löw
Member of the Board since 2010. 
B.Sc. Economics. President and 
CEO of Preem AB. Born: 1951 
Directorships: Member of the 
Boards of Preem, Norstel, and the 
Confederation of Swe. Enterprise, 
Deputy Chairman of the Swe. 
Industrial and Chemical Employ-
ers Association, the Swe. Petro-
leum Institute, the Swe.- Rus. & 
CIS Ch. of Comm., Member of 
the Chalmers Advisory Commit-
tee and the Royal Swe. Academy 
of Engineering Sciences. 
Shareholding: 100

Mb
Marie Berglund
Member of the Board since 2003. 
M. Sc. Biology. Raw Materials 
Manager, NCC Roads Nord AB.
Born: 1958 
Directorships: Member of the 
Boards of Baltic Sea 2020, Ene-
tjärn Natur, Eurocon Consul-
ting, the Water Delegation of the 
Gulf of Bothnia’s Water District, 
the Advisory Council of the 
County Administrative Board of 
Västernorrland, the Swedish 
Forest Agency and MoDo 
Hockey.
Shareholding: 1,000

Ul
Ulla Litzén
Member of the Board since 2005. 
M.Sc. Economics and MBA.
Born: 1956 
Directorships: Member of the 
Boards of Alfa Laval, Atlas 
Copco, Husqvarna, NCC and 
SKF.
Shareholding: 8,400

Sb
Staffan Bohman
Member of the Board since 2007. 
B.Sc. Economics. Senior advisor, 
Deutsche Bank Nordic region. 
Born: 1949 
Directorships: Member of the 
Boards of Atlas Copco, Cibes 
Lift, Inter-IKEA, OSM, Ratos 
and Rezidor Hotel Group et al. 
Chairman of the Board of Ersta 
diakoni, Deputy Chairman of 
SNS − Centre for Business and 
Policy Studies Board of Trustees.
Shareholding: 40,000

Lr
Leif Rönnbäck
Member of the Board since 2005. 
B.Sc. Natural Sciences, Geology.
Born: 1945 
Shareholding: 1,000

Le
Lennart Evrell
Member of the Board since 
2008. 
M.Sc. Engineering, Economics. 
President and CEO of  
Boliden AB.
Born: 1954 
Directorships: Chairman of the 
Board of SveMin. Member of the 
Board of Nordea Fonder.
Shareholding: 33,000

Ms
Matti Sundberg
Member of the Board since 2005. 
Mining Counsellor. Master of 
Economics, Honorary Doctor of 
Economics. 
Born: 1942 
Directorships: Chairman of the 
Boards of Chempolis Oy and the 
Finnish Ski Association. Mem-
ber of the Boards of FIS, Skanska 
and SSAB et al.
Shareholding: 12,000

The Board of Directors
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Mh
Marie Holmberg 
Member of the Board since 
2008. 
Deputy Member of the Board: 
2005–2008. 
Department Manager, Process 
Development, Rönnskär. Repre-
sentative of PTK (the Swedish 
Federation of Salaried Employ-
ees in Industry and Services) 
Rönnskär, and of the local club 
of the Swedish Association of 
Graduate Engineers. 
Born: 1963 
Shareholding: 50
With family: 192

Oh
Osmo Hoisionaho
Deputy Member of the Board 
since 2010. 
Process Operator, Kokkola. 
Representative of Metallarbetar-
förbundet, (the Finnish Metal-
workers’ Union), member of the 
Boliden Works Council.
Born: 1969 
Shareholding: 0

Bk
Bo Karlsson 
Member of the Board since 2005. 
Deputy Member of the Board: 
2001–2005. 
Process Operator, the Boliden 
Area. Representative of IF 
Metall (the Swedish Metalwor-
kers’ Union).
Born: 1955 
Shareholding: 500

Ml
Marie Lundberg
Deputy Member of the Board 
since 2011. 
Process Engineer at the Boliden 
concentrator. Representative of 
the Swedish Association of 
 Graduate Engineers.
Born: 1979 
Shareholding: 0

Hg
Hans-Göran Ölvebo 
Member of the Board since 
2009. 
Member of the Board: 2001–
2005, Deputy Member of the 
Board: 2005–2009. 
Production Worker, Aitik. 
Representative of IF Metall (the 
Swedish Metalworkers’ Union).
Born: 1955 
Shareholding: 50

Ra
Roland Antonsson 
Deputy Member of the Board 
since 2009. 
Representative of IF Metall (the 
Swedish Metalworkers’ Union) 
and Chairman of the IF Metall 
club, Rönnskär.
Born: 1957 
Shareholding: 0
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Johan Fant was CFO until the end of March 2011.
Svante Nilsson was President - Business Area Smelters until the end of January 2012.

Le
Lennart Evrell
M.Sc. Engineering, Economics 
President and CEO 
of Boliden AB.
Born: 1954
Employed: 2007
Shareholding: 33,000

Hö
Henrik Östberg
M.A. in languages and pedago-
gics
Senior Vice President − HR and 
Sustainability.
Born: 1960
Employed: 2008
Shareholding: 1,200

Jm
Jan Moström
B.Sc. Engineering
President − Business Area Mines.
Born: 1959
Employed: 1979–1998, 2000
Shareholding: 16,000

Kk
Kerstin Konradsson
M.Sc. Engineering
President − Business Area 
Smelters from 1st February 2012.
Born: 1967
Employed: 2012
Shareholding: 80 

Ms
Mikael Staffas
M.Sc. Engineering, MBA
CFO
Born: 1965
Employed: 2011
Shareholding with family: 3,000 
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Alloy Substance with metallic properties which is composed 
of two or more chemical elements, at least one of which is a 
metal.

Base metals The most common metals, for example, zinc, 
copper, lead, nickel and aluminium.

Cash cost Common measurement used to show the costs 
affecting a mine’s cash flow, converted into uS dollars (aver-
age rate for the measurement period). used to compare the 
mine’s cost position in relation to other mines. See page 108.

Complex ore Ore that contains several metals, for example 
zinc, copper, lead, gold and silver.

Concentrator A plant in which ore is processed mechanically 
and/ or chemically to extract and produce a concentrate of 
the valuable minerals.

Copper cathode An end product from copper smelters in the 
form of 99.99 per cent pure copper plates.

Feed The smelter’s raw material consumption, i.e. the 
amount of metal concentrate or secondary material pro-
cessed and refined.

Field exploration Exploration in new areas. Associated with 
 higher costs in comparison with mine-site exploration.

Free metals The percentage of metal concentrates bought 
in that an individual smelter can process over and above the 
payable metal content. This percentage generates income 
without incurring a raw material cost.

Galvanising An electrochemical process whereby a metal is 
coated with a thin layer of another metal, such as zinc. Galva-
nising is commonly used to protect against corrosion (rust).

ISO International Organization for Standardization. Interna-
tional standardisation organisation. Standards include envi-
ronmental management (ISO 14001) and quality (ISO 9001), 
etc. 

Kaldo furnace rotating and tippable furnace for the smelting 
and process treatment of copper, lead and precious metals, 
etc., including the recycling of metals from electronic scrap. 
The plastic present in the scrap is used to smelt the metals, 
thereby reducing the process’ energy requirement. 

LBMA London Bullion Market Association. International mar-
ket responsible for the daily pricing of precious metals.

LME London Metal Exchange. International market where 
non-ferrous metals are bought and sold. Trading on the LME is 
used as the basis for the daily pricing of metals worldwide. The 
LME also maintains warehouse stocks of the metals traded.

Metal concentrate also known as dressed ore or mined con-
centrate. Metal concentrate is the result of concentration 
processes that separate out the financially valuable minerals 
present in ore from those with no financial value. 

Metal content The quantities of, for example, zinc, copper, 
lead, gold and  silver contained in concentrates. Zinc concen-
trates generally contain approximately 50 per cent zinc metal 
while copper concen trates generally contain approximately 30 
per cent copper metal. The lead content of mined concentrate 
is usually around 65 per cent.

Metal premium The price agreed in advance, over and above 
the LME price, and paid by customers for specifically adapted 
metal that is supplied to them.

Mineralisation A concentration of minerals in the bedrock.

Mineral reserves Those parts of a mineral resource that can 
be mined and processed in accordance with the company’s 
profitability requirements and taking into account factors such 
as waste rock dilution and the percentage of metal in an ore 

that can be extracted in the concentration process. Mineral 
reserves are divided into two categories: probable mineral 
reserves and proven mineral reserves.

Mineral resource A concentration of minerals in the bedrock 
that may become commercially extractable. Mineral 
resources are divided into three categories: assumed mineral 
resources, inferred mineral resources and measured mineral 
resources.

Mine-site exploration Exploration in the vicinity of existing 
mines. new deposits located close to existing mines mean a 
shorter time from discovery to production because the infra-
structure is already in place.

Open pit A method of mining mineral deposits located near 
the surface. The waste rock is stripped and the ore mined 
directly at the surface.

Ore Economic term for minerals, rock types or other bed-
rock components that can be profitably mined to extract met-
als or other valuable substances.

Ore grade The average quantities of valuable metals in a 
tonne of ore, expressed in grams per tonne for precious met-
als and as a percentage for other metals.

Payable metal content The percentage of the metal content 
of the concentrate for which the smelters pay when purchas-
ing concentrate.

Precious metals Metals that are less commonly present in 
the earth’s crust than base metals and which are regarded, to 
a greater extent, as a type of investment asset by financial 
sector players. The most common precious metals are gold, 
silver, platinum and palladium.

Price escalators (PP) Also known as price-sharing clauses. 
The clauses in the agreements for zinc smelting charges that 
distribute changes in metal prices between mines and smelt-
ers. There have been no price escalator clauses in copper 
treatment and refining charge agreements for many years 
now.

Recovery The percentage portion of the quantity of a given 
metal in an ore extracted during the concentration process.

Secondary materials various types of recycling materials 
from which metals can be recovered, for example electronic 
and metal scrap, metal ashes, slag, dust and scrap lead bat-
teries.

Smelter A plant in which metal raw materials, metal concen-
trates or secondary materials are processed to separate met-
als from impurities by means of high-temperature reactions.

Treatment and refining charges (TC/RC) The remuneration 
received by a smelter for processing smelting material 
(concen trates and secondary materials) and extracting met-
als. Copper smelters’ processes can be broken down into a 
treatment phase and a refining phase, while zinc smelters’ 
processes only involve a treatment phase, and hence zinc 
smelters’ remuneration only comprises a treatment charge 
(TC).

Underground mine Mine where the ore is mined using under-
ground tunnels. The mining methods used in Boliden’s under-
ground mines include the cut-and-fill method and sub-level 
stoping.

Waste rock Economic term for rock which, unlike ore, con-
tains no valuable material.

Zinc ingot An end product from zinc smelters with detailed 
specifications with regard to degree of purity, weight and size.

Industry-specific concepts and definitions
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+ Treatment and refining charges (TC/RC)

+ Mining production, concentration and administration costs

+ Cost of freighting concentrates to smelters

– Less value of by-products

= Cash cost 1 (C1)

*  Brook Hunt’s cash cost measurement, which is based on costs influencing the cash flow for the mine’s principal product and which is specified before  financing 
and overall costs (C1). normal costing can also be specified incl. depreciation (C2) and incl. depreciation, interest costs, exploration costs and other indirect 
costs affecting the cash flow (C3).

THE BASE METAL MARKET’S INCOME COMPONENTS
Finished base metals are priced globally on the London Metal Exchange (LME). The mines’ income is based on LME prices, 
but is also affected by a number of other factors. The smelters’ income comprises treatment and refining charges, which are 
based on supply and demand for metal concentrate and a number of other components.

MINES’ INCOME

Metal concentrate (per 
tonne dry weight) A* B* C – (D+F+G) +/– H + I

SMELTERS’ INCOME

Metal concentrate (per tonne dry 
weight)

Treatment and refining charges1 F + G +/– H + D

Free metals A*B*(E–C) 

Extraction of subsidiary metals  
and by-products J

value of metal premiums B* E* (K – L)

INCOME COMPONENTS

LME price, uSD/tonne A

The concentrate’s metal grade, % B

The concentrate’s payable metal content, % C

Fees for any impurities present in the metal concen-
trate, uSD/tonne of metal concentrate D

Percentage of metal content that individual smelters 
are able to refine, % E

Treatment charge (TC), uSD/tonne of metal concen-
trate F

Refining charge (RC)*, uSD/tonne of payable metal 
content G

Effects of any price escalators, uSD/tonne of metal 
concentrate H

Income from any subsidiary metals and other by-
products in the metal concentrate, uSD/tonne of 
metal concentrate I

Income from extraction of any subsidiary metals and 
other by-products in the smelting concentrate, 
uSD/ tonne of metal concentrate J

Metal premiums, uSD/tonne of sold metal K

Transport cost for metal delivery from smelter to 
customer, uSD/ tonne of metal concentrate L

1)  Refining charges (RC) refer to the final stage in the copper smelters’ 
processing of copper, gold and silver metals. The zinc smelters’ pro-
cesses do not include equivalent refining and refining charges do not, 
therefore, form part of the zinc smelters’ income.

DEFINITION OF CASH COST, NORMAL COSTING C1*
Boliden uses the Brook Hunt cash cost measurement, C1, to measure the mines’ cost position in relation to other mines world-
wide. The lower the cash cost a mine reports, the better its cost position. A cash cost of less than zero means that the value of by-
products exceeds deductions for treatment and refining charges, production and administration costs, and freight charges. 
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THE BASE METAL MARKET’S PRICING CONDITIONS
Base metal prices are governed by the supply of and demand for metals from mines. Treatment and refining charges  
(TC/RC) are determined by demand for metals, smelter capacity and the supply of metal concentrates from the mines.
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HIGH METAL PRICES AND HIGH TC/RC
The market is characterised by high levels  
of demand for metals relative to the availability  
of mined metals, while capacity utilisation levels 
in the smelting industry are on a high level. 

HIGH METAL PRICES AND LOW TC/RC
The market is characterised by high levels of 
demand for metals relative to the availability  
of mined metals, while capacity utilisation levels 
in the smelting industry are below normal. 

LOW METAL PRICES AND HIGH TC/RC
The market is characterised by low levels of 
demand for metals relative to the availability of 
mined metals, while capacity utilisation levels in 
the smelting industry are high. 

LOW METAL PRICES AND LOW TC/RC
The market is characterised by low levels of demand 
for metals relative to the availability of mined met-
als, while capacity utilisation levels in the smelting 
industry are below normal. 

METALS AVAILABILITY +–
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Financial key ratios

Average number of employees The average number of 
employees during the year converted to full-time positions.

Balance Sheet total The sum of the assets side or liabilities 
side of the Balance Sheet.

Capital employed The Balance Sheet total less interest-bear-
ing investments, tax receivables and non-interest-bearing pro-
visions and liabilities. 

Cash flow per share The cash flow for the period divided by 
the average number of outstanding shares.

Dividend yield Dividend per share as a percentage of the 
share price.

Earnings per share net result for the period divided by the 
average number of outstanding shares.

Equity/assets ratio Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of 
the Balance Sheet total.

Free cash flow Cash flow from operating activities including 
cash flow from investment activities.

Interest coverage ratio Result after net financial items plus 
financial costs divided by financial costs.

Net debt Interest-bearing current and long-term liabilities 
(including pension liabilities) less financial assets (including liq-
uid assets).

Net debt/equity ratio The net of interest-bearing provisions  
and liabilities less financial assets including liquid assets 
divided by share holders’ equity.

Operating profit (EBIT) Revenues less all costs attributable 
to the operations but excluding net financial items and taxes.

Operating profit (EBIT) excluding revaluation of process 
 inventory Revenues minus all costs attributable to opera-
tions but excluding the effects of the revaluation of process 
inventory and excluding net financial items and taxes.

P/E ratio Share price divided by earnings per share.

Return on capital employed Operating profit divided by the 
average capital employed. The average capital employed for 
each year consists of an average of the closing capital 
employed in the last 13 months.

Return on shareholders’ equity Profit for the year as a per-
centage of average shareholders’ equity in the last 13 months.

Shareholders’ equity per share Shareholders’ equity divided 
by the number of outstanding shares.

Total return Total of the share’s performance during the 
year plus dividend paid divided by the share price at the begin-
ning of the year.

Abbreviations

Lb = pound = 0.4536 kg

oz = ounce = troy ounce = 31.104 gram

uSD = uS dollars

uSc = uS cents

SEK = Swedish kronor

nOK = norwegian kroner

EuR = euro

Ag = silver

Au = gold

Cu = copper

Pb = lead

Zn = zinc
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1924 Gold discovered at Fågel-
myren. Det norske Zinkkompani 
A/S is formed.

1925 västerbottens Gruvaktie-
bolag and Skellefteå Gruvaktie-
bolag are formed.

1928 Construction work begins 
on the Rönnskär plant.

1929 Zinc production begins at 
Odda. The first ore train to 
Rönnskär leaves Boliden on 24th 
September. Ivar Kreuger acquires 
90 per cent of the shares in 
Boliden.

1930 Production begins at the 
Rönnskär smelter.

1931 The two mining companies, 
västerbottens and Skellefteå 
Gruv aktiebolag, are merged to 
form Bolidens Gruvaktiebolag.

1936 The copper smelter at 
 Imatra (which would subsequently 
become Harjavalta) in Finland 
comes on line.

1940 Production starts at 
 Kristineberg.

1941 The copper refinery at Pori 
comes on line.

1942 Lead works are construc-
ted at Rönnskär. Paul Bergsöe & 
Son AB is formed in Landskrona.

1943 The 96-kilometre-long ore 
tramway between Kristineberg 
and Boliden is completed. Tin and 
lead smelting starts at Bergsöe.

1944 The Imatra copper smelter 
moves from eastern Finland to its 
current location in Harjavalta.

1945 Copper production starts 
at Harjavalta.

1949 The flash smelting method 
is introduced at Harjavalta.

1952 Construction of a sulphuric 
acid plant at Rönnskär to exploit 
the sulphur dioxide-bearing chim-
ney gases. 

1953 Tara Exploration and Deve-
lopment Company founded in 
 Canada.

1953 Bergsöe’s lead section 
inaugurated.

1954 The concentrator at 
Rönnskär closes and a new one 
opens at Boliden.

1955 The world’s deepest railway 
– between the Långsele and 
Boliden mines – is completed.

1957 Boliden acquires the 
Garpenberg mine from Zink-
gruvor AB.

1958 new electrolytic refinery at 
Rönnskär opens.

1960 Production of nickel cath-
odes starts at Harjavalta.

1962 Tara begins exploration 
work in Ireland.

1964 Boliden buys half of the 
shares in the norwegian zinc 
smelter, Det norske Zinkkompani 
A/S (Odda).

1967 The Boliden mine is closed 
down. A zinc smelter is estab-
lished in Kokkola.

1968 Mining operations start at 
Aitik.

1969 Operations begin at the 
zinc smelter in Kokkola. Tara con-
ducts exploration in the navan 
area.

1970 Production of aluminium flu-
oride begins at Odda. Tara discov-
ers the big deposit of zinc and 
lead in Ireland.

1977 Production starts at Tara.

1979 Boliden acquires Paul Berg-
söe & Son.

1980 Expansion of Aitik, increas-
ing capacity from 8 to 12 million 
tonnes of ore per annum.

1981 Operations begin at the 
“new” Aitik mine. 

1985 Rönnskär builds Europe’s 
longest copper refinery – 365 
metres.

1987 Swedish conglomerate, 
Trelleborg AB takes controlling 
interest in Boliden.

1988 Boliden acquires a Spanish 
subsidiary, Apirsa SL. Aitik 
expands. Gold bar no. 40,000 is 
cast at Rönnskär.

1990 The concentrator at 
Boliden is expanded and modern-
ised. 

1991 Storage section for batter-
ies built at Bergsöe.

1993 The “copper shuttle” train 
begins transporting copper cath-
odes from Skelleftehamn to Elek-
trokoppar, in Helsingborg in 
southern Sweden.

1995 Harjavalta expands, copper 
production increases by 60 per 
cent and nickel production by 200 
per cent. 

1996 åkulla Östra, near Boliden, 
becomes the biggest new gold 
deposit found in Sweden for 70 
years. 

1997 Boliden establishes its 
head office in Toronto. The share 
is listed on the Toronto and Mon-
treal stock exchanges. 

1998 The Spanish mine, Los 
Frailes, is closed as a result of  
a tailings dam failure. Company 
approves the Rönnskär+200 
expansion – an investment of 

SEK 1.9 billion. The direct leach-
ing method is implemented at 
Kokkola.

1999 Operations restart at the 
Los Frailes mine. 

2000 Harjavalta’s nickel opera-
tions are sold. Maurliden, the 
28th mine in the Boliden Area, 
opens. The new Rönnskär com-
plex is inaugurated.

2001 A fourth expansion of the 
Kokkola plant takes place, 
increasing capacity to 260,000 
tonnes per year and making it one 
of the world’s biggest zinc smelt-
ers. 

2002 Tara acquires the nevins-
town ore body and commences 
the SWEX project.

2003 Boliden acquires Outokum-
pu’s mining and smelting opera-
tions and sells its Fabrication and 
Technology Sales operations to 
Outokumpu.

2004 new Boliden is created 
through the structural transac-
tion with Outokumpu. Work 
begins on creating Boliden’s new 
strategic platform – The new 
Boliden Way. Modernisation of 
the zinc smelter at Odda. Kvarn-
berget – new deposit discovered 
at Garpenberg.

2006 The company decides to 
invest in the expansion of the Aitik 
mine. A completely new lead sec-
tion is opened at Bergsöe. 

2007 Gold bar no. 50,000 cast 
at Rönnskär.

2010 The expanded mine capac-
ity at Aitik becomes operational. 
Work also began on expanding 
electronic scrap processing at 
Rönnskär. 

Boliden’s history in brief

Sweden suffered from a shortage of domestically produced copper and other non-ferrous metals during 
World War I. The Government consequently encouraged exploration in the Skellefteå region of northern 
Sweden, and in 1924, gold was found in the remote Fågelmyren location. That find was the foundation of 
today’s Boliden.
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THE GROUP
Boliden AB
P.O. Box 44
SE-101 20 Stockholm, Sweden
Visiting address:
Klarabergsviadukten 90
Tel +46 8 610 15 00
Fax +46 8 31 55 45
Fax +46 8 30 95 36 (Legal Affairs)

BUSINESS AREA MINES
Boliden Mineral AB
SE-936 81 Boliden, Sweden
Tel +46 910 77 40 00
Fax +46 910 77 42 34 

The Boliden Area
Boliden Mineral AB
SE-936 81 Boliden, Sweden
Tel +46 910 77 40 00
Fax +46 910 77 42 25 

Aitik
Boliden Mineral AB
P.O. Box 85
SE-982 21 Gällivare, Sweden
Tel +46 970 72 90 00
Fax +46 970 72 90 01

Garpenberg
Boliden Mineral AB
SE-776 98 Garpenberg, Sweden
Visiting address:
Kapplavägen 5
Tel +46 225 360 00
Fax +46 225 360 01 

Tara
Boliden Tara Mines Ltd
Knockumber
Navan
Co. Meath
Ireland
Tel +353 46 908 2000
Fax +353 46 908 2581 

BUSINESS AREA SMELTERS
Kokkola 
Boliden Kokkola Oy
P.O. Box 26
FI-67101 Kokkola, Finland
Tel +358 6 828 6111
Fax +358 6 828 6005 

Odda
Boliden Odda AS
Eitrheim
NO-5750 Odda, Norway
Tel +47 53 64 91 00
Fax +47 53 64 33 77 

Harjavalta
Boliden Harjavalta Oy
FI-29200 Harjavalta, Finland
Tel +358 2 535 8111
Fax +358 2 535 8239 

Rönnskärsverken
Boliden Mineral AB
SE-932 81 Skelleftehamn, Sweden
Tel +46 910 77 30 00
Fax +46 910 77 32 15 

Bergsöe
Boliden Bergsöe AB
P.O. Box 132
SE-261 22 Landskrona, Sweden
Tel +46 418 572 00
Fax +46 418 572 05 

Stockholm
Boliden Commercial AB
P.O. Box 750
SE-101 35 Stockholm, Sweden
Visiting address:
Klarabergsviadukten 90
Tel +46 8 610 15 00
Fax +46 8 610 15 51
 
Royal Leamington Spa
Boliden Commercial (UK) Ltd.
No. 7 Clarendon Place
Royal Leamington Spa
GB-Warwickshire CV32 6UA
United Kingdom
Tel +44 1926 833 010
Fax +44 1926 450 084

Neuss
Boliden Commercial Deutschland GmbH
Stresemannallee 4c
D-414 60 Neuss, Germany
Tel +49 2131 75046 55
Fax +49 2131 75046 54

www.boliden.com

Boliden locations
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WHAT DOES THE COVER SHOW?

The cover zooms in on a 3D CAD (Computer Aided Design) drawing of an 
ore body as a so-called wireframe model. The drawing reveals the 
spread of the ore body in three spatial dimensions. The ore on the cover 
is from åkulla Östra in Kankberg and includes concentrations of gold, sil-
ver and tellurium that may eventually be extracted. Exploration for mine-

ral resources is not just the fi rst stage in mining operations, it is the 
starting point for all metal production. What starts as a mineral fi nd can, 
many years down the line, be an important component of tele and data 
communications infrastructure. Or of a road network, vehicles, mobile 
phones, e-readers or batteries, to mention just a few other examples.

CAD DRAWING OF ORE BODY IN 3D 
AS A SOLID MODEL 

CAD DRAWING OF ORE BODY IN 3D 
AS A WIREFRAME MODEL

PART OF THE ORE BODY

While every care has been taken in the translation of this annual report, readers are reminded that the original annual report, signed by the Board of Directors, is in Swedish. 
Th e translation is unaudited. 

2012 Annual General Meeting

Boliden’s ordinary Annual General Meeting will be held on  Th ursday 
3rd May 2012 in Skellefteå.

PARTICIPATION
Shareholders wishing to participate in the Annual General Mee-
ting must both be registered in the shareholders’ register kept by 
Euroclear Sweden AB on Th ursday, 26th April 2012 (for details of 
the re-registration process for nominee shareholders, please see 
below) and have notifi ed the company of their intention to partici-
pate, either via  Boliden’s website, www.boliden.com, by calling the 
company on +46 8 32 94 29, or by writing to the company at the fol-
lowing address: Boliden AB, Legal Aff airs, P.O. Box 44, SE-101 20 
Stockholm, Sweden. All such notifi cations must be received by the 
company no later than Th ursday, 26th April 2012.

Shareholders’ notifi cations of their intention to attend the 
Annual General Meeting shall include the shareholder’s name, 
Civic ID no. or corporate ID no., address and telephone number, 
and the number of assistants who will accompany them. Th e infor-
mation provided will be computerised and used exclusively in con-
nection with the Annual General Meeting. 

NOMINEE SHAREHOLDERS
In order to be entitled to participate in the Annual General Mee-
ting, nominee shareholders must, no later than Th ursday, 26th April 
2012, have their shares temporarily re-registered in their own names 
with Euroclear Sweden AB. All such requests for registration in the 
shareholders’ own name must be submitted to the relevant trustee 
well ahead of this date.

COMPLETE INVITATION TO ATTEND
A complete invitation to attend the Annual General Meeting, as 
well as fi nancial and other information, may be accessed via 
Boliden’s website at www.boliden.com. Printed fi nancial informa-
tion may also be ordered via the Boliden website or from Boliden 
AB, P.O. Box 44, SE-101 20 Stockholm, Sweden.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
3rd May
Interim Report, January–March 2012

19th July
Interim Report, January–June 2012

25th October
Interim Report, January–September 2012

11th February 2013
Interim Report, January–December 2012

QUESTIONS
Any questions concerning Boliden’s fi nancial information can be 
submitted to:
Boliden’s Investor Relations
Tel +46 8 610 15 00 or
e-mail: investorrelations@boliden.com

Production: Boliden AB and Intellecta Corporate. Photo: Stefan Berg et al. Printed by: Ineko in Stockholm 2012. Th is report is printed on Arctic Silk/Tom & Otto Silk paper. 
Th is paper has been certifi ed as meeting the standards of the Programme for Endorsement of Forest Certifi cation (PEFC),which means that at least 70% of wood comes from forests 
that meet or exceed PEFC’s Sustainability Benchmark and wood from controlled sources.

InFORMATIOn ABOuT THE AnnuAL GEnERAL MEETInG
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BOLIDEN AB

P.O. BOX 44, SE 101 20 STOCKHOLM, SWEDEN

VISITING ADDRESS:

KLARABERGSVIADUKTEN 90

TEL: +46 8 610 15 00

FAX: +46 8 31 55 45

www.boliden.com


